
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

North Planning 
Committee 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 10 JANUARY 
2012 
 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 
Allan Kauffman (Vice-Chairman) 
David Allam 
Jazz Dhillon (Labour Lead) 
Michael Markham 
Carol Melvin 
John Morgan 
David Payne 
 

  
Published: Friday, 30 December 2011 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

  
Contact: Nav Johal 
Tel: 01895 250692 
Fax: 01895 277373 
njohal@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=1154&Ver=4 
 

Public Document Pack



Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 
 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.  
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.  
Recording of meetings – This is not allowed, 
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more borough residents can speak at a 
Planning Committee in support of or against an 
application.  Petitions must be submitted in 
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.  
Where there is a petition opposing a planning 
application there is also the right for the 
applicant or their agent to address the meeting 
for up to 5 minutes.   
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  
Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 
 
 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  
Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   
The procedure will be as follows:-  
1. The Chairman will announce the report;  
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 

 

followed by any Ward Councillors; 
4. The Committee may ask questions of the 
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  
Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  
When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   
If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  
 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 
Chairman's Announcements 
1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting 

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting - 6 December 2011 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent 

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public 
and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The 
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or 
land concerned. 

 
Non Major Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

6 Land at Willow Farm, 
Jackets Lane, 
Harefield - 
57685/APP/2011/1450 
 

Harefield 
 

Permanent use of the land as 
gypsy and traveller caravan site. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 
 

13 - 36 

7 Oakwood, Catlins 
Lane, Pinner - 
67139/APP/2011/2005 
 
 

Northwood 
Hills 
 

Part two storey, part single storey 
rear/side extension and single 
storey detached garage to 
side/rear involving demolition of 
existing detached garage to side. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

37 - 52 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Non Major Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

8 The Hallmarks, 146 
Field End Road, 
Eastcote - 
3016/APP/2010/2159 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Change use from Class A2 
(Financial and Professional 
Services) to Class D1 (Non-
Residential Institutions) for use as 
a Education Institute. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 
 

53 - 62 

9 Land at Junction of 
Field End Road, High 
Road, Pinner - 
59310/APP/2010/2005 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Replacement of the existing O2, 
17.5m high streetworks pole with a 
17.5m high streetworks pole, 
complete with three dual user 
antennas within a shroud, an 
associated radio equipment 
cabinet and development ancillary. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

63 - 76 

10 Highways Land at 
Roundabout, Junction 
off Park Avenue and 
Kings College Road, 
Ruislip - 
61954/APP/2011/2925 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Installation of a 14.8m high 
telecommunications monopole, 
associated equipment cabinet and 
ancillary developments works 
(Consultation Under Schedule 2, 
Part 24 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995) (as 
amended). 
 
Recommendation: 
(A) Prior approval of siting and 
      design is required 
(B) Details of siting and design 
      are refused  
 

77 - 86 



 

11 Footway Adjacent to 
Autocentre 
Northwood, Pinner 
Road, Northwood - 
67084/APP/2011/2897 
 
 

Northwood 
Hills 
 

Installation of a 15m high 
telecommunications pole, 
associated equipment cabinet and 
ancillary developments works 
(Consultation Under Schedule 2, 
Part 24 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995) (as 
amended). 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 
 

87 - 98 

 
Other 
 

 

12 S106 Quarterly Monitoring Report - up to 30 September 2011 
 
 

99 - 110 

13 Any Items Transferred from Part 1 
 
 

 

14 Any Other Business in Part 2 
 
 

 
 

 
Plans for North Planning Committee                                Page  111 - 147 



Minutes 
 
NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
6 December 2011 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   
Councillors: Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 

Allan Kauffman (Vice-Chairman) 
David Allam 
Jazz Dhillon 
Michael Markham 
Carol Melvin 
John Morgan 
David Payne 
 

 LBH Officers Present:  
James Rodger, Meg Hirani, Manmohan Ranger, Sarah Hickey and Nav 
Johal  
 
Also Present: 
Councillor Michael White (item 7), Councillors’ Douglas Mills and Susan 
O’Brien (item 11) 
 

73. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 None.  
 

74. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS 
MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 None.  
 

75. TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING ON 25 
OCTOBER 2011  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 Agreed with the changes set out in the addendum.  
 

76. MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT  
(Agenda Item 4) 
 

 None. 
 
The Chairman noted that Item 12 had been withdrawn from the agenda.  
 

77. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL 
BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Items marked part 1 were considered in public and items parked part 2 were 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  
considered in private. There were no part 2 items to consider. 
 

78. 11 HOYLAKE GARDENS, RUISLIP - 66856/APP/2011/2263  (Agenda Item 
7) 
 

 Conversion of existing dwelling into 2 x 2 bed self contained flats with 
associated amenity space and parking involving 2 storey side 
extension, single storey rear extension and conversion of roof space 
into habitable use to include roof dormer and demolition of existing 
attached garage to side. 
 
The proposal was for the extension and conversion of one half of a pair of 
semi-detached dwellings to two, two bedroomed flats.  This revised proposal 
was  a  reduced  size  and different  design  and  layout  from  earlier  
schemes  that  were  withdrawn  and  refused planning permission. The 
current scheme proposed horizontal, flatted division rather than houses.  
 
Traffic and acoustic reports had been submitted with the application.  The  
proposal  complied with HDAS  requirements  for  two  storey  side  and  
single  storey rear extensions, internal and external space standards and 
also those in the London Plan (2011) and the car parking provision and 
other policies set out in the Hillingdon Unitary Development  Plan,  Saved  
Policies  September  2007.  Planning permission was thus recommended 
subject to conditions. 
 
The  application  site  was  on  the  north  side  of  Hoylake  Gardens  and  
comprised  a  semi-detached property with a wider than average frontage 
(compared with other properties in Hoylake Gardens). The existing property 
was the end 1930's dwelling in the street, before a group of more modern 
1980's properties begin. Hoylake Gardens originally comprised a small cul-
de-sac of 16-18 dwellings, although this had now been extended to include 
an area of 1980's terraced properties with shallow rear gardens, some of 
which back onto the side of the application site. The site was within a short 
walk of Eastcote shopping centre, Eastcote underground station, main road, 
bus, and transport connections providing it with a PTAL rating of 3. The 
application site lies within the Developed Area as identified in the Adopted 
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies, September 
2007). 
 
43 Neighbours and the Eastcote Residents Association were consulted. A 
petition with 33 signatures and 7 letters of objection and one letter of support 
had been received. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the petition 
received in objection to the proposal was invited to address the meeting.  
 
Points raised by the petitioners: 

• The road was a small cul-du-sac.  
• A previous application had been refused on reasons to do with the 

parking implications and the changes in the street scene.  
• The space was an important part of the developments in the 1930’s 

and 1980’s.  
• The development had improved a lot since the original application 

had been made.  
Page 2



  
• The issue the petitioners had were around parking and the 

implications would be extensive.  
• The appearance of the application looked to be fine.  
• The plans submitted showed 2 car parking spaces plus 2 behind 

those. This showed a ‘pinch point’ and the cars in front would have to 
move to let the cars behind out.  

• The minimum distance requirements submitted were enough to object 
to this application.  

• The application was an overdevelopment in a small area.  
 
The agent spoke on behalf of the application submitted: 

• The area had extended from a cul-du-sac to its current form.  
• The previous application was not refused on planning issues. 
• The agents had spoken to neighbours prior to submitting the 

application and they had asked for comments before the new 
submission. There were no concerns to note from neighbours to the 
agents.  

• The current proposal was modest and sympathetic to all.  
• The officers report was very clear about loss of privacy and this did 

not exist.  
• The distances required virtually conformed and the agent noted that 

the land was lower.  
• There was no loss of light to surrounding properties.  
• The design was sensitive and in-keep, and the design was done in 

consultation with officers.  
• A life time home was being proposed.  
• The double garage had been used as an office for around 20 years 

under permitted development.  
• The street would benefit greatly and there would be far less disruption 

to the street than an office.  
 
A Ward Councillor was present and spoke: 

• The Ward Councillor stated that the outline design was not bad in 
comparison to the previous design.  

• He did have a concern regarding the size of rooms but that was up to 
the officers to decide on whether the room sizes were adequate.  

• There was a lack of manoeuvrability in the proposal for parking.  
• There was already congestion in the area and the application may 

add to this.  
• The Ward Councillor had an issue with regard to privacy but this had 

reduced considerably since the previous application was submitted.  
• The main concern was parking.  

 
Members were happy with the application but wanted clarification on the 
issues brought up by petitioners and the Ward Councillor regarding parking. 
Officers confirmed that the parking provided complied with Council 
standards, including the crossover point. Therefore the parking provided as 
per the application was acceptable.  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved –  

Page 3



  
 
That the application be approved with the changes set out in the 
addendum and an additional condition to be agreed with the Chairman 
and Labour lead. 
 

79. LITTLE HAMMONDS, BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH, HAREFIELD - 
35910/APP/2011/718  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

 Change of use of site from Class C3 (Dwelling House) to mixed use 
Class C3 (Dwelling house) and Class D1 (Non-Residential Institutions), 
involving the erection of a single storey building at the rear for use as 
a meeting room (Use Class D1) with associated parking. Single storey 
side extension to the existing dwelling house (involving demolition of 
part of existing garage), new access road involving demolition of 
existing single storey side extension and the installation of 2 vehicular 
crossovers, new wall to front boundary and new fence to side. 
 
The  application  seeked  permission  to erect  a  meeting  room  building,  to  
be  used  for  D1 purposes  (worship),  together  with  associated  access  
road  and  car-park,  involving  the sub-division  of  the  site  and  a  
replacement  single  storey  side  extension  to  the  original dwelling, 
alterations to the front wall of the site and the provision of a new public 
footpath extending to the Cricket Club Grounds.  
 
There was no objection to the single storey extension to the dwelling or to 
the alterations to the front boundary  wall.  However, there  was  concern  
relating  to  the  proposal  for  an independent meeting room/church which 
would not be ancillary to the existing residential use of the site. Due to the 
additional activities that would be generated, as a result of this use, this 
would fail to safeguard the amenities of the surrounding residential 
properties. 
 
In addition  it  was  considered  the proposed  formation of  the access  road 
and  car-parking area with associated  increase  in  traffic, would be out of 
keeping and detrimental  to  the surrounding  residential  area  and  
character  and  appearance  of  the  conservation  area. 
 
There  was  further  concern  regarding  what  measures  were  in  place  to  
prevent  any intensification of use if a permission were to be issued or if/how 
these matters could be reasonably controlled. 
 
23  neighbours  and  interested  parties  were  consulted  and  20  
responses  and  a  petition  of  49 signatures had been received 
 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the petition 
received in support to the proposal was invited to address the meeting.  
 
Points raised by the petitioners/applicant: 

• The purpose of the application was for the local congregation of 
Christians for families in the area.  

• It was proposed that there would be 2 or 3 meetings a week at 
specific times.  

• The group and meetings were there to promote values.  
• The applicant initially approached Hillingdon in 2008.  

Page 4



  
• They had engaged with professional consultants who liaised directly 

with planning officers about the application.  
• The applicants had consulted with residents and the project had been 

approached very carefully.  
• The initial concerns had been overcome and there was little objection 

or concerns.  
• The noise issues raised could be addressed. There would be no 

noise that would be heard from the outside. An amplifier was not 
going to be used.  

• The impact on the environment was minimal as the meeting room 
would be inconspicuous.  

• The application would benefit the village.  
• The rear garden was very large, and large enough to accommodate 

the meeting room.  
• There was a provision on new fencing and landscaping.  
• The visual impact was insignificant.  
• The applicant asked that the committee approve the application.  

 
Members clarified the number of expected visitors and car park spaces that 
would be available. The applicant confirmed that they believed 9 parking 
spaces would be sufficient. The majority of people attending would be local 
and that there was a larger hall at another venue for larger meetings.  
 
Members discussed the application and agreed it was a sensitive issue, and 
that they had to consider the application and decision based on planning 
issues. Members were sympathetic with the applicant and those that signed 
the petition in favour of the application but agreed that this was back land 
development and therefore should be refused.  
 
Members asked officers for clarification on noise and parking as reasons for 
refusal as stated in the officer report. The applicant had stated that no 
amplifiers would be used, nor speakers or music. Also that the access road 
for the site was not near residential properties and should not effect 
residents. Officers explained that if the development was sold then the 
application for an A1 use would be transferred to the new owners and they 
could not put a condition on the use of how it was operated.  
 
Members discussed with officers whether this was back land development. 
Officers explained that although it was a loss of a garden area it may not be 
considered a loss of garden-housing area.  
 
The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being put to 
the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That the application be refused as per the agenda.  
 

80. 1 HARVIL ROAD, HAREFIELD - 13701/APP/2011/2334  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 Variation of conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref. 
13701/APP/2004/193 dated 30-04-2004 to allow the private care hire/ 
chauffer business to operate 24 hours a day (retention of part of shop 

Page 5



  
as private car hire/chauffeur business). 
 
The  application  was  for  the  variation  of  condition  1  (Hours  of  
Operation  of  Private  Car Hire/Chauffeur Business)  and  condition  2  
(Opening Hours  for  the Office  of  the Private Car Hire/Chauffer  Business)  
of  planning  application  reference  13701/APP/2004/193  to allow for 24 
hour operation.  
 
It was considered that the proposed variation of condition would result in an 
unacceptable level of noise and disturbance to  the neighbouring  residential 
dwellings and was, therefore, recommended for refusal. 
 
The application related to a ground floor commercial unit located at the 
junction between Harvil Road and Moorhall Road. The upper  floor of  the 
property  was  in use as  residential flats, with  the adjacent properties  in 
use as  retail at ground  floor  level and  residential at first floor. 
 
The application property and  the adjacent  retail parade was set back  from  
the highway by the slip road and parking area, which ran parallel to Harvil 
Road and Moorhall Road. The  site  was  situated within  a  developed  area  
as  identified  in  the  policies  of  the Adopted Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). 
 
30 neighbouring properties were notified of the proposed development. Two 
responses had been received, one in objection to the proposal and one in 
support. One petition had been received in support of the application.  
 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the petition 
received in support to the proposal was invited to address the meeting.  
 
Points raised by the petitioners/applicant: 

• The owner of the care hire firm explained how they had been 
operating since February 2011 and that in that time no complaints 
had been made directly to them. 

• A petition had been signed by local businesses and people to ask that 
they be allowed 24 hour operation. This showed the demand for it.  

• The applicant was not asking for cars to be allowed to be parked in 
front of the shops.  

• The business had the use of 3 cars and requested that the office 
could be manned for 24 hours.  

• In order to minimise noise and disruptions to others they did not allow 
cars to park in front of the office outside of hours.  The drivers did not 
park or drive into the office often unless it was required.  

• The business did operate after hours but this was not from the office 
but by the use of a mobile phone.  

• A sign was on the office door so that customers could call a number 
to book a taxi if they needed one outside of the operating office hours.  

 
Members discussed the application and agreed with the officers reasons for 
refusal as stated in the report.  
 
The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being put to 
the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 

Page 6



  
Resolved –  
 
That the application be refused as per the agenda.  
 

81. 13 SWAKELEYS ROAD, ICKENHAM - 19121/APP/2011/2066  (Agenda 
Item 10) 
 

 Change of use from Class A2 (Financial and Professional Services) 
and Class B1 (Business) to Class C3 (Dwelling Houses) to include 3 x 
1-bed, 1 x bedsit and 1 x 2-bed self-contained flats involving 
conversion of roof space of rear building with a dormer to front and 
alterations to elevations of front building. 
 
This application seeked full planning permission for the change of use of an 
existing A2 and B1 use to additional  residential units. The application site 
was within the boundary of Ickenham Local Centre as designated in the 
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies  (September  2007).   
 
The applicant had failed  to  provide  sufficient  marketing history of the 
properties to show the use as offices was no longer required. The offices 
were presently occupied by 5  local businesses. The evidence submitted 
showed  that some of the  units  were  unoccupied  however  this  was  
insufficient  to  justify  the  loss  of  office  space within  the  Core  and  
Secondary  Shopping  Areas  of  Ickenham  Local  Centre.  It  would 
therefore be contrary to Policy H8 of the UDP.  
 
Furthermore, the accommodation would provide an inadequate standard of 
living for future occupiers due to the residential units size and layout and 
was therefore considered contrary to  Policies  H8  and  BE19  of  Hillingdon  
Unitary  Development  Plan  Saved  Policies (September 2007), Policy 3.5 of 
the London  Plan  (2011)  and  guidance  within  Section  4  of  the  Council's  
Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts. It was therefore 
recommended for refusal. 
 
37 local owner/occupiers were consulted, 2  replies  were received objecting  
to  the proposal. A petition  had  also  been  received  with  over  200  
signatures  against  the proposal.  
 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the petition 
received in objection to the proposal was invited to address the meeting.  
 
Points raised by the petitioners: 

• The petitioner ran a business in the building where the application 
was proposed.  

• If approved the business would be forced out of the property.  
• They employed 4 local people at that site, 3 of which walked to work.  
• The plan did not support local businesses and employers.  
• The site was the only business space in the village.  
• The application would bring cramped flats which would add nothing to 

Ickenham.  
• New flats were already being built nearby.  
• The site was a valuable resource for local businesses in the area.  
• The plans were damaging to Ickenham.  

Page 7



  
• The petition contained over 220 signatures.  
• Ickenham Residents Association had objected to the proposal.  
• Virtually ever shop space in the area was full.  
• If it was lost then it would be lost for good, and would also result in a 

loss of jobs which was not good in this economic climate.  
 
The agent spoke on behalf of the application submitted: 

• The majority of the space was vacant and therefore the loss of 
existing use was minimal.  

• 3 vacant units were marketed for over a year with no interest, others 
were similar.  

• The prices were competitive but they had no offers, some interest.  
• There was a high level of surplus office space and better space 

available in other areas.  
• The applicant was making losses due to the space being left empty.  
• Due to the change in the economic times there was a greater need 

for homes and less for office space.  
• A residential use would be re-instating its former use.  
• The agent discussed the flat sizes and required standards, and that 

an outlook to a car park was not unusual.  
• Right of light laws was briefly discussed.  
• The agent asked for a deferral to adjust any minor amendments that 

were required on the application.  
 
Officer and Members discussed the size of the flats which was open to 
interpretation.  Officers had visited the site themselves. Right of light was not 
an issue for Members of the Planning Committee to decide and they needed 
to make their decision on planning merits.  
 
The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being put to 
the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That the application be refused as per the agenda.  
 

82. LAND TO THE REAR OF 51 AND 53 PEMBROKE ROAD, RUISLIP - 
66982/APP/2011/2221  (Agenda Item 11) 
 

 Erection of 2 five-bedroom, two storey detached dwellings with 
habitable roofspace, associated parking and amenity space. 
 
Planning permission was sought for the erection of 2 five-bedroom houses 
on a backland site to the rear  of  Nos.  51 and 53 Pembroke  Road.  The 
scheme was considered unacceptable in terms of the principle and the 
layout and design of the proposal. As such the proposal was recommended 
for refusal. 
 
The  application  site  comprises  land  located  to  the  north  of  Nos.  51  
and  53  Pembroke Road  and  was  formed  from  the  rear  parts  of  the  
gardens  of  these  properties. The site was some 0.15 hectare in area. To 
the north, the site was bound by the rear gardens of Nos. 5, 6 and 7 Green 
Walk. These properties on Green Walk were within the Ruislip Manor Way 

Page 8



  
Conservation Area. The site was bounded to the east by the  rear garden of 
55 Pembroke Road  and  to  the west,  by  the  side  boundaries  of  32  
Brickwall  Lane  and  49  Pembroke Road.  
 
The  land  slightly  undulates  and  there were mature  trees  and  hedges  to  
the  north, east and west boundaries.  The surrounding area was  residential  
in  appearance  and  character. The site was within  the developed area as 
identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved 
Policies September 2007). 
 
Planning permission was refused in September 2010  for  the erection of 2  
five-bedroom, two storey detached dwellings. 
 
The occupiers of 61 neighbouring properties and the Ruislip Residents 
Association were consulted. 2 petitions were received, one in favour of the 
proposal and one against.  
 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the petition 
received in objection to the proposal was invited to address the meeting.  
 
Points raised by the petitioners: 

• They were meeting again, for the 9th time, to speak on an application 
to build on a back garden.  

• The petitioner was speaking on behalf of the 97 neighbours who 
would be affected but the proposals.  

• Many more signatures could have been collected for the petition 
against the application.  

• There was total opposition against the plans which was bricks, 
concrete and tarmac replacing gardens.  

• Urban areas were rapidly being overdeveloped.  
• Gardens were places for children to play and families to relax.  
• An almost identical plan was submitted last year and refused.  
• It would overlook and dominate neighbouring properties.  
• Consideration needed to be given to wildlife and plants.  
• The petitioner asked that we keep our gardens as gardens and green 

spaces as green spaces.  
 
The agent/applicant spoke on behalf of the application and petition in favour  
submitted: 

• A petition submitted by the applicant in support of the application.  
• The applicant explained how the previous application which was 

refused, and appeal lodged and refused did not reject a residential 
development of some sort.  

• The inspector did not give a reason for refusal as the effect on 
adjoining properties.  

• The applicant had met with planning officers, and with the inspector’s 
report and discussed new plans and drawings with amended detailed 
requirements.  

• It was a 2 and half hour long meeting and he asked officers if they 
would accept the application to which they stated yes.  

• The applicant had no indication that the recommendation by officers 
would be to refuse the application.  

• He felt that opinion was carrying more weight that those of experts.  
Page 9



  
• He felt that officers in the planning department had conflicting 

comments.  
• The applicant had met with the Head of Planning whose only 

reservation was it was on a rear garden, and not that it was against 
LB Hillingdon policies. In recent times the Council had allowed at 
least 3 garden developments.  

• The applicant felt his application was totally compliant.  
• He felt that there were no reasons stated that meant it could not be 

approved.  
 
Two Ward Councillor’s were present and spoke: 

• The Ward Councillor’s objected to the application that was proposed 
and supported the officers’ recommendation for refusal.  

• It would result in a loss of private garden area and have a detrimental 
impact on the surrounding area.  

• The proposal was not in scene with the rest of the area.  
• It would dominate the surrounding areas.  
• The access road into the site was out of keep with the area.  
• There were additional issues to consider with regard to an already 

over utilised Pembroke Road.  
• Those that had signed the petition in favour of the application did not 

live near by.  
• The majority of those that signed the petition against lived in close 

proximity and therefore showed the true feelings of residents.  
• The loss of wildlife needed to be considered.  
• PPS3: Local Authorities were best placed to make the decisions on 

development in back gardens.  
• The London Plan provided more concrete reasons for refusal the 

application.  
• The publication recently published showed that such back garden 

development was unwelcome, including in Outer London, which 
Hillingdon was very much part of.  

• This development was not the right development for Pembroke Close.  
 
Members and Officers discussed the recent guidance published on back 
land development. This policy could be referred to in its draft form but the 
weight put on it should be mindful that it was a draft policy.  
 
Members discussed the planning inspector’s report from the previous 
application which was refused by the Council and on appeal and the 
inconsistencies that it contained.  
 
Members felt that this was back land development and with guidance, 
including the recent draft publication, that the application did not fit criteria.  
 
The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being put to 
the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That the application be refused as per the agenda.  
 

Page 10



  
83. 5 POPLAR CLOSE, RUISLIP - 61775/APP/2011/1204  (Agenda Item 12) 

 
 This item had been withdrawn from the agenda by the Head of Planning.   

 
84. 168 WHITBY ROAD, RUISLIP - 38420/APP/2011/2410  (Agenda Item 13) 

 
 Single storey side extension to existing property. 

 
The application property was an end of terrace, two storey dwelling situated 
on the south-eastern side of Whitby Road.  It was sited adjacent to a 
vehicular access that  leads  to  the rear garages of the properties in the 
road, and an area of open space beyond. 
 
6  adjoining  and  nearby  properties  notified  of  the  application and The 
Eastcote Residents Association had been consulted. No responses or 
comments had been received. 
 
This application was reported to committee as the applicant was an 
employee of the Council. 
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That the application be approved as per the agenda.  
 

85. 43 THE CHASE, ICKENHAM - 67155/APP/2011/1564  (Agenda Item 14) 
 

 Single storey rear extension with habitable roofspace to include a 
gable end window  and  1  side  roof  light,  involving  demolition  of  
existing  lean-to extension to rear. 
 
The application property was a detached chalet brick built bungalow with two 
large dormer extensions on both sides of the roof slope which had been 
constructed under permitted development. 
 
The  application  site  was  situated  in  a  residential  area  comprising  
detached  and  semi detached bungalows. The properties on this street had 
varying styles, many had been altered through planning permission or under 
permitted development rights. 
 
The  application  seeked  planning  permission  for  the  erection  of  a  rear  
extension  with habitable roof space. 
 
The extension would extend 3.6m from the rear elevation of the property. It 
would result in the continuation of the roofslope of the existing property 
above the extension, and would have a gable end on the rear elevation. The 
eaves height would be 2.4m and the ridge height would be 5.65m (the same 
as that existing). 
 
The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being put to 
the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 

Page 11



  
Resolved –  
 
That the application be refused as per the agenda.  
 

86. 103, 105 AND 107 DUCKS HILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 
64345/APP/2011/1945  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Erection of a pair of linked part 2 part, 3 storey blocks with 
accommodation in the roof space, to provide, 12 two-bedroom and 1 
three-bedroom apartments, involving demolition of 103, 105 and 107 
Ducks Hill Road (Outline application). 
 
The application seeked outline planning permission for the erection of a pair 
of linked part 2,  part  3  storey  blocks  with  accommodation  in  the  roof  
space,  to  provide  12  x  two bedroom  and  1  x  three  bedroom  flats.  The 
proposal involved  the  demolition  of  the existing three detached dwellings 
and all other associated structures on the site. Access, scale, appearance 
and layout  were  to  be  determined,  with  landscaping matters reserved. 
 
Members and officers discussed the parking provision. The application set 
out 26 spaces with 4 disabled bays. This provision included visitor parking, 
for the 13 flats proposed.  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That the application be approved with the changes set out in the 
addendum and subject to a unilateral undertaking/S106. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.05 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any 
of the resolutions please contact Nav Johal on 01895 250692.  Circulation of 
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the 
Public. 
 

 

Page 12



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND AT WILLOW FARM (FIELD 3116)  JACKETS LANE HAREFIELD 

Permanent use of the land as gypsy and traveller caravan site.

14/06/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 57685/APP/2011/1450

Drawing Nos: MCA-1 (Location Plan)
MCA-2
Tree and Shrub Planting Schedule
Planning, Design and Access Statement

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permanent planning permission for the use of the site as a gypsy
and traveller caravan site which has previously been granted twice at appeal, albeit on a
temporary basis.

The application site comprises a 0.25ha triangular shaped field located on the southern
side of Jackets Lane, approximately 700m to the south east of its junction with
Northwood Road. It is located within open countryside which forms part of the Green Belt
and a Countryside Conservation Area and also lies adjacent to a Nature Conservation
Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

The two previous Inspectors did not consider that this site was suitable for a permanent
gypsy and traveller caravan site, the harm to the character and appearance of the Green
Belt and Countryside Conservation Area being too great. They have only been prepared
to grant temporary permission, mainly due to the compelling personal circumstances of
the applicant and his family. The previous Inspectors were also concerned about the
Local Planning Authority's lack of assessment of traveller's needs within the UDP and no
alternative site's being available in the vicinity. A temporary permission would enable the
Local Planning Authority to progress the LDF and for site-specific allocations to be made
(if appropriate).

Although the personal circumstances of the applicant and, to a more limited extent his
family, are still valid and there are still no alternative sites available, in considering the
previous application, the last Inspector considered that the matter was finely balanced so
that a 4 year temporary permission was considered acceptable so that at least the harm
to the Green Belt could be restricted by limiting the duration of the use, in which time it
was hoped the LDF could be progressed. The LDF has been progressed but not to the
extent that specific sites have been allocated (if required). To allow a further period would
be to extend the duration of the harm so that it is considered that on balance, the other
factors, including the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family would no
longer justify a further extension of time with a continuation of the harm.

Furthermore, although this application is described as being for the permanent use of the
land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site and no operational development is described,
the submitted plan does not accurately shown existing caravans/mobile homes/ buildings
on site. The agent has been advised of the apparent discrepancies and requested to

11/07/2011Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

clarify precisely what is being sought but to date, no such clarification has been
forthcoming. As such, the Local Planning Authority could not be certain of the full extent
and impacts of the works being proposed. Nonetheless, it is clearly evident that the real
harm of the proposals is greater than the submitted plans indicate with respect to the
Green Belt and landscape of the Countryside Conservation Area.

The Environment Agency also object to the absence of an assessment dealing with
pollution risks of foul drainage.

The scheme also fails to demonstrate that it will contribute towards sustainable
development.

The application is recommended for refusal on these grounds.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The development is considered to represent inappropriate development within the Green
Belt in terms of the guidance contained in Paragraph 3.4 of Planning Policy Guidance
Note 2 (Green Belts) which is harmful by definition to its open character and appearance.
Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances provided or which are evident
which either singularly or cumulatively justify the permanent retention of the use which
would overcome the presumption against inappropriate development in the Green Belt.
The development is therefore harmful to the Green Belt and the landscape of the
Countryside Conservation Area, contrary to PPG2: Green Belts, Policy 7.16 of the
London Plan (July 2011) and Policies 1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The existing buildings, structures, mobile homes and caravans and their
footprint/positions on site are not accurately shown on the submitted Block Plan MCA-2.
As this application seeks to retain the existing use and no reference is made for the need
to erect, demolish, re-site and/or alter these existing structures and vehicles on site, the
proposal fails to accurately identify the extent of the work being proposed. In such
circumstances, it has not been possible for the Local Planning Authority to fully assess
the impact of the proposals upon the Green Belt and the Countryside Conservation Area.
Nonetheless it is evident to the Local Planning Authority that the real harm of the
proposed use, when taking into account all the paraphenalia, structures and buildings
erected to facilitate it is very harmful to the Geen Belt and the landscape of the
Coutryside Conservation Area contrary to PPG2: Green Belts, Policy 7.16 of the London
Plan (July 2011) and Policies PT1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

It is proposed that foul drainage is dealt with by maintaining the connection to an existing
cesspool. In the absence of a non-mains drainage assessment, it has not been
demonstrated that other more appropriate means of disposal are available and for an
assessment to be made of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters arising
from the proposed development within this Source Protection Zone 1. As such, it is
considered that the permanent retention of the gypsy/traveller use discharging to a
cesspool results in an unacceptable risk to groundwater quality, contrary to Planning
Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control, Circular 03/99 and policy 5.14 of the
London Plan (July 2011).

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 14



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absence of a Sustainability Statement, the proposal fails to demonstrate how the
permanent use of the site will contribute towards sustainable development. As such, the
proposal is contrary to Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.15 and 7.19 of the London Plan (July 2011).

4

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a 0.25ha triangular shaped field located on the southern
side of Jackets Lane, a mainly single width track which links Northwood Road with Ducks
Hill Road, although the track is gated and bollarded towards its ends to prevent a through
route for vehicles.  Vehicular access to the site is from Northwood Road. The site is
roughly halfway along the track's length, being approximately 470m to the south east of its
junction with Northwood Road and 620m to the north west of its junction with Ducks Hill
Road. The site lies within a valley surrounded by open fields and wooded areas, with
some linear residential development along the valley ridges.  The immediately adjoining
fields are also in the applicant's ownership and are in use for the breeding and rearing of
horses.

The main residential building on site is located at the front of the site, along its north
western boundary and appears to comprise a mobile home which has been placed on a
brick base and has a tiled hipped roof and bay windows. Another temporary building has

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

PPS1
PPG2
PPS3
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.8
LPP 5.14
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.16
OL1

OL4
OL15

Delivering Sustainable Development
Green Belts
Housing
(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all
(2011) Housing Choice
(2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Green Belt
Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas

Page 15



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

been sited to the rear which also has a tiled roof and appears to provide residential
accommodation. Two caravans were also present on site at the time of the site visit and
two stable buildings have been erected towards the rear of the site with this part of the site
being used as a paddock area. A mature hedgerow forms the north western boundary and
an overhead national grid power line crosses the site. A number of public footpaths
surround the site, and meet outside its entrance, namely U10 which runs along Jackets
Lane from Northwood Road, R13 which crosses the field to the south east to join Jackets
Lane further to the east and U11 which runs along the north eastern boundary of the site.
Jackets Lane to the east of the site forms an ancient highway (bridle way) which is not
adopted.

The site forms part of the Green Belt, a Countryside Conservation Area and lies adjacent
to a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the permanent use of the land as a gypsy and traveller caravan site.
Two mobile homes are shown on the submitted site plan, sited parallel to the north
eastern boundary of the site, close to its entrance, the larger one sited closest to the
entrance and measuring approximately 13.5m by 6m, the other one behind being 11.5m
by 6m. A small garden area would separate the two homes, with a shed sited between the
buildings, some 4.5m by 2.5m. A 3.5m square of concrete hardstanding is shown at the
front of the larger mobile home. A total of five car parking spaces would be provided in
front of the mobile homes, with a caravan stored on the south eastern side of the smaller
mobile home. The rear of the site would provide a yard area, with the south western part
of the site providing a paddock, separated by a post and rail fence. The two mobile homes
would be connected to a cesspool. Tree planting and a new hedge is also shown along
the south eastern boundary of the site and along the line of the new fencing.

A number of supporting documents have been submitted with the planning application,
namely:-

Planning, Design and Access Statement:

This states that the documents which must be taken into account in determining these
proposals include the Inspector's decision letter dated 20th June 2007; the Council's Local
Development Framework (LDF) including the core Strategy (2011) and any emerging
Land Allocations Development Plan Document(PDP); London's Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment; the replacement London Plan (2009); the West London
Housing Partnership Study; the advice contained in Circular 01/2006 (until it is replaced)
and any Government guidance published before the applications are determined.

The statement then lists and briefly describes planning policy, as recorded by the
Inspector in his decision letter at the time of the previous appeal in June 2007. The
previous Inspector's conclusions on the planning policy position are described. The
statement then goes on to describe the current plan policy position.

The statement then refers to the need for gypsy caravan site provision generally in the
area in 2007 as referred to by the Inspector. The statement notes that at that time, 12
families were on the waiting list for a pitch at the Council's site at Colne Park and future
demand from family growth was expected. The Inspector noted that two bids in 2006 and
2007 for funding to improve and provide two additional pitches had been made. The
statement notes that that funding is no longer available. The Inspector also noted that the
Council's letting policy would preclude the Connors family from being considered for a

Page 16



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

pitch. A West London survey of 7 boroughs (including Hillingdon) is also cited which
identified chronic overcrowding, lack of facilities and poor environmental quality at most
public sites. Furthermore, The neighbouring counties of Buckinghamshire and
Hertfordshire GTAAs found a need for some 100 additional permanent pitches in each
area whilst the Thames Valley Sub-Region, the GTAA indicated a requirement for 187
additional pitches for the period 2006 - 2011. The Inspector concluded that there was a
clear need for additional gypsy accommodation.

The statement considers that that need has not diminished over the intervening period
and the initial Replacement London Plan (2009) originally specified the level of need for
additional pitches in Hillingdon. It states that the prospects of the Connors family of
securing an alternative site were slim indeed and the situation has not improved. There is
still no suitable, affordable, available alternative site in the locality to which they could
relocate.

The statement then considers the occupation of the site and compares the 2007 situation
with that of the present. In 2007, the site was occupied by Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) and
his children, Michael (Jnr.), his wife Barbara, Luke (aged 17 years), Johnny (16) and Mary
(14). Since that time, Michael (Jnr.), his wife, Barbara and their two sons (Michael, aged 3
years and Tommy (3 months) have vacated the site for a traditional travelling lifestyle.
Luke has married and with his wife Anne and their daughter, Kathleen (9 months) is
shortly to move into a house. Mary and her partner are away from the site travelling. Mr
Connors eldest daughter Elizabeth (aged 22 years) has returned to the site with her two
children, Michael (18 months) and Ellie-Marie (4 months). Johnny has remained on site
and helps with the horse breeding.

The statement goes on advise that although the children have now completed their formal
education, the medical circumstances of Michael Connors (Snr.) remain a significant
material consideration.  The Inspector previously attached significant weight to Mr
Connors' poor health and the good access this site afforded to Mount Vernon and
Harefield Hospitals. The statement advises that Mr Connors (Snr.) condition has
deteriorated further over the last 4 years. Also, Ellie-Marie suffers from a rare genetic
condition which leads to the build up of amino acid in the blood and brain which if left
untreated, can lead to severe learning difficulties. Ellie-Marie is seen regularly by
consultants at Great Ormond Street Hospital and Elizabeth is visited by a nurse and a
social worker on a twice-weekly basis.

The statement concludes by stating that the reduction in the number of households on the
site, with less domestic activity and paraphernalia and vehicle parking in the open has
reduced the impact of the site on the Green Belt. There is considerable scope for
structural planting to add to the planting that has already taken place. Permanent
permission would enable the site layout and landscaping to be finalised and fully
implemented.

Tree and Shrub Planting Schedule:

This details the essentially native hedge and tree planting, including Hawthorn, Hazel,
Holly and Blackthorn.

Supporting Information:

A confidential report from the Gypsy Council has also been submitted which details the
health needs of Michael Connors (Snr.) and Ellie-Marie and includes supporting

Page 17



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

An application for the part retention and use of the site as a permanent private family
caravan site (6 pitches) (57685/APP/2002/2129) was refused on 24/04/2003.

Following an appeal against the serving of an enforcement notice, an application was
deemed to have been made for the use of land for the stationing of mobile homes and
caravans for residential purposes and the parking and storage of commercial vehicles
(57685/APP/2003/241). Following a Public Inquiry held in July and October 2003, the
enforcement notice was quashed and planning permission was granted on 13 January
2004 for the use of the land for a mixed use comprising the stationing of mobile homes
and caravans for residential purposes, the parking and storage of commercial vehicles
and the breeding and keeping of horses and associated operational development. The
permission was personal to the appellant, Mr Michael Connors, only and limited to a 2-
year temporary period. The Inspector also imposed a number of other planning conditions
including a condition allowing no more than one mobile home and one touring caravan or
caravanette/motor home to be stationed on the site at any time. The temporary
permission expired on 13 January 2006.

Two applications were submitted seeking to discharge condition 4(i) of the Inspector's
decision notice requiring details of the site layout to be submitted. The first of these
(57685/APP/2004/418) was refused on the 7 May 2004 on the grounds that the proposed
stables/barn, horse trailers, garden and shed for the mobile home would be detrimental to
the openness of the Green Belt. The second application (57685/APP/2004/1083) was
approved on the 27 May 2004 which showed a mobile home parallel with the northern
boundary of the site with a caravan behind.

An application for the renewal of planning permission granted on appeal dated 13/01/2004
(57685/APP/2006/120) was refused on 27/07/2006 for the following reasons:

1. The development is considered to represent inappropriate development within the
Green Belt in terms of the guidance contained in Paragraph 3.4 of Planning Policy
Guidance Note 2 (Green Belts). Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances
provided or which are evident which either singularly or cumulatively overcome the
presumption against inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The development is
therefore contrary to the aims of Policy OL1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan.

2. The development, by reason of its siting, size, appearance and the additional traffic
generated, is prejudicial to the character, openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt
and Countryside Conservation Area. As such, it is contrary to the aims of Policies OL1
and OL15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Following an appeal and a public enquiry, permission was granted on 20/06/07 but again,
the permission was made personal to Mr Michael Connors (senior) and his resident
dependants, Mr Michael Connors (junior) and/or his wife Barbara and their resident
dependants, limited to a 4 year period and no more than 3 caravans (of which no more
than one shall be a static or mobile home) shall be stored at the site.

collaborative information from hospitals.

Supporting letters have also been received from health visitors and the Harefield
Children's Centre.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 18



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

An application seeking to discharge details of the internal layout of the site was submitted
(57685/APP/2007/2898) but not determined.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PPS1

PPG2

PPS3

LPP 3.1

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.14

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.16

OL1

OL4

OL15

Delivering Sustainable Development

Green Belts

Housing

(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Green Belt

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable18th July 2011

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

53 surrounding properties have been consulted, three site notices have been displayed (one
outside the site, the other two at each end of Jackets Lane) and the application has been
advertised in the local press as being a departure from the development plan. 15 responses
objecting to the proposal have been received, together with a petition with 64 signatories. 2
responses in support have also been received. 

The petition states:

We the undersigned appeal against new planning application for the land at Willow Farm (3116)
Jackets Lane, Harefield, submitted by Mr Michael Connors, for Permanent use of land as Gypsy &
Traveller Caravan site, Hillingdon Ref. No. 57685/APP/2011/1450.

Letters of objection raise the following matters/concerns:-

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(i) Proposal would spoil the quality of the area,
(ii) This land has always been designated as Green Belt and has never been re-zoned for any type
of housing, whether it be for travelling people or any other,
(ii) If this settlement should be permitted to remain, it would open up the whole valley to further
planning applications, which would surely be hard to refuse and cause more destruction of Green
Belt land,
(iii) In 2003, the Secretary of State said that this settlement was inappropriate but granted
temporary permission in order for Mr Connors' children to complete their education which has now
been done and for Mr Connors senior to receive medical care, yet there is still no sign of the family
moving from this Green Belt land,
(iv) The Connors family say that they cannot live in a house made of bricks and mortar and
because of their background have refused Council property. However, their static mobile home has
not moved in 10 years and when they do go travelling he takes the caravan - is he just going on
holiday?
(v) The Connors family have stated that they need to be there for the horses/livestock, but other
keepers/breeders of horses in the local area do not have caravans/mobile homes on site. If there
should be a problem, owners sit in their cars and wait in case they need a vet or the mare foaled.  If
my family placed a mobile home on land, Council would not allow it. Why do the travelling
community feel that they should be treated differently?
(vi) This is a very safe neighbourhood but a full time gypsy camp would only bring people to the
area that have no interest in making the neighbourhood better, only worse, with havoc, chaos,
vandalism, crime, rubbish dumping, environmental degradation and stress for local residents,
(vii) There has been trouble in the past on the Iveagh Close estate and a permanent site would
increase likelihood of further trouble, 
(viii) If permission granted, other family members and relatives would move in and before we know
it, the whole field would be covered in caravans and mobile homes and the Green Belt land would
be an encampment like site in Essex,
(viii) Has Hillingdon done the work of identifying new sites for the travelling community?
(ix) House prices in the area will be affected,
(x) Police resources will be affected,
(xi) Current employment brings me into contact with travellers and I feel this location is not one
where they or the local community would benefit,
(xii) Walkers will avoid this area if permission passed,
(xiii) It has been established that traveller sites increase volume of crime, traffic and violence in
local areas,
(xiv) Will be able to see traveller/gypsy site,
(xv) Area has many different animals and is more like a nature reserve which will be damaged by
gypsy site. Woodland animals might be taken for food,
(xvi) People do have a right to live somewhere but there must be more remote sites around the
country,
(xvii) Scheme just to let Willow Farm make money,
(xviii) Will each person on the site pay Council tax? More likely scheme will cost Hillingdon money,
(xix) I have just purchased a house in Harefield and if I had known this was going ahead I would
not have considered moving to Harefield,
(xx) I note that in 2007, similar plans were not approved,
(xxi) Local facilities will be stretched,
(xxii) what legislation exists to restrict usage?
(xxiii) Guinness Trust estate is a beautiful and tranquil place to live and strong possibility that this
could be ruined if proposal allowed,
(xxiv) Neighbours on estate have been terrorised in the past by gypsies/travellers,
(xxv) Past experience of gypsy children interfering with cattle,
(xxvi) Jacket Lane is a bridle path to Ducks Hill which goes back to the Doomsday Book. 'Willow
Farm' used to be part of 'Battlerswell Farm'. When the farm was sold, field 3116 was sold to a Mr
Edwards for his daughter to keep her pony. A small hardstanding was put there for a barn/stable

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

for the pony in bad weather, nothing more. Many years passed and Jackets Lane was just wide
enough to walk down with a small stream at the side. After a long while, the pony was moved and
the field lay empty and overgrown. In January 2002, a man introduced himself as 'Paul' to
neighbours and said he had bought the field for his wife and daughter to keep their horses and
would be tidying up the field and making the lane wide enough to get his car down. The lane
became wider and wider and at the end of July they all moved in and the rest is history,
(xxvii) Jacket Lane now a two lane road with cars and trucks coming up and down the lane at all
hours,
(xxviii) The settlement has grown and more young children live there who will no doubt want to
explore their own and neighbouring surroundings which could threaten neighbouring property,
given reputation of travelling people,
(xxix) It has never been confirmed that Mr Connors is the legal owner of 'Willow Farm' and that they
are still the current owners,

The responses in support of the proposal (albeit from people who do not reside within the borough)
make the following points:

(i) I have known the Connors for at least 10 years and visit Jackets Farm at least twice a week with
my two children who have great pleasure in seeing and riding the horses. The Connors are always
welcoming and very polite,
(ii) I have known Mr Connors for over 30 years and when he moved to Jackets Farm, I would see
him on a regular basis and still go there every other day. He is very helpful and very well mannered
and has a lot of time for people. I help him maintain Jacket Farm and we both share a great interest
in horses.

Nick Hurd MP:

I have been contacted by several constituents who are very concerned over the proposed planning
application for the land to be used as a permanent gypsy and traveller caravan site. The proposed
development will be in violation of Green Belt guidelines.

I share their concerns and also wish to register my objection to this planning application.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application be heard at committee.

Northwood Residents Association:

The Northwood Residents Association wishes to object to this proposal on the grounds that the
development would be on Green Belt land contrary to the UDP Part One Policies - notably Pt1.1
'To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature of the area'. In no
way could this proposal enhance the open nature.

Harefield Village Conservation Panel:

Although the site does not fall within the Harefield Vilage Conservation Area, the panel have
commented thus:

1. The layout shown in the drawing MCA-2, submitted as part of the planning application, does not
show correctly the layout of elements on the site. When viewed from the gate to the property,
instead of a mobile home parallel to the site boundary there is what appears to be a substantial
single storey building at right angles to the boundary - see photograph attached. It was not possible
to see what lay behind this building.

2. The page with site ownership details was not included with the application form.

Page 21



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The Panel objects to the application for permanent use of the object site as a gypsy and traveller
site for the following reasons:

a. The use proposed for the site is quite inappropriate for an undisturbed and attractive area of
Green Belt.
b. The decision to grant temporary use of the site as a gypsy and traveller site in 2007 was based
upon Mr Connor Snr's health needs and the proximity of local hospitals and schooling for his
children.  The children have now been educated and various members of the family have left the
site and Mr. Connor's chronic health conditions are deteriorating.
c. Having left previously, some members of the family are now returning to the site with children
creating a succession which was not envisaged in the original consent for a temporary use.
d. It is noted from the colouring of the site plan that the whole of Field 3116 appears to be in the
same ownership as the object site. The Panel is concerned that if permanent use is granted for the
object site it would just be a matter of time before the whole of the field became a gypsy and
traveller site with a significantly increased area.'

Harefield Tenants and Residents Association:

Our members discussed this application at our last meeting and we wish to register our objections
to the permanent use of this Green Belt land as a Gypsy and Traveller site.

It is totally in the Green Belt and residential use is against planning policy guidance. In our view
there are not very special circumstances shown for the Council to go against Green belt planning
policy and we therefore request refusal and a time scale for the removal of all the associated
structures present on the land.

The Council meets the need of the travelling community by providing a site in the Borough for them
at West Drayton.

Environment Agency:

We object to the proposed development as submitted because it involves the use of a non-mains
foul drainage system. No assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters have
been provided by the applicant. We recommend that planning permission should be refused on this
basis.

Reason

The site is in Source Protection Zone (SPZ) 1, which is an area of high ground floor vulnerability
which supplies an abstraction point for drinking water.

The application form indicates that foul drainage is to be discharged to a cesspool. The applicant
has not justified the use of non-mains drainage facilities in line with DETR Circular 03/99. It advises
that full and detailed consideration is given to the environmental criteria listed in Annexe A.

The application does not provide a sufficient basis for an assessment to be made of the risks of
pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed development.

This poses significant risks to the environment which cannot be overcome by a condition.

Resolution

The applicant needs to complete and submit a satisfactory foul drainage assessment (see
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/reseaerch/planning/33368.aspx).

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

LANDSCAPE CONTEXT: The site lies within an undulating valley landscape characterised by a
mosaic of woodland and farmland, with field boundaries defined by hedgerows with trees. It is
currently occupied by two mobile homes, a caravan and shed which are situated within a yard and
garden. The site is enclosed by a mix of post and rail fences, with some mature and some young
hedgerows with trees. This area, in the north of the Borough, is identified within London's Natural
Signatures as the 'Ruislip Plateau Natural Landscape Area', as designated by Natural England.

The site lies within an area of designated Metropolitan Green Belt, at the junction of Jackets Lane
(an Ancient Highway) and three statutory footpaths (ref. U10, U11 and R13), which link Ducks Hill
Road (Northwood) to the east and Harefield to the west. Hillingdon's draft Landscape Character
Assessment includes a detailed description and appraisal of this area which it refers to as 'South
Harefield Wooded Undulating Farmland' (ref.LCA D1). Several parcels of land close to the site are
designated Nature Conservation Sites of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance. There are
no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall within a designated
conservation Area.

PROPOSAL: The proposal is to extend a temporary permission to a permanent use of the land as
a gypsy and traveller site. The application includes a drawing which shows the existing field hedge
along the north-west boundary and a new native hedgerow with trees along east boundary.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.
* No trees or other landscape features will be affected by the proposal. However, the location of the
site, which is on a hillside, is clearly visible from Jackets Lane and the vantage points from footpath
ref. R13 to the east. Approaching the site from the west, along footpath ref. U10, intervening
hedges and woodland effectively screen the site from view, when the vegetation is in leaf. There is
little scope for providing additional planting to screen views across the valley in what is
predominantly open countryside.
* One of the five purposes of including land in the Green Belt is to assist in safeguarding the
countryside from encroachment (PPG2). The visual effect of retaining the mobile homes, caravan

Within this the applicant needs to:

* Justify the use of a cesspool over preferred alternative means of foul disposal, for example, mains
foul sewage system, septic tank or package treatment plant in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in DETR Circular 03/99/WO Circular 10/99 and Building Regulations Approved Document H.

* Demonstrate London Clay in the area is thick enough and provides enough coverage to protect
the drinking water aquifer beneath.

Thames Water:

Waste Comment

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application.

Water Comment

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

and outbuildings has an urbanising influence in an area which is predominantly agricultural and
pastoral. Again it is not considered that the impact of the development on the character and
appearance of the surrounding landscape can be overcome by landscape conditions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: For the reasons above, I object to this proposal. The retention of the
mobile homes and ancillary buildings/caravans is visually intrusive and inappropriate in the Green
Belt. They fail to harmonise with the landscape character and visual amenity of the area.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

Drainage - Use of Cess Pit

I object to the proposed development due to the lack of information on drainage:

Circular 03/99 provides a hierarchy for foul drainage requirements of new development. Circular
03/99 states:

This Circular provides advice on the exercise of planning controls on non-mains sewerage and
associated sewage disposal aspects of future development so as to avoid environmental, amenity
or public health problems which could arise from the inappropriate use of non-mains sewerage
systems, particularly those incorporating septic tanks.

The hierarchy is as follows:

* Connection to Public Sewer
* Use of Package Treatment Plant
* Use of Septic Tank
* Use of Cesspool only in exceptional circumstances

The site is in rural location, and the connection to a mains sewer may be uneconomical for the
development, however this still needs to be investigated as part of a wider non-mains drainage
assessment. Circular 03/99 states:

If, by taking into account the cost and/or practicability, it can be shown to the satisfaction of the
local planning authority that connection to a public sewer is not feasible, a package sewage
treatment plant incorporating a combination of treatment processes should be considered.

A package treatment plant is a more advanced form of treatment than a septic tank and should
always be seen as a preferred solution. Nonetheless, the circular proceeds to state:

Only if it can be clearly demonstrated by the developer that the sewerage and sewage disposal
methods referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 [i.e. mains drainage or package treatment plant] above
are not feasible, taking into account cost and/or practicability, should a system incorporating septic
tank(s) be considered and proposed if appropriate.

The use of a cess pit with the previously approved temporary permissions is considered
acceptable.  However, this application is now for a permanent siting, which requires reconsideration
of the preferred method of drainage in line with Circular 03/99. The circular discourages the use of
Cess Pits/Pools.

Whilst this Circular primarily deals with septic tank drainage systems, the attention of developers
and local planning authorities is drawn to the implications of the use of cesspools. In principle, a
properly constructed and maintained cesspool, being essentially a holding tank with no discharges,
should not lead to environmental, amenity or public health problems. However, in practice, it is

Page 24



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

known that such problems occur as a result of frequent overflows due to poor maintenance,
irregular emptying, lack of suitable vehicular access for emptying and even through inadequate
capacity.

The Environment Agency also discourages the use of Cess Pools for permanent drainage
purposes.  Their Pollution Prevention Guideline 4 states:

If you require a temporary sewage disposal system whilst you are preparing a permanent solution,
a cesspool might be a suitable method.  We don't encourage the use of cesspools and you might
need permission from the local authority Environmental Health Officer. In Scotland, the Building
Standards do not permit the use of cesspools.

The main issue with cesspools is down to the mismanagement which has resulted in considerable
complaints to the Environment Agency, particularly in rural areas. Cesspools require a strict
management regime to maintain safety and avoid pollution. They require emptying by specialist
permitted contractors to take the contents to sewage treatment works. These contractors can be
costly, particularly if called out in an emergency i.e. when the tank unexpectedly reaches capacity.
The mismanagement referred to in Circular 03/99 is associated with the need to reduce the
reliance on an expensive third party contractor. Mismanagement techniques include putting holes in
the base of cess pools so they leak into the ground, or emptying contents into nearby
watercourses. These save individuals money by not requiring expensive contractors, but can have
significant impacts on the environment through the discharge of untreated sewage. 

The best course of action is to avoid the use of cess pools in the first instance as outlined in the
hierarchy in Circular 03/99.

For these proposals, a package treatment plant may be the best alternative to a mains sewer.
However the site is within a source protection zone 1. The groundwater in this area is highly
vulnerable to pollution and therefore any discharges needs to be carefully considered.

The applicant needs to carry out a full foul drainage assessment in accordance with Circular 03/99
that considers the use of a package treatment plant. It should consider the requirements of Circular
03/99 and in particular it should also provide details on:

* If the receiving environment is suitable
* What level of sewage treatment is required
* How the groundwater can be protected.

Cess pools should only be seen as a last resort and may preclude the permanent siting of
development in this area. Any use of cess pools on this site should not set a precedent to allow the
proliferation of further development.

Sustainability
The applicant should be required to submit a sustainability statement demonstrating how the site
can contribute to sustainable development. In particular the statement shall demonstrate how the
applicant shall reduce potable water demand (London Plan Policy 5.15), reduce energy demands
(London Plan Policies 5.3 and 5.2) and promoting ecology (London Plan Policy 7.19).

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER:

I do not wish to object to this proposal.

I have spoken with the Environmental Health Officer in Private Sector Housing Enforcement Team
about this proposal and am advised that the site would need to comply with model site licence

Page 25



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

As confirmed by the Inspectors in considering the two previous appeals (App. Nos.
57685/APP/2003/241 and 2006/120 refer), the use of the site for a gypsy and traveller
caravan site represents inappropriate development within the Green Belt. 

Paragraph 3.2 of PPG2: Green Belts makes clear that inappropriate development is, by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. The guidance adds that such circumstances will not exist unless the harm
is clearly outweighed by other considerations and that it is for the applicant to show why
permission should be granted.

The two previous Inspectors both considered that the use was only acceptable on a
temporary basis, given the personnel circumstances of the family and the lack of an
adequate assessment of gypsy and traveller needs and plot/pitch provision in the UDP.

In considering the latest appeal (App. No. 57685/APP/2006/120), the Inspector in his
decision letter dated 20th June 2007 at paragraph 15 stated:

'Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt (PPG2, paragraph
3.2); such definitional harm is accepted by the appellant. In addition, I consider harm
would arise from the presence on site of a mobile home and touring or other caravans and
any ancillary buildings such as a shed. The site is in an area of predominantly open
countryside and so the items already on site or sought detract from the area's openness
(which paragraph 1.4 of the PPG notes is the most important attribute of Green Belts).
The developed, occupied appearance of site results in encroachment into the countryside
and some harm to the Green Belt's visual amenities.'

The Inspector goes on in paragraph 18 that:

'The appeal site is in attractive, undulating countryside, the landscape quality of which is
recognised by its CCA designation (which remains part of the development plan and so I
attach little weight to speculation about its continuance). The site is clearly visible from its
Jackets Lane entrance and its various structures can also be seen particularly readily
across the valley from the south-east end of Jackets Lane (and, I would expect, from
some of the dwellings in that area).'

The Inspector concludes the assessment on the impact upon the character and
appearance of the area by stating that the proposed development would cause
unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

The Inspector then goes on to assess other considerations. He states in paragraph 23
that:

'The previous appeal Inspector deplored the absence of an appropriate gypsy policy in the
UDP and found the Council's failure to undertake a proper quantitative assessment of the
accommodation needs of gypsies to be a matter of serious concern. The UDP policy
position is unchanged and does not conform with the more recent London Plan.'

conditions under the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960.

I note that foul drainage is proposed to be made to a cesspit.

Should planning permission be granted, please add the construction site informative.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 26



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Previously, policy 3A.11 (London's travellers and gypsies) of the London Plan (February
2004) stated that boroughs should, in co-ordination with other boroughs, assess the
accommodation needs of gypsies and travellers and review pitch capacity and formulate
policies to protect existing sites, establish criteria for new sites and identify them where
shortfalls occur.

More recently, there has been some discussion as to how demand for gypsy/traveller sites
should be assessed which has influenced changes to national and strategic guidance on
gypsy and traveller sites.

In April 2011, the Government produced a Consultation Paper on Planning for Traveller
Sites which it is intended will replace Circular 01/2006. As the guidance is at consultation
stage, only limited weight can be given to it.

In the explanation of the proposed new policy stance, this advises that discrimination and
poor social outcomes among traveller communities must be addressed (paragraph 2.15)
but that it also wants to tackle unauthorised development in all its forms (paragraph 2.16)
and goes on to advise that the Government:

'... will not tolerate abuse of the planning system by a small minority of travellers, who set
up unauthorised developments which create tension, undermine community cohesion and
create resentment against the over-whelming majority of law-abiding travellers who do not
live on unauthorised sites.'

The attached Draft Planning Policy Statement states at paragraph 4:

'The Government's overarching objective is to ensure fair and equal treatment for
travellers, in a way that facilitates the traditional and nomadic way of life of travellers while
respecting the interests of the settled community.'

The Government specifically states at paragraph 5 that one of the objectives for planning
as regards traveller sites will be to protect the Green Belt from development and proposes
greater clarity at paragraph 14 by stating that traveller sites in the Green Belt are
inappropriate development, whereas Circular 1/2006 advises that they are 'normally
inappropriate development'.

The draft guidance goes on to advise that development plans should have policies and
strategies in place for delivering their locally set targets, including identifying specific sites
that will enable continuous delivery of sites for at least a 15 year period and a 5 year
supply of deliverable sites. In terms of transitional arrangements, the draft guidance states
that if after six months of the new guidance being adopted, a five year supply of
deliverable sites is not available, local planning authorities should consider favourably
applications for the grant of temporary planning permission.

As regards the Local Development Framework which will replace the UDP, the issue of
gypsy and traveller pitch provision is addressed in emerging Core Strategy Policy H3
(Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision). This sets broad criteria for the location of sites to
accommodate the specific needs of the travelling community. Any policy on gypsy and
traveller pitch provision would need to be in general conformity with the London Plan.

The 2004 London Plan has now been replaced and policy 3.8 advises that whilst working
with the Mayor, boroughs should ensure that 'the accommodation requirements of gypsies
and travellers (including travelling show people) are identified and addressed in line with

Page 27



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

national policy, in co-ordination with neighbouring boroughs and districts as appropriate.'
This has undergone various revisions prior to the replacement London Plan being adopted
in July 2011. For instance, in October 2009, the then Policy 3.9 of the Draft Replacement
London Plan stated that Hillingdon should provide 22 traveller pitches between 2007-
2017. In March 2010, the Mayor proposed minor alterations to this policy with Hillingdon's
pitch provision target being reduced to 7 pitches. In September 2010, Further Minor
Alterations to then policy 3.9 were published by the Mayor, stating that 'boroughs are best
placed to assess the needs of these groups...'. It was therefore proposed to remove
borough specific pitch provision targets from the policy. In March 2011, the Examination in
Public (EIP) Panel Report was published and proposed the inclusion of sub-regional
targets for gypsy and traveller pitch provision in policy 3.9. In July 2011, the Mayor adopts
the London Plan and chooses not to accept the Inspector's recommendations on policy
3.9. The provisions of the policy are thus consistent with the September 2010 Proposed
Minor Alteration.

As a result of the changes to the Mayor's policy on Gypsy and Traveller Provision, policy
H3 in the Submission version of Hillingdon's Core Strategy states that the Council will
work with the Mayor to ensure that needs are identified and the accommodation
requirements for gypsy and traveller groups are addressed locally and in line with national
policy.

Therefore, in terms of emerging policy, there is nothing to suggest that this site should
now be considered as being more suited to provide a permanent gypsy/traveller site.

The two previous Inspectors were only prepared to grant temporary permission on this
site given the lack of any alternative gypsy/traveller sites in the vicinity and the compelling
personal circumstances of the applicant and his family. In considering the last appeal
(App. No. 57685/APP/2006/120), the Inspector noted that during the course of the Inquiry,
the Council and the appellant reached an agreement that the appropriate way forward
would be to grant a temporary consent for 4 years, subject to conditions, so that the level
of need for gypsy sites could be identified and properly addressed through the Local
Development Framework (LDF). This agreement was taken into account.

Although there are still no alternative gypsy/traveller sites available in the vicinity of the
application site, progress is being made to ensure that the emerging LDF does conform to
the London Plan (July 2011) that will include appropriate assessment and specific site
allocation (if appropriate). However, the numerous changes to the London Plan has
delayed the process.

As regards the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, in considering the
last appeal, the Inspector noted that Michael Connors (Snr.) continues to suffer from
chronic ill health requiring numerous hospital (Hillingdon or Mount Vernon) visits and
surgery consultations and he and other family members are registered with the Harefield
Health Centre. The children also had health problems, but the Inspector noted that the
children's below average health is not untypical of the gypsy community and although
access to health services would be more difficult with no settled base, this did not provide
a compelling reason by itself for the occupation of the site.  However, the Inspector did
attach significant weight to the benefit of stability for Michael (Snr.) close to medical
facilities where staff are familiar with his condition.

The Inspector also considered the educational needs of the children and noted that Mary
was at an important stage in her education at Harefield Community College and although
there was nothing to suggest that her needs could not be met as well elsewhere,

Page 28



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

unplanned moves would be particularly disruptive at such a stage and so some weight
was attached to this.

The last Inspector concluded:

'... the family's needs as gypsies are not unusual. Nor do I consider permanent residence
on the appeal site to be essential to look after the horses.

On the other hand, the plan policy shortcomings are a supporting matter and there is a
general need for additional gypsy accommodation in the area, notwithstanding the lack of
a London GTAA. The medical needs of Mr Michael Connors (senior) and the education
needs of Mary are particularly significant. There is no known available, affordable or
suitable alternative land for the family to move to and, in light of this, the interference in
the family's human rights would have a disproportionate effect. When these matters are
taken in combination and with the main parties' suggestion of a temporary permission, I
conclude that the harm to the Green Belt and the surrounding area's character and
appearance for only a limited time period would be clearly outweighed by these other
considerations. Consequently, very special circumstances exist to justify the inappropriate
development in the Green Belt.'

As regards the current personal circumstances of the applicant and his family, the
submitted Planning, Design and Access Statement advises that:

'In 2007, the site was occupied by Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) and his children, Michael
(Jnr.) and his wife, Barbara, Luke (aged 17 years), Johnny (16) and Mary (14). Since that
time, Michael (Jnr.), his wife and their two sons (Michael aged 3 years and Tommy (3
months) have left the site and have taken up the traditional travelling lifestyle. Luke has
married and with his wife Anne and their daughter, Kathleen (9 months) is shortly to move
into a house. Mary and her partner Michael are away from the site travelling. Mr Connor's
eldest daughter, Elizabeth (aged 22 years) has returned to the site with her two children,
Michael (18 months) and Ellie-Marie (4 months). Johnny (20) has remained on site and
helps his father with their horse breeding business.

As regards the families' personal circumstances, although the children have now
completed their formal education, the medical circumstances of Michael Connors (Snr.)
remain a significant material consideration. Evidence of Mr Connors' chronic ill health was
before the inquiry in 2007 and his condition has deteriorated further over the past 4 years.
The Inspector attached significant weight to Mr Connors' poor health and his not
infrequent need for immediate access to facilities at both Mount Vernon and Harefield
Hospitals (paragraphs 37 and 38). In addition to Mr. Connors' health problems, Elizabeth's
daughter Ellie-Marie suffers from Phenylketonuria (PKU), a rare genetic condition present
from birth. The body is unable to break down an amino acid called Phenylalanine which
builds up in the blood and brain. If left untreated high levels of this chemical can disrupt
the normal development of a child's brain and can cause severe learning difficulties. A
strict dietary regime and constant monitoring are necessary especially in early life to
ensure that the condition is controlled. Ellie-Marie is seen regularly by consultants at Great
Ormond Street Hospital and Elizabeth is visited by a nurse and a social worker on a twice-
weekly basis.'

A confidential report has also been submitted from the Gypsy Council which details the
health needs of Michael Connors and Ellie-Marie and includes supporting collaborative
information from hospitals. In particular, the evidence submitted substantiates the
difficulties Mr Connor would experience due to his medical condition from having to

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

resume a travelling lifestyle and the importance to Ellie-Marie of having a stable base so
her dietary requirements can more easily be met. This involves a special low
phenylalanine diet which avoids many staple food types, and an artificial amino acid
supplement which is quite unpalatable and time consuming to encourage a child to take.
Also, Ellie-Marie's diet has to be monitored carefully, with weekly blood samples sent off
for analysis and results conveyed back to the family with possible discussions and
modification of her diet.

Supporting letters have also been received from health visitors and the Harefield
Children's Centre. These also substantiate the health care needs of Ellie-Marie and advise
that the site is close to Elizabeth's mother, Kathleen Connors who is able to provide
support in the care of Ellie-Marie and also help to her other daughter, Mary following the
birth of her first baby. Both sisters attend the Harefield Children's Centre. The supporting
information stresses the detrimental impact that would be caused by the disruption of the
relationship and trust the family has built with health professionals by having to move from
the site. However, officers consider that the healthcare needs of Ellie-Marie do not mean
that it is imperative for her to stay at this site.

Therefore the personal circumstances that the previous Inspector considered warranted
very special circumstances to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt on a temporary basis
in the case of Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) are still just relevant, whilst the education needs
of Mary are no longer a factor. The special dietary and monitoring needs of Ellie-Marie are
not insurmountable with a travelling lifestyle and therefore justify limited weight being
attached. As a result, it is considered that the personal circumstances of the family as a
whole are a material consideration, but officers are not convinced that the healt needs of
Mr Michael Connors (Snr.) should justify a permanent approval.

However, this has to be weighted against the continuing occupation of the site. The last
Inspector made his assessment in 2007, five years after the use appears to have
commenced in 2002 and after only a two year temporary permission for the site had been
granted by the original Inspector. Now the site has been occupied for over 9 years, with
the extension of harm to the Green Belt that the use entails. The last Inspector noted that
a temporary permission would not lessen the harm to the Green Belt, but by limiting the
use's duration, the harm would be restricted and on this basis was prepared to only grant
a 4 year temporary permission. This application seeks permanent permission but even
considering the compromise of granting a further temporary permission, it is considered
that on balance, the overall duration of harm to the Green Belt would no longer be
outweighed by other factors, including the families personal circumstances, given that
previous Inspectors have made it clear that the site is not suited for permanent retention.

The proposal represents inappropriate development, the permanent retention of which is
harmful by definition, to the Green Belt and the Countryside Conservation Area, contrary
to PPG2: Green Belts, Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policy 1.1, OL1 and
OL15 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Not applicable to this development for a gypsy/ traveller caravan site.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this development.

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

This has been considered in Section 7.01 above.

The main environmental impacts of this development are considered in Sections     and    .

Due to the anomaly between existing buildings/structures and mobile homes/caravans on
site and the submitted Block Plan, MCA-2 and the application forms making no reference
to the need for any operational development on site, describing the development as
retention of the existing gypsy/ traveller site, the full extent of the proposed works is
unclear. For instance, the plan shows a larger mobile home parallel and close to the north
western boundary of the site whereas it is turned through 90 degrees on site. Also, a
second rectangular shaped mobile home is shown behind the larger one on the plan,
whereas a square shaped temporary building is in a similar position on site. Sheds have
also been erected at the rear of the site which are not shown on the plan. Despite seeking
clarification on this point, to date, no such clarification has been forthcoming.

The last Inspector considered that the site was clearly visible from Jackets Lane and the
site's various structures where clearly visible across the valley. There has been no change
in the conditions on site to suggest that this is no longer the case. The Inspector then
went on to consider the use of landscaping but considered that this was unlikely to
overcome the harm, particularly in nearer views. He concluded that the residential element
was harmful to the special character of the landscape of the Countryside Conservation
Area.

The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer has carried out a more recent site inspection
and assessment of the current proposal and considers that the retention of mobile homes,
caravan and outbuildings has had an urbanising influence in an area which remains
predominantly agricultural and pastoral. He concurs with the previous Inspector that the
impact of the development on the character and appearance of the landscape could not
be overcome by landscape conditions.

The nearest property to the application site is known as the Bungalow, which is sited on
the southern side of Jackets Lane, just over 300m from the application site. From this
direction, the site would largely be screened by the boundary hedge and given the single
storey height of the proposed mobile homes, the buildings or the use would not unduly
affect their residential amenities. From the other direction, the site is more exposed, and
the site can be glimpsed from residential properties on Iveagh Close. However, this
distance, at over 400m would ensure that their amenities would not be materially affected.

The previous Inspector also did not consider that the impact of the development upon
neighbouring properties, whilst also having regard to the human rights of the appellant,
was not so significant to justify a refusal of permission.

The Council's guidelines relating to internal floor space standards are not applicable to
mobile homes and caravans.

The area around the mobile home, temporary structure and caravans functions as
informal amenity space and the submitted plan shows a shared area of amenity space
between the two mobile homes which is considered of an acceptable size to address the
families amenity space requirements.

There is adequate parking and vehicular access to the site. No objections are therefore

Page 31



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

raised to the development on highway grounds, in accordance with Policies AM7 and
AM14 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The relevant issues have been considered in other sections of this report.

Not applicable to this development.

Not applicable to this application.

There are no protected trees on site. The application site is also sufficiently separated
from the adjoining Grade I Site of Nature Conservation Importance so that its ecology
would not be adversely affected.

Not applicable to this development.

Policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the London Plan (July 2011) require development proposals to
make the fullest contribution towards minimising carbon dioxide emissions and to achieve
the highest standards of sustainable design and construction respectively. Policy 5.15
expects development proposals to protect and conserve water supplies and resources
and policy 7.19 to protect, enhance, create, promote and manage London's biodiversity.

This application is for permanent use of the site, whereas no sustainability statement has
been submitted to demonstrate how the site can contribute to sustainable development.
The Council's Sustainability Officer objects to the proposal on this ground.

Policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires development proposals to have
adequate wastewater infrastructure capacity and advises that proposals which adversely
affect water quality should be refused. Circular 03/99 provides additional guidance to that
in PPG23: Planning and Pollution Control on foul drainage requirements. 

The submitted plan shows the two mobile homes connected to an existing cesspool. The
Environment Agency advise that the site is in Source Protection Zone 1, which is an area
of high ground water vulnerability which supplies an abstraction point for drinking water.
They object to the proposal as no assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and
surface waters has been provided. The use of non-mains drainage facilities needs to be
justified, in line with DETR Circular 03/99.

The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that the use of a cess pool/pit with the
previously approved temporary permissions is considered acceptable, as if properly
constructed and maintained, their use should not lead to environmental, amenity or public
health problems as they are essentially holding tanks with no discharges. However, in
practice, it is known that problems can occur with overflows resulting from poor
maintenance, irregular emptying, lack of vehicular access for emptying and inadequate
capacity. Now the application is for permanent use, a reconsideration of the preferred
method of drainage is required to accord with the circular.

The EA advise that the use of cesspools is not encouraged as they require a strict
management regime with specialist contractors taking sewage away to a sewage
treatment works to maintain safety and avoid pollution. These contractors can be costly
whereas this cost can be avoided by emptying the untreated contents to nearby

Page 32



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

watercourses or puncturing the tanks so they leak to the ground.

Circular 03/99 provides a hierarchy for foul drainage requirements of new development
and only in exceptional circumstances should the use of cesspools be considered. The
site is in a rural location, where the cost of connecting to a mains sewer may be
prohibitive, however this still needs to be investigated as part of a wider non-mains
drainage assessment. The lack of an appropriate foul sewage disposal system may
preclude this site from being suitable for permanent retention.

In the absence of a non-mains drainage assessment, it has not been demonstrated that
other more appropriate means of disposal are available and for an assessment to be
made of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed
development within this Source Protection Zone 1. As such, it is considered that the
permanent retention of the gypsy/traveller use discharging to a cesspool results in an
unacceptable risk to groundwater quality, contrary to Planning Policy Statement 23:
Planning and Pollution Control, Circular 03/99 and policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July
2011).

Not applicable to this application.

The material planning issues raised by the individual objectors have been considered in
the main report. The comments in support are noted.

Not applicable to this scheme.

The use of the site as a gypsy/traveller caravan site represents inappropriate development
that is harmful to the character and appearance of the Green Belt and the Countryside
Conservation Area.  To allow the use to continue contravenes PPG2: Green Belts, Policy
7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policies 1.1, OL1 and OL15 of the adopted
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). If this application is refused,
then a further report on the possibility of serving an enforcement notice will be put before
committee.

There are no other relevant planning issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is

Page 33



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The two previous Inspectors did not consider that this site was suitable for a permanent
gypsy and traveller caravan site, the harm to the character and appearance of the Green
Belt and Countryside Conservation Area being too great. They have only been prepared
to grant temporary permission, mainly due to the compelling personal circumstances of
the applicant and his family. The previous Inspectors were also concerned about the Local
Planning Authority's lack of assessment of traveller's needs within the UDP and no
alternative site's being available in the vicinity. A temporary permission would enable the
Local Planning Authority to progress the LDF and for site-specific allocations to be made
(if appropriate).

Although the personal circumstances of the applicant and his family are still valid and
there are still no alternative sites available, in considering the previous application, the last
Inspector considered that the matter was finely balanced so that a 4 year temporary
permission was considered acceptable so that at least the harm to the Green Belt could
be restricted by limiting the duration of the use, in which time it was hoped the LDF could
be progressed. The LDF has been progressed but not to the extent that specific sites
have been allocated (if required). To allow a further period would be to extend the duration
of the harm so that it is considered that on balance, the other factors, including the
personal circumstances of the applicant and his family would no longer justify a further
extension of time with a continuation of the harm.

Furthermore, the submitted plans do not show the existing arrangement of buildings,
structures and mobile homes/caravans on site. As such, it is not clear precisely what is
being proposed.

The Environment Agency also object to the absence of an assessment dealing with
pollution risks of foul drainage.

The scheme also fails to demonstrate that it will contribute towards sustainable
development.

The application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Statements and Guidance

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

London Plan (July 2011)
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon
Consultation responses

Richard Phillips 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 35



E
T

L

D
rain

Pond

Pond

JACKETS LANE

Path (u
m)

Path (um)

W
ard

 B
dy

CR

CP

´

November
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Land at Willow Farm
Jackets Lane

Harefield

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,000

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

57685/APP/2011/1450

Page 36



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OAKWOOD CATLINS LANE PINNER 

Part two storey, part single storey rear/side extension and single storey
detached garage to side/rear involving demolition of existing detached
garage to side

16/08/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 67139/APP/2011/2005

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
BLU-105/D102 Rev. A
BLU-105/D105
Design and Access Statement
BLU-105/D100 Rev. A
BLU-105/D101 Rev. A
BLU-105/D103 Rev. B
BLU-105/D104 Rev. A

Date Plans Received: 16/08/2011
05/12/2011

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application property is a distinctive, two storey, detached dwelling situated on the
western side of Catlins Lane.

This property dates from 1904, is locally listed and within the Eastcote Village
Conservation Area. It is built in an Arts and Craft style, with elevations comprising rough
cast render with a tiled roof with a circular bay to the front and a tiled roof turret.

To the rear, the two storey elements of the building are broadly "L" shaped with a two
storey element extending out to the rear at the northern end of the building, adjacent to an
existing garage and outbuildings that are set behind the rear elevation. A large single
storey (original) conservatory structure occupies the area to the south of this return,
extending to the same depth.

The building is located opposite St Catherine's Farm which is a Grade II Listed Building.

The streetscene is verdant and semi-rural in nature. It is primarily residential with large
two storey individually designed houses, generally set in large plots, with the buildings set
well back from the road.

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

06/09/2011Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There is no recent planning history of significant relevance to this application.

The application is for the erection of a two storey side extension to the southern side of
the building, a rear extension and a replacement garage. It should be noted that the plans
have been amended from that originally submitted, principally resulting in changes to the
proposed siting of the garage, alterations to the extent of the patio/terrace area at the rear
and alterations to the proposed landscaping at the front of the property.

The two storey side extension would be 3.425m wide and set back from the main front
elevation of the house by 1m. It would extend beyond the rear elevation of the two storey
element to which it is attached by 4.8m. This would be 1.2m beyond the existing
conservatory, and broadly in line with the rear elevation of Westcott that lies to the south.
A 1m gap would be retained to the boundary with Westcott. No windows are proposed in
the flank elevation and external materials would be to match the existing house.

To the rear of the house a two storey extension is proposed at its northern side, closest to
the garage. This element would be 3.5m in depth, with the width reflecting that of the
gable above. The extension would continue the existing roof form, extending out further
from the house than that existing. The extension would be finished in a smooth render, as
would the whole of the house. There would be no windows in the northern flank wall.

The gap created by the two storey extensions either side at the rear would be infilled with
a single storey rear extension, extending to the same depth as the southern most two
storey extension adjacent to Westcott.

The existing garage would be removed and replaced with a larger garage that would be
6m deep and 3.7m wide. It would feature a hipped roof with front and rear gables, with a
ridge height of 3.3m. Land levels drop to the rear of the garage and within the rear
garden.

A patio area is to be created to the rear of the rear extensions and the front garden area
would be partly finished in permeable bonded gravel to provide a parking and turning
area. Some of the front garden area would be retained as soft landscaping, with additional
trees and feature shrub beds proposed.

Not applicable 12th October 2011

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

67139/APP/2011/2006

67139/TRE/2010/49

Oakwood Catlins Lane Pinner 

Oakwood Catlins Lane Pinner 

Demolition of existing garage. Proposed double storey side and rear extension.Relandscape of
front drive with new trees and shrubs to be planted.

Tree work

07-09-2011

05-10-2010

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Withdrawn

NFA

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Planning History

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Appeal:

Appeal:

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

EXTERNAL:

The application was advertised in the 21st September 2011 edition of the Uxbridge
Gazette and a site notice displayed on 26th September 2011. 6 adjoining and nearby
properties, Northwood Hills Residents Association and the Eastcote Residents
Association notified of the application by means of a letter dated 9th September 2011. 5
individual responses have been received objecting to the proposal on the following
grounds:

1. This extension is very large and will be out of keeping with the existing house. 
2. The side infill goes against the character of the individual houses in the lane, as it will
make two properties very close to one another. 
3. The alterations will significantly alter the look of this property, architectural features and
detailing would be lost, to the detriment of the locally listed building and the conservation
area.
4. The proposed development is not in keeping with the open character of the
conservation area. 
5. The nearby houses have retained their original character and the proposed
development will spoil the unique character of this part of Catlins Lane. 
6. The development on the side of the property will go too close to the adjacent house and
will therefore lose the effect of spacious detached houses. 
7. The side development and the building up of the patio area will be very intrusive into the
next door property. 
8. As the land levels vary greatly and there are many underground streams, we are
concerned that a development of this nature will cause flooding problems within this
particular area. 
9. The Council has tried to protect the house in the past, it must do so for the future.
10. Overdominance and loss of privacy and light in relation to Westcott, creation of damp
problems for the adjacent property, 
11. Building such a tall and imposing extension so close to neighbouring Westcott would
eliminate the visual separation, and detract from the overall impression of the road.
12. The proposed extension requires significant elevation of the floor level of Oakwood to
such an extent that the full height of the building would be out of all proportion with the
existing and neighbouring properties. Oakwood's position on a sloping plot should require
any plans for extension to give due care and attention to the overdominance this will
cause to properties at a lower level.
13. The details suggest a lack of respect for the original features of the property.
14. An over-large extension that does not consider the sensitivities of the site, coupled
with the brutal removal of many of the exterior period features that give the building its
charm, speak of an application that is ill thought-out and unsympathetic to the character of
the area. 

A Petition of objection has been received, with 118 signatories opposing the application
on the grounds of overdominance of the side extension in relation to Westcott, loss of
privacy to Westcott, creation of damp problems and flooding, loss of daylight to Westcott,
loss of residential amenity to Westcott, adverse impact on the Conservation Area due to
loss of visual separation, visual amenity, terracing effect, and an excessive extension out
of keeping with the area. The proposed trees are in unsuitable positions, the extension is
too wide, and the proposal is detrimental to the locally listed building and the Conservation
Area.

NORTHWOOD HILLS RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION:

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The character of this part of Catlin's Lane is known for the detached houses set in large
plots. This development would seriously impact the character of the road and set a
precedent for other development which we would not wish to see especially as we are not
aware that permission has been granted for any other double storey side extensions to
other houses nearby. This proposed development would also disrupt the open character
of the conservation area. We also note that the side extension would be out of keeping
and that the development would give the unwanted perception of the properties being
terraced. We ask that this application in the current form be refused. 

EASTCOTE VILLAGE CONSERVATION AREA ADVISORY PANEL:

Oakwood is situated within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area, and has Locally Listed
Building status. The character of this part of Catlin's Lane is known for the detached
houses set in large plots giving an open aspect and fine views. To date there have not
been any other double storey side extensions erected to the nearby houses.

This proposed development will disrupt the open character of the conservation area. The
proposed changes to doors, windows and render will cause loss of character to the
dwelling. The front door is the wooden original and to change to aluminum would not
enhance the character of the house.
Likewise with the change to smooth render, the current finish is pebbledash.

The proposed side extension although set back from the building line will be out of
keeping with original design of the house. The front elevation with the gable and turret is
well propotioned the side addition will destroy that harmony and the character of
Oakwood. There is just a 1 metre set back from the boundary with Westcott, this will give
a perception of terracing.

The land levels vary greatly Oakwood being considerably higher than Westcott. The
proposal is to raise the rear patio area to the same floor level as the house, with five steps
down to the garden. This will result in any person standing on the Oakwood patio will be
able to look stright over the 6 foot boundary fence into the rear habitable room of
Westcott. Screening here is not an answer as that would cause loss of light to the
habitable room of Westcott.

The proposed new garage will be set on the boundary with Harewood, there is no
indication as to whether this will cause damage to any trees and shrubs on Harewood
land. A full tree survey should be requested.

We ask that this application in the current form be refused and a more sympathetic
scheme, especially the height of the patio, be put forward.

INTERNAL:

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER:

This is an attractive detached house dating from 1904, locally listed within the Eastcote
Village Conservation Area. Built in Arts and Craft style, the house is two storeys in rough
cast render with tiled roof with a circular bay to front and a tiled roof turret. The building is
located opposite St Catherine's Farm which is grade II listed. Any extension should be
carefully designed to retain the architectural integrity of the main house, the character and
appearance of the conservation area and the setting of the listed building.

Page 40



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

To the side, the scheme proposes a two storey extension, set back from the main front
elevation of the property and reduced in height. From a conservation point of view, this
would appear subordinate to the main house, and as such would not be considered
detrimental to the locally listed building, the character and appearance of the conservation
area and the setting of the listed building. It is, therefore, acceptable.

To the rear, the scheme proposes single storey extension and part two storey extensions
to either side. Whilst extensive, the proposal would retain part of the original elevation,
with the attractive stained glass window. Other architectural details such as the tile crease
arches over windows would be replicated on the new elevation. From a conservation point
of view, this would not be considered detrimental to the architectural integrity of the main
building and would be acceptable.

We would, however, query the proposed height of bedroom 4 (closest to the proposed
garage). The height of the extension appears to be the same as the main house in side
elevation, and much reduced on the rear elevation drawing. From a conservation point of
view, reduced height would be more appropriate as it would appear subordinate to the
main house.

The scheme also proposes a permanent garage structure to replace a timber shed to the
rear. This would be solid in appearance and much larger in size, sitting on the side
boundary. Given its position on the boundary, would not be in accordance with the HDAS
guidance (paragraph 4.4). It is therefore suggested that the size of the garage is reduced,
and the structure is clad in timber, to retain its ancillary and temporary appearance.

CONCLUSION: Extensions acceptable from a conservation point of view. Side elevation
and height to bedroom 4 to be corrected. Garage to be revised and reduced in size as
suggested above.

TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

This site is not covered by a TPO, however, it is within the Eastcote Village Conservation
Area. Therefore, all trees on-site are protected by virtue of their location within it.

There is a large ivy-covered tree on the south-eastern corner of the site, which stands at
the end of a boundary hedge (mainly Laurel). The hedge provides a good visual screen
between this and the neighbouring property (Westcott) and should be retained as part of
the scheme. There is also a small Wild Cherry to the rear of the house and a small goat
willow close to the proposed garage. Both trees are low value and it is likely that the willow
will need to be removed to facilitate the proposed garage. All existing trees on-site should
be shown on the plans/landscaping scheme and it should be made clear which are to be
retained/removed. Protective fencing should also be shown along the front boundary
hedge (approximately 2m away from its northern edge).

Several mature trees were recently removed from the site's frontage and the plans
indicate that five new (unspecified) trees will be planted. To avoid overcrowding this area,
it would be preferable to plant three medium-sized species of tree. 

The plans also show three proposed 'beds' within the parking area, which appear to
consist of a small tree surrounded by hedging. However, to incorporate soft landscaping
into the proposed scheme, it would be preferable to reduce the size of the parking area
and retain some of the existing lawn and/or provide a larger single shrub bed between the

Page 41



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE4

BE8

BE12

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed
buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

Part 2 Policies:

proposed parking area and the proposed new trees and existing boundary hedge. All of
these matters can be dealt with by condition. 

The layout plan shows a large area of car parking within the front garden. This does not
appear to conform to HDAS guidelines to retain at least 25% of a front garden soft
landscaped. The area of proposed hard landscaping should be reduced in size. This
matter can be dealt with by condition.

A landscaping plan should be submitted to cover the following points:
1.The boundary (Oakwood/Westcott) hedge should be shown as retained.
2.The location of three (rather than five) new trees should be shown at the front of the
site. The species (Wild Cherry, Field Maple or Silver Birch) and specification (standard
size and short-staked) should be shown.
3.A reduced-size proposed driveway (to conform to HDAS recommendations) should be
shown.

OFFICER COMMENT:

Amended plans have since been provided to address the comments of the Trees and
Urban Design Officers and some of the comments made by objectors. The comment from
the Design Officer regarding the height of the rear extension (bedroom 4) has been
clarified by the applicant as being correct in the submitted drawings, there are differing
eaves levels and ridge heights across the building, but the submitted plans are
nevertheless correct. Some of the comments from objectors in relation to drainage are not
material considerations in relation to this planning application, although the applicant is
aware of the concerns and is proposing a rainwater harvesting system to ensure that such
matters are addressed.

4.

Page 42



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE38

AM14

HDAS-EXT

LPP 5.3

neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main planning issues are the impact of the development on the character of the
house and the area in general, and also the impact on the amenities of the adjoining
occupiers. The impact on parking provision and amenity space also needs to be
considered.

The proposed two storey side extension meets with the requirements of the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions in that it is set back
from the front elevation of the house by 1m and there is a retained gap to the side of 1m. 

The flank wall of Westcott is of no great architectural quality and presents a blank
rendered facade to the streetscene. The proposed side extension would help mask this
facade, although the gap between buildings would be reduced. However, on balance it is
considered that the reduction in the gap between buildings would not be so harmful to the
character of the area as to justify a refusal of planning permission. 

With regard to the impact on the amenities of the adjoining occupiers the southern two
storey side extension would be in close proximity to Westcott. Given the largely blank
facade of Westcott it is considered that there would be no adverse impact on the
amenities of the occupiers of that property. There are two windows in the north facing
facade of Westcott, but they do not appear to be sole windows to main habitable rooms.
Given that the extension would not protrude beyond the rear elevation of Westcott and
given its siting to the south of the development, there would therefore be no significant
adverse impact in terms of loss of light, privacy and overlooking or any overbearing impact
or visual intrusion that would justify a refusal of planning permission.

With regard to the rear patio/terrace area, amended plans have been submitted which
result in a greater gap to the adjoining properties and with opportunities for soft
landscaping to be planted in this gap, there would be no adverse overlooking or loss of
privacy arising from the patio/terrace area.

With regard to the impact on Harewood to the north, there is a greater separation afforded
between the two properties, but there are a number of windows facing to the side and rear
of that property. Given the separation that exists and that the two storey rear extension
would extend 3.5m from that existing it is considered that there would be no adverse harm
arising to the amenities of the occupiers of that property.

Amended plans have been received in respect of the proposed garage which bring it 0.5m
away from the side boundary. It would therefore accord with the Council's HDAS guidance
which seeks to ensure that outbuildings are set away from the boundary so as to not harm
the character of the area or be imposing on the adjoining occupiers.

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HH-T8

HH-OM1

M1

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Details/Samples to be Submitted

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Notwithstanding the submitted plans and details, no development shall take place until
details and/or samples of all materials, colours and finishes to be used on all external
surfaces have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

1

2

3

RECOMMENDATION6.

The comments made by residents in respect of flooding, drainage and damp are not in
themselves matters for consideration as part of this planning application. Nevertheless the
amended plans introduce a greater amount of soft landscaping and the installation of a
"rainwater harvesting system" which would assist in such matters. Conditions are
recommended requiring details of sustainable urban drainage and landscaping.

The amount of amenity space retained in the rear garden would still be sufficient and
appropriate to the extended dwelling in accordance with paragraph 6.18 of the HDAS:
Residential Extensions and Policy BE23 of the saved UDP. 

The proposed landscaping (as amended) of the front garden would be satisfactory and
would include the provision of new trees to replace those that have recently been
removed. It is considered that the setting of the building would be maintained and that
there would be no adverse impact arising from the landscaping proposals.

The proposal would replace the existing garage with a larger garage that would be more
suited to modern day vehicles than the existing garage. In addition the front driveway
would provide sufficient parking for a number of vehicles whilst retaining a significant
amount of soft landscaping. This could be controlled by condition if planning permission
were to be granted. With respect to car parking arrangements the proposal would
therefore be in accordance with Policies AM14 and BE38 of the saved UDP and the
Council's adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan, Saved Policies, September 2007).

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HH-RPD1

TL2

TL3

No Additional Windows or Doors

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the side walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree,
hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and species to
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with

BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial
work should be carried out to BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS
4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard
Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing

4

5

6

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL5

TL6

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no development shall take place until a landscape
scheme providing full details of hard and soft landscaping works has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried
out as approved. The scheme shall include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
· Hard surfacing materials proposed.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. The new planting and landscape operations should
comply with the requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs' and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General
Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft
landscaping shall be permanently retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new
tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to
be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in the next planting season
with another such tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species

7

8

Page 46



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

SUS5 Sustainable Urban Drainage

unless the Local Planning Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no development shall take place on site until details
of the incorporation of sustainable urban drainage, including any rainwater harvesting
system, have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter permanently
retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), London Plan
(July 2011) Policy 5.12 and PPS25.

9

INFORMATIVES

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

Standard Informatives 

BE4

BE8

BE12

BE13

BE15

BE19

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed
buildings

Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of
statutorily listed buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:
 Policy No.

2

Page 47



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

AM14

HDAS-EXT

LPP 5.3

the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and
provision of new planting and landscaping in development
proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building
Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Page 48



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
              Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

Page 49



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Warren Pierson 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 50



Villanova

Elmhurst

Catlins
11

12

Braeside

Eastfield

Apple Yard

1

HIG
H R

OAD E
ASTCO

TE

Brendon

RUSHMOOR CLOSE

Westcott

56.4m

PIKE'S END

St Catherine's

1

16

2

Brookside

The Cottage

45.4m

Farm

Ashover

Fairway

The Old

The Moorings

Shooting Box

Harewood

15

The Anchorage

13

Oakwood

11

Inglewood

51.5m

Tresco

Linden Cottage

Butts Mead

 L
A

N
E

Willows

2

9

Ramin

Quantocks

Sirocco

Litcombe

Ivanhoe

Dungail

Orinis

LB

The Ramblers

Ingleby

15

11

Rose

1a

Purple

50

8

Bra

16

´

October
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Oakwood
Catlins Lane 

Pinner

67139/APP/2011/2005

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE HALLMARKS 146 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER 

Change use from Class A2 (Financial and Professional Services) to Class D1
(Non-Residential Institutions) for use as a Education Institute.

13/09/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 3016/APP/2010/2159

Drawing Nos: 2166-01
2166-02
Design & Access Statement
2166-03A
Transport Statement (March 2011)
Green Travel Plan (March 2011)

Date Plans Received: 13/09/2010
20/12/2010
29/03/2011

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of a 3 storey office building to an
educational training centre with associated parking. No external alterations are proposed
and the use has already commenced.

The application fails to demonstrate that the proposal would not harm highway and
pedestrian safety and would provide sufficient amenities for wheelchair users.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to provide adequate information to demonstrate that it does not result
in an increase in on street demand for parking in surrounding streets to the detriment of
highway and pedestrian safety. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies AM7(ii) and
AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

The proposal fails to provide adequate facilities for people with disabilities contrary to
policy R16 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007), the London Plan Policies 3.8 and 7.2 and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon.

1

2

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First

2. RECOMMENDATION

28/09/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 8

Page 53



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the west side of Field End Road and comprises a
detached 3 storey building previously used for offices within class A2, however, it is now in
use for educational purposes, the subject of this application. To the north lies The Manor
Public House, to the south lies 148-150 Field End Road, an office building, and to the rear
lies the rear garden of 26 Crescent Gardens. The street scene is commercial in character
and appearance and the application site lies within the developed area as identified in the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Retrospective planning permission is sought for the change of use from class A2 to an
educational training centre, within class D1. The applicant has advised that the centre
provides Health & Safety, ITC and development training workshops. The applicant also
advises that there will be up to 30 people on the premises at any one time, however, the
submitted plans show that the first and second floor conference rooms will provide some
194 student places excluding staff.

The submitted plans show that the ground floor will provide a reception area with staff
facilities, such as a general office and staff rooms. The first floor will provide 3 conference
rooms providing 99 student spaces, WC facilities and 3 unidentified rooms. The second
floor would provide the same, but 2 unidentified rooms are shown. 

The submitted block plan shows 4 off-street parking spaces in the front forecourt including
1 disabled space, while 21 spaces are shown at rear including 2 disabled spaces. 30 cycle
parking stands are also proposed at the rear. The applicant has advised that the off-street
space will be for staff and students.

No external alterations are proposed.

Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

OE1

R16

AM7
AM9

AM14

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
New development and car parking standards.

Page 54



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There are no relevent planning decisions.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

OE1

R16

AM7

AM9

AM14

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

New development and car parking standards.

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

31 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. No objections have been received however a
comment has been received advising that the use has commenced. 

Eastcote Residents' Association: 

Whilst there is no objection in principle to the change of use of this building, there is scant
information in some areas, and the disabled access is not satisfactory.

-It is stated that there are 30 parking spaces for this building, but there is no drawing to show these
spaces, nor the access to these spaces;
- There is no provision for bicycle storage;
- Any proposed provision for bin stores is not shown, nor is access for refuse collection vehicles.
- It is states that it is not possible to make the entrance steps to the building suitable for disabled
and wheelchair users, although there are lifts inside the building. This needs to be looked at again,
and a fully accessible entrance provided;
- The SPD Accessible Hillingdon states that a wheelchair accessible WC should be no more than
40m away at a given point in the building. Where a platform lift is used vertical travel to toilet
accommodation is limit to one storey. It is not clear from the documents whether the proposal is a
platform lift or not. The needs to be looked at very carefully, and preferably more disabled WCs
added to the upper floors. 
- Please can this application be drawn to the attention of Hillingdon Accessibility Officer

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 55



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

Highways:

The revised Transport statement is in response to comments previously made by highway officer.
The total capacity of the proposed educational centre according to the Transport Statement is 194,
whilst 240 pupil places are shown on the plans which is clearly contradictory to the Transport
Statement.

The Transport Statement also indicates that there will be a maximum of 20 employees at any one
time including part time and admin staff, and 100 students per session, with a maximum of 2
sessions per day.

The traffic assessment fails to address transport issues related to the total capacity of the site and
should be based on full occupancy and its highways impacts in particular parking, by providing a
detailed and robust Traffic Statement addressing the applicant's proposal for 240 teaching places
and sample sites/data to justify any assumptions.

The proposed maximum number of staff including teaching, admin etc, is twenty and the existing
21 parking spaces at the rear are to be allocated to staff, with four parking spaces at the front to be
used by visitors. The proposal being for an adult education centre, car parking demand for students
in addition to staff car parking demand needs to be properly addressed. 

A Travel Plan has been submitted for the proposed development, which is a long term strategy for
encouraging use of the sustainable modes of transport if implemented rigorously. However,
submission of a travel plan does not deal with the issues discussed above relating to
inconsistencies in site capacity, impacts of the site being used at its full capacity and sample sites
to justify the assumptions made in the Transport Statement and Travel Plan. 

In the absence of these issues being satisfactorily addressed, the proposal cannot be supported on
Highways grounds and is therefore considered to be contrary to the Council's Policies AM7 and
AM14 and refusal is recommended.

Environmental Protection Unit:

No objections subject to conditions relating to Hours of operation and deliveries and waste
collection, plant and equipment, and a restriction on the use of the premises. 

Access Officer:

The following observations are based on a site visit and desk-based assessment of existing and
proposed plans is submitted.

A well-designed environment greatly assists with developing policies, practices and procedures that
encourage inclusion of disabled people and reduce the possibility of inadvertent discrimination.

1. Accessible parking bays should be available and a minimum of 4.8m x 2.4m and otherwise
marked and signed in accordance with BS 8300.
2. The existing entrance ramp should be fitted with handrails and guardrails as the existing

Hopefully, these questions can be answered and alterations carried out before permission is
granted.

Ward Councillor: Requests that this application is reported to the planning committee for
determination.

Page 56



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

entrance arrangements are considered hazardous and not conducive to the principles of access
and inclusion.

3. To assist blind and visually impaired people to gain convenient and safe access into the building,
the existing steps should be fitted with appropriate step nosings that contrast in luminance.with the
stair treads. Crucially, retrofitted nosings must be flush, or otherwise appropriately designed, not to
be a trip hazard.

4. The presence of a glass door should be made apparent with permanent strips on the glass
(manifestation), contrasting in colour and luminance with the background seen through the glass in
all light conditions. The edges of a glass door should also be apparent when the door is open. If a
glass door is adjacent to, or is incorporated within a fully glazed wall, the door and wall should be
clearly differentiated from one another, with the door more prominent.

5. Part of all reception desks should be provided at a height of 750-800mm.

6. An assisted listening device, i.e. infra-red or induction loop system, should be fitted to serve all
reception areas.

7. Seating of varying heights should be provided and sited within close proximity to the reception,
as appropriate.

8. All signage for directions, services or facilities should be provided in a colour contrasting with the
background. Signage and lighting levels should be consistent throughout the building and care
taken to avoid sudden changes in levels.

9. Internal door widths should provide a minimum clear opening width of 800 mm to facilitate
adequate access for wheelchair users. Internal doors should also have 300 mm unobstructed
space to the side of the leading edge.

10. Internal doors should be held open using fire alarm activated magnetic closers whilst the
building is in use.

11. Signs indicating the location of an accessible lift should be provided in a location that is clearly
visible from the building entrance.

12. The principles of access and inclusion should be carried through to all teaching and 'backstage'
staff areas to promote employment opportunities for disabled people. Similarly, resting facilities
should also be fully accessible.

13. Contrary to the information within the Design & Access Statement there is no accessible toilet
on the proposed ground floor plan. The building alterations associated with the change of use
application do not include an accessible toilet facility that would cater for wheelchair users in
accordance with BS 8300:2009. This lack of provision alone could prevent a disabled person from
partaking and, given that change of use application would involve building alterations, at least one
accessible toilet should be required as part of any planning approval.

14. The accessible WC facilities throughout the college should be signed either Accessible WC or
Unisex. Alternatively, a wheelchair symbol and the use of the words Ladies and Gentlemen or
Unisex would be acceptable.

15. Whilst the classroom layout may be for illustrative purposes, it should be noted that such a
layout would be unwelcoming to wheelchair users. Wheelchair users should be facilitated to gain
unhindered access to all teaching environments, and empowered to interact with their peers on an

Page 57



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

There are no policies in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007) that protect the loss of class A2 uses. As such, the use is acceptable in
principle, subject to compliance with other policies in the Plan.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The Environmental Protection Officer has raised no objections to the use subject to
conditions that would minimise noise and disturbance to nearby residential properties.
This is further addressed below.

equal basis, without potential embarrassment whilst classrooms are re-organised. Cabling and
sockets for IT equipment etc, are likely to be installed when partitions are installed, making it
difficult or impossible to alter the layouts at a later date. It is therefore imperative to design, at this
stage, a layout conducive to access and inclusion principles.

16. Alarm system should be designed to allow deaf people to be aware of an activation. Such
provisions could include visual fire alarm activation devices, and/or a vibrating paging system linked
to the alarm control panel.

17. Consideration should be given to ensure that arrangements exist to provide adequate means of
escape for all, including wheelchair users. Fire exits should incorporate a suitably level threshold
and should open onto a suitable level area.

18. A refuge area should be provided that is suitably sized and arranged to facilitate
maneuverability by wheelchair users (Refer to BS 9999: 2008). Refuge areas must be adequately
signed and accessible communication points should also be provided in the refuge areas.

19. An evacuation plan should be drawn up to ensure that those unable to use stairs can be sure of
escape.

NB: The applicant is reminded of the duties set out in the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, with
regard to employment and service provision. Whilst an employer  s duty to make reasonable
adjustment is owed to an individual employee or job applicant, the responsibility of service
providers is to disabled people at large, and the duty is anticipatory. The failure to take reasonable
steps at this stage to facilitate access will therefore count against the service provider, if/when
challenged by a disabled person. It is therefore recommended that the applicant takes full
advantage of the opportunity that this development offers, to improve the accessibility of the
premises to people with mobility and sensory impairments.

Conclusion: unacceptable

Further details should be submitted which include the above observations and/or details, as
appropriate, submitted as part of a revised Design & Access Statement.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 58



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

There are no external alterations proposed and therefore, the proposal does not harm the
appearance of the street scene.

The nearest residential properties lie above the commercial units on the opposite side of
the road and to the rear in Crescent Gardens. The use is contained within the building and
therefore does not have a detrimental impact on the residential amenities of nearby
properties, in terms of noise or disturbance. The proposal complies with policy OE1 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Not applicable to this application.

The application is supported by a Transport Statement and Green Travel Plan, both of
which have been assessed by the Council's Highways Officer.

The assessment has highlighted some inconsistencies in the submitted information and is
not considered to fully address the Council's concerns. In particular, the revised Transport
Assessment indicates that there will be a maximum of 100 students per session with a
maximum of 2 sessions per day. However, the submitted plans indicate that there is
capacity within the classrooms to cater for some 240 students. The revised transport
statement therefore fails to address transport issues related to the total capacity of the
teaching establishment. 

The proposed maximum number of staff including teaching, admin etc, is twenty and the
existing 21 parking spaces at the rear are to be allocated to the employees, with four
parking spaces at the front to be used by visitors. The proposal being for an adult
education centre, car parking demand for students in addition to staff car parking demand
needs to be properly addressed. The likely outcome of the site being used at capacity is
that student parking would spill over onto adjoining residential streets to the detriment of
highway and pedestrian safety and the free flow of traffic. 

A Travel Plan has been submitted for the proposed development, which is a long term
strategy for encouraging use of sustainable modes of transport if implemented rigorously.
However, submission of a travel plan does not deal with the issues discussed above
relating to inconsistencies in site capacity, impacts of the site being used at its full
capacity and sample sites to justify the assumptions made in the Transport Statement and
Travel Plan and do not warrant an unacceptable development to be acceptable. 

It is therefore considered that the planning application fails to demonstrate that the
proposal will not result in additional on street parking to the detriment of highway and
pedestrian and does not comply with sustainability objectives, contrary to policies AM7 (ii),
AM9 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007).

The Access Officer considers that the building is not fully accessible for wheelchair users.
In particular, there is no accessible toilet on the proposed ground floor plan. The building
alterations associated with the change of use does not include an accessible toilet facility
that would cater for wheelchair users in accordance with BS 8300:2009. This lack of
provision alone could prevent a disabled person from partaking and, given that change of
use application would involve building alterations, at least one accessible toilet should be
required as part of any planning approval.

Page 59



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Furthermore, whilst the classroom layout may be for illustrative purposes, it should be
noted that such a layout would be unwelcoming to wheelchair users. Wheelchair users
should be facilitated to gain unhindered access to all teaching environments, and
empowered to interact with their peers on an equal basis, without potential
embarrassment whilst classrooms are re-organised. Cabling and sockets for IT equipment
etc, are likely to be installed when partitions are installed, making it difficult or impossible
to alter the layouts at a later date. It is therefore imperative to design, at this stage, a
layout conducive to access and inclusion principles.

It is therefore considered that the proposal does not provide sufficient amenities of
wheelchair users, contrary to policy R16 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), to London Plan Policies 3.8 and 7.2 and to the
adopted Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon.

The building has an existing entrance ramp, which allows access for wheelchair users.
Subject to the installation of handrails, it would become accessible for all people with
disabilities. This could be secured by way of a suitably worded planning condition, should
planning permission be granted. However, in terms of its usability by disabled persons the
application is recommened for refusal, as set out above.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

No details of refuse storage have been submitted. However, this could be secured by way
of a suitably worded planning condition, should planning permission be granted.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The third party comments have been addressed in this report.

Not applicable to this application.

The use has commenced and as permission has not been granted, if this application is
refused then the matter will be further investigated, prior to the submission of an
enforcement report to your committee.

There are no other relevant issues.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

Page 60



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above and that the development fails to comply with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007), this application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).
London Plan 2011

Sonia Bowen 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 61



10

The

16

14
8

M
O

R
F

O
R

D

14
4

Manor

12
6

13

11
0

1

PO

Post

C
L

O
S

E

12
4

Post

El Sub Sta

12
2

EASTCOTE

Post

12
0

14
6

4

GARDENS

28

25

4

16

4

7

14
2

109

5

15
4

38

D WAY

CRESCENT

18

1

15
6 15

8

(PH)

15
0

CR

CF

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

FW

FW

CW 16
0

167

17
4

127

18
4

3

TCB

LB

1

16
4

TCB

16
2

115

133

155

2

51.2m

129
131

125
143

184a

135

El Sub Sta

18
6

Post

17
2

113

Bank

TCB

Shelter

117

181

´

December
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

The Hallmarks
146 Field End Road

Eastcote

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

3016/APP/2010/2159

Page 62



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND AT JUNCTION OF FIELD END ROAD  HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE,
PINNER

Replacement of the existing O2, 17.5m high streetworks pole with a 17.5m
high streetworks pole, complete with three dual user antennas within a
shroud, an associated radio equipment cabinet and development ancillary.

26/08/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 59310/APP/2010/2005

Drawing Nos: 100 Rev. A
200 Rev. C
300 Rev. A
301 Rev. C
400 Rev. C
Design and Access Statement
500 Rev. B
General background Information on Radio Network Development for
Planning Applications
Site Specific Supplementary Information
Cornerstone: Supporting Technical Information for o2 and Vodafone

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

26/08/2010Date Application Valid:

DEFERRED ON 11th January 2011 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION .

This application has been held in abeyance since 11 January 2011, when it was considered
by the North Planning Committee. The application was recommended for approval, but
deferred by the Committee, following representations from the Eastcote Resident's
Association. A site meeting was held with the applicants, Council officers, a ward councillor
and a representative of Eastcote Resident's Association, at which alternative locations, further
away from the highway, for the replacement mast were explored. In addition, there has been
various correspondence between Eastcote Resident's Association and the applicants,
exploring the merits and/or demerits of the various alternative locations. The applicants have
undertaken further substantial review of this cell and the surrounding areas and concluded that
there are no better alternative locations within this area for the reasons detailed below:

- The proposed revised possible locations do not overcome the issues of tree height to the
target coverage area blocking the signal and also the necessity to remove trees to install the
foundation for such an installation.

- As a 25m structure would be required (due to the tree height), it is not possible for a
monopole tower of this height to be installed. Therefore, a lattice tower structure would be
required, which would need to be in a secure fenced compound, otherwise there would be a
health and safety risk of people attempting to climb the tower.

- The assertion that the current cabinets sit on Hillingdon Council land and not publicly adopted
highways is incorrect. 

- The proposal as submitted is the most suitable and least detrimental to the vicinity.

Agenda Item 9

Page 63



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1. SUMMARY

The proposed replacement 17.5m mast and cabinet installation is considered to be
visually acceptable in this location which utilises an existing telecoms site. In addition
officers have been unable to suggest any more appropriate alternative sites. It is
considered that the proposal is consistent with advice in Policy BE37 of the Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and Planning Policy Guidance Note 8
and, as such, approval is recommended.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

OM1

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION

- The current proposal for the upgrade of this existing base station site via the replacement of
the existing mast with a slimmer structure than that existing of the same height, with the
addition of a small cabinet is the best possible solution in order to provide improved O2, 2G
and 3G coverage and capacity and additional Vodafone 3G network coverage and capacity to
this area whilst minimizing (reducing ) the masts impact upon this sensitive area. 

- As such this accords with PPG8: Telecommunications which explains that the Government's
policy is to facilitate the growth of new and existing telecommunications systems whilst
keeping the environmental impact to a minimum. PPG8 further emphasizes the need to keep
numbers of radio and telecommunications masts to the minimum, consistent with the efficient
operation of the network and encourages the sharing of masts where that represents the
optimum environmental solution, it is also of note that this development fully accords with the
Hillingdon UDP policies.

- This proposed development fully accords with National and Local Planning Policy, in
particular those advised by the Council through both our pre-application and application period
discussions and through the several surveys for superior alternative options within the search
area

- The applicant has requested that this application now be determined as per the original
submission.

It considered that the applicants have provided a robust argugument as to why the alternative
locations for the replacement mast would not be feasible. The installation of a 25 metre lattice
tower, with its associated compound would be visually more intrusive than the proposed
monopole mast and would be more detrimental to the visual amenities of the Eastcote Village
Conservation Area. As such is recommended that that application for the replacement
molopole mast be approved with the following conditions:

Page 64



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL2

TL3

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub, including any off site, is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the

3

4

Page 65



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The street work pole and ancillary radio equipment cabinets shall be removed from the
site if this use ceases and/or they become redundant as a consequence of technological
development.

REASON
The apparatus does not contribute to the visual amenities of the area and should be
removed if no longer required in accordance with Policy BE37 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Before the commencement of any development, details of the exterior finishes of the
column and equipment cabins hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

5

6

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

3.1 Site and Locality

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

BE13
BE19

BE38

OE1

BE37
BE4

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Telecommunications developments - siting and design
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Page 66



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The site comprises an existing 17.5m high monopole mobile phone mast and two ancillary
equipment cabinets, located at the rear of the footway along High Road, Eastcote, on the
western side of the roundabout junction with Field End Road. The existing cabinets
measure 1.36m x 0.35m x 1.48m high and 1.4m x 0.79m x 1.3m high respectively. An
electricity sub-station building and wooded amenity area are located to the west of the
site, beyond which is a lawn tennis club. Eastcote House Gardens are located to the north
east, on the opposite side of Eastcote Road, residential properties are located along Field
End Road to the south east and Eastcote Road to the south west.

The site falls within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area as designated in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007. The land
immediately to the west of the site forms part of a designated Green Chain, and Tree
Protection Orders apply to the adjacent trees. No.2 Field End Road, opposite, is a Grade
II Listed Building.

O2 originally submitted an application for the installation of a 15m high streetworks
column and two ancillary equipment cabinets at this site in 2004 (ref:
59310/APP/2004/585). Following the Council's refusal of the application, and strong local
opposition, the installation was allowed at appeal on 03/02/05 (PINS ref:
APP/R5510/A/04/1153756).

In 2005, O2 submitted two parallel applications for the replacement of the existing 15m
high mast with a 17.5m high mast and additional equipment cabinet. One of these (ref:
59310/APP/2005/2123) proposed a direct replacement installation at the existing site and
the second (ref: 60985/APP/2005/2149) proposed a 20m high replacement installation in
the wooded area adjacent to the sub-station building, as an alternative. Despite some
local support for the second location, over the existing location on the footway, both
applications were refused by the Council's Central and South Planning Committee on
22/09/05. O2 subsequently submitted an appeal relating to the original site and this was
allowed on 06/04/06 (ref: APP/R5510/A/05/1196440). At that time, the Inspector
concluded that the proposed changes, including the increased height, would not be so
noticeable as to materially harm the character and appearance of the area.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The application has been assessed principally against Policy BE37 of the Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and Planning Policy Guidance Note 8:
Telecommunications. Both seek to find solutions which minimise the impact of
telecommunications development on the appearance of the surrounding area. Policy BE4
which seeks to preserve or enhance the appearance and character of conservation areas
is also relevant.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

It is proposed to replace the existing 17.5m high monopole mobile phone mast, which
currently serves O2, with a new 17.5m high monopole mobile phone mast (including
antennas) incorporating three antennas, to serve both O2 and Vodafone. 

An additional 1.58m x 0.38m x 1.4m high equipment cabinet, to be located adjacent to the
existing cabinets, is proposed. The mast would be coloured grey and the equipment
cabinet would be coloured green.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 67



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.8

PT1.10

PT1.11

To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To facilitate the development of telecommunications networks in a manner than
minimises the environmental and amenity impact of structures and equipment.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE19

BE38

OE1

BE37

BE4

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Telecommunications developments - siting and design

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable24th September 2010

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Page 68



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6th October 2010

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 97 local owners/occupiers, including the Ruislip Residents
Association. One letter of objection has been received from the Eastcote Residents Association
stating:

In commenting on this application it is fully appreciated that this communications pole and
equipment cabinets replaces existing equipment, although it is unclear from the application if there
will be additional cabinets. The existing pole was installed against strong local opposition, with the
main thrust of the objections being the sitting of the pole and proliferation of cabinets. The pole and
cabinets, which are installed at a T junction, are in full view of all approaching pedestrian and
vehicular traffic in Field End Road. This pleasant green area is already blighted by an ugly electrical
substation but this is generally screened by trees and bushes but the pole and cabinets are in full
view and are most unsightly.

It was understood, at the time of installation, that no other site in the vicinity was available due to
the Hillingdon Council moratorium on siting such equipment on Council land. That moratorium has
now been lifted, therefore, with the need to amend this installation, this is an ideal opportunity to
rectify a past 'error' and re-site this pole and cabinet further back in the site, generally out of public
view. Such a move will greatly enhance this area particularly in view of the fact that considerable
local time and effort have been expended recently to visually improve this junction of Field End
Road with Eastcote High Road. These improvements have included:
* Replacing the gateposts of the main entrance to Eastcote House Gardens including 'acorn' tops.
We understand Cllr. Ray Puddifoot may also be proposing further significant improvement to this
gateway for the Queen's Diamond Jubilee in 2012.
* New flower beds in the entrance to Eastcote House Gardens
* Possible improvements to the railings of the park in this area
* Bulb and wild flower planting last autumn, led by Nick Hurd MP, on the green area, to the east,
between the ugly post/cabinets and Joel Street.
* Bulk crocus/bulb planting, to the west, on Forge Green, adjacent to the other side of the ugly
post/cabinets, planned for 31st October this year.

Residents and Hillingdon Council are working hard to improve the appearance of this junction and
the Planning Department can now add their contribution by refusing this application in its current
form requesting that it be re-sited further back in the site, possibly behind the electrical sub-station.
The unsightly communications cabinets and pole on or adjacent to the footpath which are in full
view and mar this junction can then be removed.

WARD COUNCILLOR: With reference to the above application, I ask that it be put to the North
Planning Committee for consideration. Please add the following comments to the officer report.

'I have no objection in principle to this application as it offers the possibility of moving the existing
antenna and accompanying control box away from its current position, on a narrow footpath in the
conservation area, to a new and less intrusive location. The existing antenna was installed by way
of a planning appeal at a time when a moratorium prevented such development on council land.
This moratorium has now been lifted, which will allow the planned replacement antenna and its
accompanying control box, to be sited away from its current inappropriate position, and on to
council land at the side or rear of the existing electricity sub station. A planning condition for the
addition of suitable landscaping around the base of the antenna and control box, would effectively

Page 69



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located in a prominent location, visible from surrounding roads to the north,
south east and south west, and adjacent to a busy junction within the Eastcote Village

Internal Consultees

TREE & LANDSCAPING: The belt of trees on the land behind the site form part of a linear
woodland feature in the landscape of this part of the Eastcote Village Conservation Area, and
provide a backdrop to the existing pole and cabinets. The trees, which are protected by virtue of
their location in the Conservation Area, were not affected when the existing pole and cabinets were
installed and will not, subject to adequate protection based on the guidelines in BS5837:2005, be
affected by the proposed works.

It is noted with reference to Saved Policy BE38, that (1) the Inspector, who allowed the appeal
against the Council's refusal of the 2005 applications, did not require landscaping, (2) there is no
landscaping associated with the existing cabinets and pole, and (3) the application does not include
any landscaping proposals.

However, it may be possible to provide some hedge/screen planting to screen the cabinets in views
from the south. Given the location of the cabinets, there is no scope for landscaping to form a
screen in front of them, but depending on the site boundaries, there may be space to provide a
hedge/screen to the south of the proposed cabinet and a 'green' barrier behind the cabinets. Such
planting would reduce, but not avoid the visual impact of the cabinets.

If there is space for landscaping on the site as part of the proposed development, it would be
preferable for details to be provided at this stage of the planning process. Otherwise, this matter
could be addressed by conditions (see below).

Conclusion: Subject to conditions TL2 (modified to refer to the protection of the nearest, off-site,
trees), TL3, and if possible TL5 (if landscaping proposals are feasible but do not form part of this
application), TL6 and TL7, the application is acceptable in terms of Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP.
 
HIGHWAYS: The site is located on High Road Eastcote north of Field End Road which is a
classified road and is designated as a local distributor within the Council's UDP.

The proposal for replacement of the existing 17.5m high street mast with a similar height pole off
the highway will have no effect on highway land. The proposal also includes a Vodafone spitfire
cabinet adjacent to the public footpath. Encroachment of the cabinet into existing public footpath
should be avoided. Consequently no objection is raised on the highways aspect of the proposals.

CONSERVATION:  The site falls within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area. There is an
existing telecom pole and related equipment on the site, of similar height. Previous applications
have been refused by the Council but allowed at appeal.

It is suggested that the telecom pole along with its equipments should be setback from the public
footpath, further into the grass verge. This should be subject to comments received by the Trees
Officer and Corporate property (as the land is Council Owned). It is also suggested that the pole
and the equipment should be coloured in a dark shade of green, so as to mitigate the visual
intrusiveness of the structures.

shield the development from public view.'

MINISTRY OF DEFENCE - RAF NORTHOLT: No objection. The proposed development has been
examined from a MoD safeguarding perspective and does not conflict with safeguarding criteria.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 70



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Conservation Area. Previous applications for telecommunications development at this site
have been highly contentious with numerous letters and petitions having been received.

Nevertheless, current planning policy requires operators to investigate the use of existing
facilities or locating antennae on existing buildings or structures before pursuing new
sites.  Accordingly, the use of this existing mast is considered to comply with current
policy requirements. 

The principle of telecommunications equipment on the site has already been established
by the previous appeal decisions relating to this site.

Not applicable to this application.

Addressed in paragraph 7.07.

The Ministry of Defence (MOD) have been consulted and raise no objection from a
technical safeguarding aspect.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The proposal is for the replacement of an existing 17.5m high mast with a new mast of the
same height, and the installation of a new cabinet. 

In approving the existing mast the inspector stated in Paragraphs 5 and 6 of his decision
letter:

"The existing mast and ground equipment is located at the rear of the pavement next to
the roundabout junction of Field End Road and Eastcote Road. To the rear of the
equipment a large building referred to as an electric sub station and a wide grassed area
which extends to the south west and forms part of a larger area of land designated as a
Green Chain. The green area contains a substantial number of tall dense mainly
deciduous trees some 12 to 15m high that form the back drop against which the existing
mast is viewed. Such is the density of these trees that most views of the mast from the
south west and north east are, even during this time of year when there are no leaves on
the trees, completely obscured. The main views of the mast are from the opposite side of
the road in the general vicinity of the commercial premises and along Field End Road.
However, when viewed from Field End Road the existing mast is seen against the back
drop of the dense trees. 

The taller mast would have a thicker profile and would be taller than the tree cover.
However, the vast bulk of the mast would be screened by the existing trees in most views.
From those vantage points where it can be seen, I do not consider the changes would be
noticeable that they would materially harm the character and appearance of the area.
Similarly, the increase in height would not be so significant as to result in material harm to
the area. Upgrading the mast required the addition of a further equipment cabinet which
would be located adjacent to the existing cabinets. In this position, given the back drop of
the trees and the building to the north east, it would not appear obtrusive or obstruct the
footpath."

Page 71



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

It is considered that there has been no material change from the time of the inspector's
findings regarding the existing mast. The replacement mast is the same height as the
existing, with a smaller head frame. The proposed cabinet is located at a right angle to the
pavement adjacent to the existing ground equipment such that it would also be seen
against the back drop of the existing trees. Given this together with the fact that the
proposal utilises an existing site it is not considered that the proposal would result in a
significant increased harm to the character and appearance of the Eastcote Village
Conservation Area, such that a refusal could be justified on these grounds. The proposal
is thus considered to accord with policies BE4, BE13 and BE19 of the UDP saved Policies
September 2007.

The nearest residential property to the proposed development is approximately 20m away
in Field End Road, although this does not look directly onto the site. Whilst visible from
some residential properties, the applicant has submitted photomontages from a number of
surrounding viewpoints to demonstrate that the visual difference between the existing
mast and the proposed installation is minor. On balance, given the constraints associated
with this largely residential area, and given that the mast would not be directly overlooked
by the majority of properties which suuround it, it is not considered that the proposed
installation would impact on residential amenity sufficient to justify refusal.

Not applicable to this application.

There would be no increase in traffic to/from the site as a result of the application and
there are no parking requirements associated with the proposal. Telecommunications
installations are visited infrequently for maintenance purposes only. As such, it is not
considered that the proposed installation would have a significant detrimental impact on
the free flow of traffic or highway safety.

The proposed installation would be a replacement to an existing installation, which is
utilitarian in its design. Whilst the proposal would result in an additional cabinet at ground
level, it is considered that on balance, site sharing is a more appropriate option rather than
the unacceptable cumulative impact of having two installations within the area. In addition,
it is considered that the proposed reduction to the size of the shroud would be an
improvement to the design of the mast. 

Overall, it is not considered that the proposal would not have a significant detrimental
impact on the character and appearance of the area, sufficient to justify refusal,
particularly given the clear need for the installation.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The belt of trees on the land behind the site form part of a linear woodland feature in the
landscape of this part of the Eastcote Village Conservation Area, and provide a backdrop
to the existing pole and cabinets. The trees, which are protected by virtue of their location
in the Conservation Area, were not affected when the existing pole and cabinets were
installed and will not, subject to adequate protection based on the guidelines in BS
5837:2005, be affected by the proposed works.

Page 72



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

It is noted with reference to Saved Policy BE38, that (1) the Inspector, who allowed the
appeal against the Council's refusal of the 2005 applications, did not require landscaping,
(2) there is no landscaping associated with the existing cabinets and pole, and (3) the
application does not include any landscaping proposals.

Whilst it may be possible to provide some hedge/screen planting to screen the cabinets in
views from the south. Given the location of the cabinets, there is no scope for landscaping
to form a screen in front of them, which is the most obtrusive view of them. Given that the
Inspector, in his previous decision did not consider it neccessary to require adfditional
planting and the existence of substantial existing planting it is not considered that further
landscaping on the site would assist result in any greater impact than the existing and as
such conditions requiring the protection of existing planting are recommended.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

It is considered that concerns raised by the objections received have been addressed
throughout the report.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

HEALTH:

In terms of potential health concerns, the applicant has confirmed that the proposed
installation complies with the ICNIRP (International Commission for Non Ionising
Radiation Protection) guidelines. Accordingly, in terms of Government policy advice, there
is not considered to be any direct health impact. Therefore, further detailed technical
information about the proposed installation is not considered relevant to the Council's
determination of this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol

Page 73



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this type of application.

10. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the proposed replacement installation is considered to be visually
acceptable in this location, and officers have been unable to suggest any more
appropriate alternative sites. It is considered that the proposal is consistent with advice in
Policy BE37 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and
Planning Policy Guidance Note 8 and, as such, approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
PPG8: Telecommunications

Karl Dafe 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 74



L

L

E

E

C

L

C

L

C

C

L

C

L

C

L

R

C

L

R

L

E

L

E

C

L

L

L

L

L
A

A

LB

14

Black H
orse Parade

1 to 5

Tennis Club

O
ld B

arn Shops

4

G
arage

AZALEA

7

19

45.6m

6 to 10

Eastcote Lawn

3b
3a

W
A

LK

20

FB

(PH)

13

23

The Black Horse

21

to

The old Barn H
ouse

Shelter

1

43.9m

2

12

1

19

K
A

D
U

N
A

 C
LO

SE

El Sub Sta

82

PC

EASTCOTE VILLA

The Rosery

Old Forge

22

43.6m

77

48.2m

KADUNA CLOSE

17 14

1 to 12
Georgian Lodge

Peace Vale

TCBHIG
H R

OAD EASTCOTE

3c

24

20

1

Tennis Courts

2

1

FIELD 

´

December
2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2010

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Land at junction of
Field End Road / Eastcote Road

Ruislip

59310/APP/2010/2005

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

THE SITE

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HIGHWAYS LAND AT ROUNDABOUT, JUNCTION OF PARK AVENUE
AND  KINGS COLLEGE ROAD RUISLIP 

Installation of a 14.8m high telecommunications monopole, associated
equipment cabinet and ancillary developments works (Consultation Under
Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995) (as amended.)

02/12/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 61954/APP/2011/2925

Drawing Nos: General Background for Telecommunications
Site Specific Supplementary Information
100- Site Location Plan
200- Proposed Site Plan
400- Antenna & Equipment Layout
500 - Antenna & Equipment Schedule
300 - Proposed Site Elevation

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application has been submitted by Vodaphone and 02 Orange and seeks to
determine whether prior approval is required for the siting and design of a 14.8m high
monopole supporting 3 number Vodaphone antennas and 3 number 02 antennas, the
installation of an associated radio equipment cabinet and ancillary development works.

The proposed installations would be located in the centre of a roundabout nestled
between 6 existing trees. To the north west and north east of the site are a series of
detached and semi-detached houses, to the south of the site is King College Playing
Fields containing the Kings College Pavilion and the Eastcote Hockey & Badminton Club
and their respective car parks. The site and its immediate surroundings has a verdant
quality to it, is populated with trees, and is generally free of an excess of street furniture
that can give rise to a sense of clutter within the streetscape.

The installation of the telecommunication mast and associated cabinet would have an
adverse impact upon the visual amenity value gained from the trees located within the
roundabout, be detrimental to the general streetscene and to the setting of the high
quality public open spaces located to the south of the site that is designated as forming
part of a Green Chain link. Furthermore the applicant has failed to to demonstrate that
the trees will be unaffected by the development and has not made provision for their
long-term protection. As such, refusal, is recommended on these grounds.

2. RECOMMENDATION

02/12/2011Date Application Valid:

RECOMMENDATION (A) That prior approval of siting and design is required. 

RECOMMENDATION (B) The details of siting and design are refused for the
following reasons:

Agenda Item 10

Page 77



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development by reason of its siting and design would result in an
incongruous and visually obtrusive form of development, which would be out of keeping
with the visual character of the street scene and be detrimental to the setting of the high
amenity value open parkland and playing fields located to the south of the site. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies Pt 1.10, Pt. 1.11, BE13, BE37, and OL11 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

In the absence of a tree survey or arboricultural implications assessment, the proposal
fails to demonstrate that the long term future of the trees on the site can be safeguarded.
The loss of these trees  would  have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity and
character of the area contrary to Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

1

2

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is a roundabout, at the junction of Park Avenue and Kings College Road, oval in
shape approximately 28m long (west-east) and 18m wide (north-south) and occupied by a
grassed area and at least 6 trees including a mix of deciduous and conifers. The land to
the south is high quality public open space comprising a mix of open playing fields and
mature parkland trees. The land to the north of Park Avenue is characterised by semi-
detached and detached houses within established garden plots, again featuring mature

The decision to REFUSE details of siting and design has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE details of siting and design has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

PPG8
BE13
BE37
BE38

OE1

AM7
OL5
OL11

Telecommunications
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Telecommunications developments - siting and design
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
Green Chains

Page 78



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

trees, many of which are protected by Tree Preservation Orders. Trees on the roundabout
are highway trees and are, therefore, not protected by a TPO. The roundabout also
contains 4 x 6m metre high streetlights. The site is designated as developed land in the
Unitary Development Plan and the Kings College Playing Fields forms part of a
designated Green Chain link.

No relevant planning history for the site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to install a 14.8m high (including antennas) monopole mobile phone mast
incorporating six antennas to provide coverage for Vodafone and O2. An equipment
cabinet, with dimensions of 1.89m (wide) x 0.79 (deep) x 1.65m (high) would be located
1m to the east of the mast. The mast would be holly green in colour and the cabinet
green. The mast would consist of a single pole that would thicken in dimension towards
the top from a height of 11.8m to a diameter of 475mm for the top 3m.

PT1.10

PT1.11

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To facilitate the development of telecommunications networks in a manner than
minimises the environmental and amenity impact of structures and equipment.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PPG8

BE13

BE37

BE38

OE1

AM7

OL5

OL11

Telecommunications

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Telecommunications developments - siting and design

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

Green Chains

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable2nd January 2012

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 79



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Landscape/Trees Officer:

Background: The site is an area of highway land forming the centre of a round-about, occupied by
a number of trees including a mix of deciduous and conifers. The land to the south (east and west
of Kings College Road) is high quality public open space comprised of a mix of open playing fields
and mature parkland trees. The land to the north of Park Avenue (to the east and west of the
junction is characterised by semi-detached and detached houses within established garden plots
again featuring mature trees, many of which are protected by Tree Preservation Order.

Tree on the roundabout are highway trees and are,therefore, not protected by TPO.

Proposal: The proposal is to install a 14.8 metre high telecommunications pole with associated
equipment cabinet and ancillary development. The siting of the equipment is indicated slightly off-
centre in a space between the trees.

Landscape Considerations: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical
and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

· No tree survey or arboricultural implications assessment has been submitted and the position and
spread of trees shown on plan is thought to be approximate only. Further information is required
about the arboricultural implications of this proposal. This will require a full tree survey, based on a
topographical survey and an understanding of the construction details relating to the proposed
facilities, together with the associated alignment of underground services which may require
trenching close to tree roots. 
· The time to consider the impact of development on existing trees is before planning approval is
granted. In the absence of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural Implications Assessment, to BS
5837:2005, the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the trees will be unaffected by the
development and has not made provision for their long-term protection. 

Conclusion: I object to this proposal for the reasons given above. The loss of trees on this site will
have a detrimental impact on the amenity and character of the area.

External Consultees

15 adjoining owner/occupiers and the Eastcote Residents Association were consulted. A site notice
was also displayed. 2 individual responses have been received 1 seeking information on the
radiated power of the mast output, the other objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:

(i) Health grounds;
(ii) It will be an eyesore blighting green belt land;
(iii) The mast will be very visible in winter months; 
(iv) There must be a better discrete location in Ruislip Woods; 
(v) The Council are motivated to support this scheme because of the revenue stream it will deliver
them.

THAMES WATER:

There are public sewers across or close to the development. No impact piling should take place
until a piling method statement has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 80



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed installation does not exceed the limits set out in Part 24 of Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as
amended). It would not be located in an environmentally sensitive area, such as a
conservation area, where more restrictive criteria are applicable. Accordingly, the proposal
constitutes permitted development.

In accordance with Part 24 of the Town and Country planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) Vodafone is required to apply to the Local
Planning Authority for a determination as to whether prior approval of the details of siting
and design is required and, if so, for the Local Planning Authority to either approve or
refuse those details.

Not applicable to this application.

The site is not located with an archaeological priority area, a conservation area, or an
Area of Special Local Character.

The proposed mast will have no impact on airport safeguarding.

The proposed mast is located approximately 150m to the south of Ruislip Woods, the
nearest Green Belt designated land. At this distance it is not considered the scheme will
have an adverse impact upon the general appearance and setting of the Green Belt.

No environmental impact resulting from the proposals.

The application has been assessed principally against Saved Policy BE37 of the Unitary
Development Plan and Planning Policy Guidance Note 8: Telecommunications. Both seek
to find solutions which minimise the impact of telecommunications development on the
appearance of the surrounding area. 

The proposed site is located on a roundabout containing a series of meretricious mature
trees, attractive residential development lies to the north west and east and high amenity
value open playing fields to the south west and east.

Saved Policy BE37 requires that telecommunications development should not seriously
harm the appearance of the townscape or landscape. In the proposed location, the 14.8m
high monopole mast and equipment cabinet would be clearly visible to residents of Kings
College and Park Avenue and fail to conserve and enhance the high visual amenity value
gained from the adjacent Green Chain Kings College Playing Fields lying on land to the
immediate south of the site. The issue of negative impact on the streetscene and the
positive value gained from the Green Chain breaking up the surrounding urban character
will be most acute in the winter months with the fall of leaves from the deciduous trees on
the site. 

At 1.65m the proposed cabinet would  not be an insignificant sized structure and given the
uncertainty with the scheme in respect of securing the long term future of the trees and
other planting on the site it is considered that the cabinet, in itself, would have an adverse
impact upon the visual amenity of the area. 

Page 81



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The proposal is thus considered to be contrary to Policies BE13, OL11 and BE37 of the
Hillingdon Unitary development Plan Saved Policies September 2007. 

It is acknowledged that the applicant has demonstrated that there is a clear need for an
installation in this area (notably in respect of existing poor Vodaphone coverage) and
discounted numerous sites. In this instance the applicant has provided details of nine
different sites, which have been investigated within the desired search area, together with
reasons for discounting them. The Council is, however, not convinced all these other sites
are reasonably considered inappropriate. Given the issues outlined above, in relation to
the visual impact of the proposal and the potential impact upon safeguarding the future of
existing trees on the site, it is considered that the proposal in this location is unacceptable.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development by reason of its siting and
design would result in an incongruous and visually obtrusive form of development, which
would be out of keeping with the visual character of the adjoining street scene and the
high visual amenity value gained from the playing field immediately to the south of the
site. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies Pt 1.10, Pt. 1.11, BE13, BE37, BE38
and OL11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The nearest residential properties to the proposed development are a sufficient distance
not to be affected by the proposal in terms of overshadowing and loss of light.

Not applicable to this application.

The location of the mast and cabinet within the centre of the roundabout means the
scheme will have no adverse impact upon either pedestrian or vehicle safety.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application

Not applicable to this application

A tree survey or arboricultural implications assessment has not been submitted and the
position and spread of trees shown on plan is thought to be approximate only. The tree
Officer considers that further information is required relating to the arboricultural
implications of this proposal including an assessment of the associated alignment of
underground services which may require trenching close to tree roots. In the absence of a
Tree Survey and Arboricultural Implications Assessment, to BS 5837:2005, the applicant
has failed to demonstrate that the trees on site will be unaffected by the development and
the applicant has not made provision for their long-term protection. 

The trees on site complement the high quality public open space, comprised of a mix of
open playing fields and mature parkland trees, which form part of a designated Green
Chain link to the adjacent land to the south of the site and which provides a welcome
break in the general built up character of the area.

In conclusion, the proposal fails to safeguard the trees on the site whose loss would have
will have a detrimental impact on the amenity and character of the area contrary to Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Page 82



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not applicable to this application

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application

The issues raised have been covered in the main report.

Not applicable to this application

Not applicable to this application

HEALTH ISSUES

In terms of potential health concerns, the applicant has confirmed that the proposed
installation complies with the ICNIRP (International Commission for Non Ionising
Radiation Protection) guidelines. Accordingly, in terms of Government policy advice, there
is not considered to be any direct health impact. 

Court cases concerning telecommunications development, including the Harrogate Case
which went to the Court of Appeal on 12.11.04, have clarified the primacy of Government
health advice in this field. The Court of Appeal ruled that a proposed telecommunications
mast was acceptable despite a planning inspector having dismissed a planning appeal
because he was not convinced that the appellants had provided enough reassurance that
there would be no material harm to young children at local schools. This significant legal
judgement backs Government policy and clearly limits the ability of local planning
authorities to resist telecommunications installations on grounds of adverse health
impacts.

Therefore, further detailed technical information about the proposed installation is not
considered relevant to the Council's determination of this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Page 83



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed installation due to its height, prominent position, design and appearance
together with the impact of the development on existing trees, the proposal is considered
to have a detrimental visual impact. As such, refusal, is recommended.

RECOMMENDATION (A) That prior approval of siting and design is required. 

RECOMMENDATION (B) The details of siting and design are refused for the following
reasons:

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
PPG8: Telecommunications

Gareth Gwynne 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 84



127

93

BROADWOOD AVENUE

K
IN

G
S

 C
O

L
LE

G
E

 R
O

A
D

41.5m

Pavilion

125

Eastcote Hockey

TCB

41.5m El Sub Sta

139

and Badminton Club

95

107

LB

88

82

121

41.8m

89

Kings College Pavilion

92
92a ´

December
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Highways land at roundabout
junction off Park Avenue and
Kings College Road, Ruislip

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

61954/APP/2011/2925

The Site

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

FOOTWAY ADJACENT TO AUTOCENTRE NORTHWOOD PINNER ROAD
NORTHWOOD

Installation of a 15m high telecommunications pole, associated equipment
cabinet and ancillary developments works (Consultation Under Schedule 2,
Part 24 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995) (as amended.)

23/11/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 67084/APP/2011/2897

Drawing Nos: General Background for Telecommunications Development
Site Specific Supplementary Information
100- Site Location Plan
200- Site Location Map
300- Side Elevation
400 - Antenna/Equipment Layout [plan]
500 -Antenna/Equipment Schedule

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application has been submitted by Vodaphone and 02 Orange and seeks to
determine whether prior approval is required for the siting and design of a 15m high
monopole supporting 3 number Vodaphone antennas and 3 number 02 antennas, the
installation of an associated radio equipment cabinet and ancillary development works.

The proposed installations would be located at the back of the pavement in close
proximity to a zebra crossing. The land behind the site is occupied by advertising
hoardings located adjacent to the railway embankment. Due to its height, position, design
and appearance together with the existence of a large number of other structures within
close proximity of the proposed mast the proposal is considered to have a detrimental
visual impact. As such, refusal, is recommended.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development by reason of its siting and design, in conjunction with the
existing street furniture and other paraphernalia including an existing 16m
telecommunications mast would result in an incongruous and visually obtrusive form of
development adding to the existing visual clutter, which would be detrimental to the visual
character of the street scene and surrounding area. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policies Pt 1.10, pt1.11, BE13 and BE37 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

1

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE details of siting and design has been taken having regard to all

2. RECOMMENDATION

23/11/2011Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 11

Page 87



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

3

3.1 Site and Locality

The site comprises the public footway on the south side of Pinner Road, fronting an
existing Autocentre and a neighbouring set of advertising hoardings located to the north
west. The proposed mast would be located towards the back of the pavement adjacent to
the junction of Pinner Road with the High Street and approximately 15m to the north west
of the Pelican crossing.

There is an existing 16m high T-Mobile (UK) Ltd installation on the south side of Pinner
Road, 13.5m to the north west of the application site, and a 10.8m high Orange PCS Ltd
telecommunications installation on the north side of Rickmansworth Road, to the west of
the railway bridges.

Pinner Road has a downward slope to the west, with the ground levels reducing by 2m
between the junctions with Chestnut Avenue and High Street, and continuing to reduce
towards the railway bridge.

The site falls within the developed area, as shown on the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Proposals Map.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

It is proposed to install a 15m high (including antennas) monopole mobile phone mast
incorporating six antennas to provide coverage for Vodafone and O2. An equipment

relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE details of siting and design has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

The applicant is informed that the Local Planning Authority consider that a strong
justification for a mast in this location has not been provided (with reference to existing
and proposed UMTS 3G coverage).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

PPG8
BE13
BE37
AM11

OE1

Telecommunications
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Telecommunications developments - siting and design
Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus
and rail interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure
improvement in public transport services
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Page 88



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

A previous application from the applicant (67084/APP/2011/136) for a 13.8m high mast
located approximately 40 metres to the south east of the current site and the other side
(i.e.south east) of the pedestrian crossing was refused on the 15th March 2011 for the
following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of its siting and design, in conjunction with the
existing street furniture and other paraphernalia would result in an incongruous and
visually obtrusive form of development adding to the existing visual clutter, which would be
detrimental to the visual character of the street scene and surrounding area. The proposal
is therefore contrary to Policies Pt 1.10, pt1.11, BE13, BE37, and OE1 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

2. The proposed telecommunication apparatus would be close to a zebra crossing on
Pinner Road and would result in the reduction of the width of the footway to approximately
1.2m. The proposed apparatus would therefore result in substandard footway width, which
is likely to force pedestrians on to the carriageway. The servicing of the equipment will
also result in parking in front of/close to it which is likely to interfere with the free flow of
traffic and have a detrimental effect on highway safety. Consequently, the proposal is
considered to be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety and the free flow of traffic
contrary to Policy AM7 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007. 

An Appeal against the Council's decision to refuse a 15m high street furniture column and
associated radio equipment cabinet, located on the south side of Rickmansworth Road to
the west of the railway bridge (APP/R5510/A/06/2031826) was dismissed on the 13th
March 2007. The Inspectors concluding paragraphs were:

"The overall thrust of PPG8 is to encourage the development of telecommunications
networks whilst keeping environmental impact to a minimum. I conclude that the proposal
would have an unacceptable and harmful environmental impact on the streetscene and
would fail to provide a design that respects the character and appearance of the area. It
would also have a detrimental impact on the outlook from the rear of properties in Athena
Place. The lack of full consideration of other possible alternatives within the search area to
identify alternative sites or designs also weigh against the appeal. The proposal would be
contrary to Policies Pt 1.10, Pt 1.11, BE13, BE37 and OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary development Plan 1998 which seek to ensure that new developments do not have
an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area and that all

cabinet, with dimensions of 1.84m x 0.44m x 1.55m high, would be located 1.3m to the
east of the mast at the rear of the footway together with an electrical mains pillar 0.37 x
0.17 x 0.85m high. The installation of the cabinet would leave a pavement 1.6m wide in
front of it for pedestrian use. The mast would be silver grey in colour and the cabinet and
pillar dark green. The mast would consist of a single pole that would thicken in dimension
towards the top from a height of 12.4m to a diameter of 475mm for the top 2.6m.

67084/APP/2011/136 Footway Adjacent To Autocentre Northwood Pinner Road Northwood

Installation of a 13.8m high telecommunications pole, associated equipment cabinet and
ancillary developments works (Consultation Under Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995) (as amended.)

15-03-2011Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 89



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

telecommunications proposals should minimise environmental impact.

On balance, I consider that the need for the proposal and lack of evidence of harm to
health do not outweigh the visual harm to the streetscene, the harm to the living
conditions of the residents of Athena Place and the lack of full consideration of
alternatives for provision in this area. For the reasons given above and having regard to
all other matters raised, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed."

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.10

PT1.11

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To facilitate the development of telecommunications networks in a manner than
minimises the environmental and amenity impact of structures and equipment.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PPG8

BE13

BE37

AM11

OE1

Telecommunications

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Telecommunications developments - siting and design

Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus and rail
interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure improvement in public
transport services

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

167 adjoining owner/occcupiers, the Northwood Residents Association and the Northwood Hills
Residents Association were consulted. 7 individual responses have been received objecting to the
proposal on the following grounds:

(i) The proposed mast would be detrimental to health with its location in a high density residential
area;
(ii) There are ample number of masts in the area already, coverage is extremely good, the
additional mast is wholly unnecessary;
(iii) The previous application by the applicant for a mast at this site was refused on visual amenity
grounds and this mast is still higher, so this same reasons of refusal must apply; 

Page 90



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

The proposed installation does not exceed the limits set out in Part 24 of Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as
amended). It would not be located in an environmentally sensitive area, such as a
conservation area, where more restrictive criteria are applicable. Accordingly, the proposal
constitutes permitted development.

In accordance with Part 24 of the Town and Country planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) Vodafone is required to apply to the Local
Planning Authority for a determination as to whether prior approval of the details of siting
and design is required and, if so, for the Local Planning Authority to either approve or
refuse those details.

Not applicable to this application.

The site is not located with an archaeological priority area, the green belt or within a
conservation area. The site lies opposite the Old Northwood Area of Special Local
Character and consideration of the visual impact upon the area has been provided by the
Conservation Team (see section 6 of the report).

The proposed mast will have no impact on airport safeguarding.

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS: The Highway officers comments are covered in Section 7.10.

CONSERVATION:

Background: There has been previous refusal re the above proposal based on the location and
resulting highway issues. The structure has been relocated further to the north-west, closer to the
hoarding and trees, as previously advised. It is, however, now adjacent to another mast, lamp posts
and other street furniture. This would add to the visual clutter and as such would appear intrusive to
the streetscape and locality of the area.

Whilst the location of the mast would not have an impact on the character and appearance of the
ASLC, it would be located at a highly visible street junction and would be considered detrimental to
the appearance of the area.

Recommendation: It is felt that the existing pole is either reused or removed in order to ensure that
the character of the area is not affected detrimentally.

CONCLUSION: Unacceptable at present location.

(iv) The scheme would reduce the pavement to approximately 1.2m and to 0.65m when cabinet
doors are opened, resulting in pedestrians walking in the highway, which would prejudice highway
and pedestrian safety;
(v) The mast and equipment would change my view of the skyline from my house and its location
within the zig zag lines of the zebra crossing means its an unsuitable location for maintenance
purposes;
(vi) The mast would prejudice future redevelopment of the Autocentre for residential use;
(vii) The mast should be sited in the woodland between Ivy Walk and Highfield Crescent or the
grassy area opposite.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 91



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.06

7.07

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed mast is not located within and will not be visible from the Green Belt.

No environmental impact resulting from the proposals.

The application has been assessed principally against Saved Policy BE37 of the Unitary
Development Plan and Planning Policy Guidance Note 8: Telecommunications. Both seek
to find solutions which minimise the impact of telecommunications development on the
appearance of the surrounding area. Also relevant is the recent planning history for similar
telecommunications apparatus adjacent to this site.

The proposed site is located opposite a road junction and a mixture of uses including a
public house, commercial units on the ground floor with residential above and a couple of
two storey residential properties. Beyond these properties, on the main Pinner Road
frontage, are similar mix of uses on the High Street.

Saved Policy BE37 requires that telecommunications development should not seriously
harm the appearance of the townscape or landscape. In the proposed location, the 15m
metre high monopole mast and equipment cabinet would be clearly visible to users of both
Pinner Road and High Road and other surrounding roads and properties. This would be
further accentuated by the fact that the mast is located towards the top of a slope on
Pinner Road which would accentuate its height and it would be significantly taller than the
8m high railway bridge and the nearby streetlights. Combined with its height, the proposed
design of the mast, being approximately 0.3m in diameter expanding to a shroud diameter
of 0.5m for a 4.5m section at the top of the mast, would not reflect that of the surrounding
street furniture appearing significantly more bulky within the street scene. At 1.55 metres,
the proposed cabinet would be comparable in height to some adults. The sizeable
equipment cabinet is considered to significantly add to the overall impact of the
installation, drawing attention to the mast and adding to its visual impact. Furthermore, the
cabinet would also appear incongruous with nearby structures of a similar type and
purpose, being a different colour and greater in bulk, which would further draw attention to
the installation and add to the street clutter along this part of Pinner Road.

Whilst a monopole design has been chosen to mimic the design of nearby street lights, it
is considered that the proposed mast would stand out and be at odds with the shorter
street light poles. At 15m high, the proposed mast would be taller than the nearby 10m
high streetlights. In addition, the proposed mast would be significantly bulkier than both
the existing mast and nearby street lighting columns, particularly at the top of the pole,
where the 6 antennae would be housed.

In addition, the proposed mast would be located only 13.5 metres away from the existing
T-Mobile mast, 5.5 metres away from an existing light/beacon column and 7.3m from an
existing street light column. The current proposal would result in 5 equipment cabinets,
two masts, one street lighting column, one beacon/light column associated with the zebra
crossing, two very large illuminated advertisement hoardings and various street signs and
posts all within a 53m stretch of highway. It is considered that the close proximity to the
existing antenna and its cabinets and the other equipment and paraphernalia would result
in an unacceptably cluttered appearance to the street scene within the immediate area.
This would have an overbearing impact on this part of Pinner Road. The proposal is thus
considered to be contrary to Policies BE13 and BE37 of the Hillingdon Unitary
development Plan Saved Policies September 2007. 

It is acknowledged that the proposal would house antennae for two service providers and

Page 92



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

that PPG8 encourages mast sharing in order to reduce the number of installations and
associated impacts. However, this is not considered to outweigh the detrimental
environmental impacts which would arise from the proposal in terms of its location, bulk
and height.

It is also acknowledged that the applicant has investigated and discounted other sites in
this area and discounted numerous sites. In this instance the applicant has provided
details of twelve different sites, which have been investigated within the desired search
area, together with reasons for discounting them. 

The applicant has also provided existing and proposed UMTS 3G coverage diagrams.
Officers assessment of this is that this proposal provides somewhat limited benefits with
regard to improving 3G phone coverage. Should the Council's refusal go to appeal, an
infornmative is recommended to highlight this matter.

However, given the issues outlined above, in relation to the visual impact of the proposal,
it is considered that the proposal in this location is unacceptable.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development by reason of its siting and
design would result in an incongruous and visually obtrusive form of development, which
would be out of keeping with the visual character of the adjoining street scene. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies Pt 1.11, BE13, BE37, and OE1 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan.

The nearest residential properties to the proposed development are on the opposite side
of Pinner Road and of a sufficient distance not to be affected by the proposal in terms of
overshadowing and loss of light.

Not applicable to this application.

The proposed telecommunication apparatus remains in close proximity to a zebra
pedestrian crossing. However this revised scheme addresses the previous reason of
refusal on highway grounds by locating the mast a greater distance away from the zebra
crossing (15 metres as opposed to 6 metres with the previous scheme) and likewise the
cabinet (approximately 12 metres away as opposed 3.2m metre away with the previous
scheme) thereby reducing the potential for a cluster of pedestrians waiting to cross spilling
onto the highway as a result of the reduction in the width of the pavement. The applicant
has also provided further details with this application of the limited duration and low
number of maintenance visits in a month and thereby times when the cabinet doors will be
open and causing a practical pedestrian obstacle.

The location of the mast immediately upon a junction of two classified road also removes
the possibility service vehicles will park in front of/close to telecommunication equipment.

According the proposals are considered not to be detrimental to highway and pedestrian
safety and the free flow of traffic and comply with Policy AM7 of the UDP Saved Policies
September 2007.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Page 93



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

HEALTH ISSUES

In terms of potential health concerns, the applicant has confirmed that the proposed
installation complies with the ICNIRP (International Commission for Non Ionising
Radiation Protection) guidelines. Accordingly, in terms of Government policy advice, there
is not considered to be any direct health impact. 

Court cases concerning telecommunications development, including the Harrogate Case
which went to the Court of Appeal on 12.11.04, have clarified the primacy of Government
health advice in this field. The Court of Appeal ruled that a proposed telecommunications
mast was acceptable despite a planning inspector having dismissed a planning appeal
because he was not convinced that the appellants had provided enough reassurance that
there would be no material harm to young children at local schools. This significant legal
judgement backs Government policy and clearly limits the ability of local planning
authorities to resist telecommunications installations on grounds of adverse health
impacts.

Therefore, further detailed technical information about the proposed installation is not
considered relevant to the Council's determination of this application.

Points (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vii) have been addressed in the report. With regard to point
(vi) the redevelopment of adjoining sites will need to be considered on their own planning
merits and in the light of the Council's policies and standards.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

HEALTH ISSUES

In terms of potential health concerns, the applicant has confirmed that the proposed
installation complies with the ICNIRP (International Commission for Non Ionising
Radiation Protection) guidelines. Accordingly, in terms of Government policy advice, there
is not considered to be any direct health impact. 

Recent court cases concerning telecommunications development, including the Harrogate
Case which went to the Court of Appeal on 12.11.04, have clarified the primacy of
Government health advice in this field. The Court of Appeal ruled that a proposed

Page 94



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

telecommunications mast was acceptable despite a planning inspector having dismissed a
planning appeal because he was not convinced that the appellants had provided enough
reassurance that there would be no material harm to young children at local schools. This
significant legal judgement backs Government policy and clearly limits the ability of local
planning authorities to resist telecommunications installations close to schools or houses
on grounds of any adverse health impacts.

Therefore, further detailed technical information about the proposed installation is not
considered relevant to the Council's determination of this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed installation due to its height, prominent position, design and appearance
together with the existence of a large number of other structures within close proximity of
the proposed mast the proposal is considered to have a detrimental visual impact. As
such, refusal, is recommended.

RECOMMENDATION (A) That prior approval of siting and design is required. 

RECOMMENDATION (B) The details of siting and design are refused for the following
reason:

Page 95



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
PPG8: Telecommunications

Gareth Gwynne 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 96



4

130

Court

158

8

10

2

7

PH

170

TCB

House

10

3

4

64.0m

15

64.9m

116

MP 13.5

159

9

142

118

13

19

27

El

9

14
6

3

5

164

ATHENA PLACE

2

Court

11

SL

162

23

to

132a

NORTHWOOD HILLS

136

51
15

Works

Vincent

12

39

to

C
H

E
S

TN
U

T 
AV

E
N

U
E

65.8m

18

6

Zettler

SL

6

27

172

12 8

2

SL

63.9m

17

5

7

4

James

178

37

126

8

132

LB

13

1

M
A

N
O

R
 C

O
TT

A
G

E
S

CKMANSWORTH ROAD

LE
E

S
 A

V
E

N
U

E

Sub Sta

1

1
5W

A
T

K
IN

S
 C

L
O

S
E

7 6 &

CR

Ward Bdy

CR

C
F

FW

C
F

CW

FW

C
W

Und

FW

´

December
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Footway adjacent to Autocentre 
Northwood, Pinner Road

Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

67084/APP/2011/2897

The Site

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee – 10th January 2012 
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Report of the Head of Planning, Trading Standards and  
Environmental Protection 

S.106/278 PLANNING AGREEMENTS - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING 
REPORT

SUMMARY 

This report provides financial information on s106 and s278 agreements in the North 
Planning Committee area up to 30 September 2011 where the Council has received 
and holds funds. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Members note the contents of this report. 

INFORMATION 

1. Circular 05/05 and the accompanying best practice guidance requires local 
planning authorities to consider how they can inform members and the public of 
progress in the allocation, provision and implementation of obligations whether 
they are provided by the developer in kind or through a financial contribution. 

2. The information contained in this report was reported to Cabinet on 15 December 
2011 and updates the information received by Cabinet in September 2011.  The 
attached Appendix 1 provides updated financial information on s106 and s278 
agreements in the North Planning Committee area up to 30 September 2011, 
where the Council has received and holds funds. 

3. Appendix 1 shows the movement of income and expenditure taking place during 
the financial year.  The agreements are listed under Cabinet portfolio headings.  
Text that is highlighted in bold indicates key changes since the previous report of 
October 2011 to the Planning Committee.  Figures shown in bold under the 
column headed ‘Total income as at 30/09/11’ indicate new income received.  
Agreements asterisked under the column headed ‘case ref’ are those where the 
Council holds funds but is unable to spend for a number of reasons.  These 
include cases where the funds are held as a returnable security deposit for works 
to be undertaken by the developer and those where the expenditure is 
dependant on other bodies such as transport operators.  In cases where 
schemes have been completed and residual balances refunded, the refund 
amount is either the amount listed in the “Balance of Funds” column or where the 
amount listed in this column is zero the difference between the amounts listed in 
the columns titled “Total Income as at 31/06/11” and “Total Income as at 
30/09/11”. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 99



North Planning Committee – 10th January 2012 
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Members should note that in the Appendix, the ‘balances of funds’ held include 
funds that may already be committed for projects such as affordable housing and 
school expansion projects.  Expenditure must be in accordance with the legal 
parameters of the individual agreements and must also serve a planning purpose 
and operate in accordance with legislation and Government guidance in the form 
of Circular 05/2005. The Council has adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance 
for Planning Obligations that provides the framework in which the Council will 
operate. 

5. Members should also note that the listed “balances of funds”, i.e. the difference 
between income received and expenditure, is not a surplus.  As explained in a 
previous report, a majority of the funds is linked to projects that are already 
underway or programmed but have not been drawn down against the relevant 
s106 (or s.278) cost centre.  The column labelled “balance spendable not 
allocated” shows the residual balance of funds after taking into account funds 
that the Council is unable to spend and those that it has committed to projects. 

Financial implications 

6. This report provides information on the financial status on s106 and s278 
agreements up to 30 September 2011.  The recommendation to note has no 
financial implications.   

CORPORATE CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 

Legal
It is a requirement of the District Audit report into planning obligations and the 
Monitoring Officers report that regular financial statements are prepared. 

EXTERNAL CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 

There are no external consultations required on the contents of this report. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

ODPM Circular 05/2005 ‘Planning Obligations’ 
District Auditor’s “The Management of Planning Obligations” Action Plan May 1999 
Monitoring Officers Report January 2001 
Cabinet Report December 2002 / March 2003 / October 2003 / January 2004 / June 
2004 / September 2004 / November 2004 / March 2005 / July 2005 / October 2005 / 
December 2005 / March 2006 / July 2006 / Sept 2006 / November 2006 / March 2007 / 
July 2007 / September 2007 / December 2007 / March 2008 / June 2008 / September 
2008 / December 2008 / March 2009/ June 2009 / September 2009 / December 2009 / 
March 2010/ June 2010/ September 2010 / December 2010/ March 2011/ June 2011/ 
September 2011/ December 2011 

Page 100



North Planning Committee – 10th January 2012 
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document Adopted July 2008. 

Contact Officer: NIKKI WYATT   Telephone No: 01895 250230 

Page 101



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
78

 

   
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

Y
C

L
IN

G

P
T

27
8/

46
/1

35
*3

2
N

or
th

w
oo

d
10

A
 S

an
dy

 L
od

ge
 W

ay
, N

or
th

w
oo

d 
   

54
67

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

2/
54

7,
45

8.
07

7,
45

8.
07

2,
45

8.
00

2,
45

8.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
07

0.
00

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f v
is

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 S
an

dy
 L

od
ge

 W
ay

 &
 

W
oo

dr
id

ge
 W

ay
.  

E
C

U
 fe

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
la

im
ed

 a
nd

 £
5,

00
0 

se
cu

rit
y 

re
m

ai
ns

. W
or

ks
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

12
 m

on
th

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

er
io

d,
 e

nd
ed

 1
6 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

. F
in

al
 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

.  
S

ec
ur

ity
 h

el
d 

to
 p

ar
t o

ff
se

t 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 is

 b
ei

ng
 s

ou
gh

t v
ia

 
le

ga
l p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
.

P
T

27
8/

63
/1

75
A

   
   

  
*4

9
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

B
F

P
O

, R
.A

.F
 N

or
th

ol
t 

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

20
91

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

£5
k 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

de
po

si
t f

or
 th

e 
du

e 
an

d 
pr

op
er

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

or
ks

 a
t t

he
 W

hi
te

 H
ou

se
 G

at
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
S

ig
na

ls
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

in
 

op
er

at
io

n.
  C

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
ith

in
 1

2 
m

on
th

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
er

io
d.

 D
at

e 
of

 fi
na

l c
om

pl
et

io
n 

to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
.  

P
T

/2
78

/6
4/

17
3

E
as

tc
ot

e 
&

 
E

as
t R

ui
sl

ip
R

.A
.F

. E
as

tc
ot

e 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

19
,2

00
.0

0
19

,2
00

.0
0

12
,2

01
.1

3
12

,2
01

.1
3

0.
00

6,
99

8.
87

0.
00

E
ng

in
ee

rs
 fe

es
 p

ai
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 th
e 

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

se
cu

re
 a

cc
es

s 
w

or
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
is

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n.

 W
ai

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
in

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 E
lm

 A
ve

/L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

 
ju

nc
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
en

di
ng

. E
lm

 A
ve

 P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l p

en
di

ng
.(

£5
,5

00
) 

de
si

gn
 fe

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

pl
us

 
fu

rt
he

r 
£6

,7
00

 fo
r 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 fo

ot
pa

th
 w

or
ks

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t b

y 
LB

H
. 

£7
,5

00
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
fe

es
 c

la
im

ed
. F

un
ds

 s
pe

nt
 to

w
ar

ds
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 fo

ot
pa

th
 w

or
ks

. F
ur

th
er

 £
5,

00
0 

se
cu

rit
y 

de
po

si
t f

or
 

pr
op

er
 e

xe
cu

tio
n 

of
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

or
ks

.

P
T

/2
78

/7
2/

23
1A

   
   

   
   

   
*6

6
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
R

.A
.F

 W
es

t R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 P

ar
k)

 
D

es
ig

n 
ch

ec
k 

on
 S

27
8 

D
es

ig
ns

 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

53
,9

86
.5

7
53

,9
86

.5
7

27
,4

86
.5

7
27

,4
86

.5
7

0.
00

26
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
F

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

s.
 P

el
ic

an
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

an
d 

si
gn

al
s 

on
 L

on
g 

La
ne

. S
27

8 
ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l 

pe
nd

in
g.

F
ur

th
er

 £
18

,0
00

 r
et

ur
na

bl
e 

de
po

si
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
re

in
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
em

po
ra

ry
 c

ro
ss

ov
er

 o
n 

A
ly

sh
am

 D
riv

e.
 

F
ur

th
er

 fe
es

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

fe
es

 a
nd

 tr
af

fic
 

or
de

rs
. S

pe
nd

 to
w

ar
ds

 fe
es

 &
 in

sp
ec

tio
n.

P
T

/2
78

/7
3

S
ou

th
 R

ui
sl

ip
R

.A
.F

 N
or

th
ol

t.,
 S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

M
ai

n 
G

at
e 

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

13
21

2,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

0.
00

F
ee

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fo

r 
de

si
gn

 c
he

ck
s.

 J
un

ct
io

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t 
W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d/

 B
rid

ge
w

at
er

 R
oa

d.
 S

27
8 

ag
re

em
en

t a
nd

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l p

en
di

ng
.

P
T

/2
78

/7
5/

21
8A

H
ar

ef
ie

ld
T

he
 H

ar
ef

ie
ld

 A
ca

de
m

y,
 H

ar
ef

ie
ld

 
11

09
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
82

5
72

,0
11

.0
8

72
,0

11
.0

8
48

,3
09

.9
9

46
,5

87
.9

9
3,

33
8.

40
23

,7
01

.0
9

0.
00

F
ee

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fo

r 
de

si
gn

 c
he

ck
s.

 A
lte

ra
tio

n 
to

 A
ca

de
m

y 
en

tr
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
.S

27
8 

ag
re

em
en

t a
nd

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l p

en
di

ng
 . 

fe
es

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
de

si
gn

 c
he

ck
s 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
. £

68
,0

11
.0

8 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fo

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 o

n 
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
R

oa
d.

S
ch

em
e 

co
m

p
le

te
, 

aw
ai

ti
n

g
 in

vo
ic

es
.

P
T

/2
78

/7
7/

19
7 

   
   

   
  

*6
2

R
ui

sl
ip

 M
an

or
W

in
dm

ill
 H

ill
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
, P

em
br

ok
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
 1

19
24

/A
P

P
/2

63
2

24
,0

00
.0

0
24

,0
00

.0
0

1,
00

0.
00

1,
00

0.
00

0.
00

23
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
F

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

s 
(£

1,
00

0)
. £

23
,0

00
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 

a 
se

cu
rit

y 
de

po
si

t t
o 

en
su

re
 w

or
ks

 a
re

 c
ar

rie
d 

at
 to

 a
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

st
an

da
rd

. £
1,

00
0 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

fe
es

 c
la

im
ed

.

P
T

/2
78

/7
8/

23
8G

   
*7

6
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

m
r 

M
ill

 W
or

ks
, B

ur
y 

S
tr

ee
t, 

R
ui

sl
ip

 
61

57
/A

P
P

/2
00

9/
20

69
19

,7
82

.0
0

19
,7

82
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
19

,7
82

.0
0

0.
00

F
ee

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fo

r 
de

si
gn

 c
he

ck
s 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

. 
£5

,0
00

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 a
 s

ec
ur

ity
 d

ep
os

it 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 w
or

ks
 

ar
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t t

o 
a 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

st
an

da
rd

.

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
78

  S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
20

3,
43

7.
72

20
3,

43
7.

72
91

,4
55

.6
9

89
,7

33
.6

9
3,

33
8.

40
11

1,
98

2.
03

0.
00

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
06

   
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

Y
C

L
IN

G

P
T

/2
5/

56
*2

4
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

J 
S

ai
ns

bu
ry

, 1
1 

Lo
ng

 D
riv

e,
 R

ui
sl

ip
  

33
66

7/
T

/9
7/

06
84

 
37

,4
25

.0
9

37
,4

25
.0

9
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
37

,4
25

.0
9

0.
00

H
ig

hw
ay

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

si
te

. L
eg

al
 a

dv
ic

e 
st

at
ed

 th
at

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

im
e 

th
at

 h
as

 e
la

ps
ed

, i
t w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

ou
t S

ai
ns

bu
ry

's
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ut

ili
se

 th
es

e 
fu

nd
s 

fo
r 

tr
af

fic
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

at
 th

at
 ju

nc
tio

n 
to

 c
om

pl
em

en
t c

ur
re

nt
 

w
or

ks
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 fo

r 
th

at
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 A

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 la

nd
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 S
ai

ns
bu

ry
's

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

as
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ig
hw

ay
 fo

r 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 b
e 

fe
as

ib
le

.  
T

ra
ff

ic
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 fu

lly
 fu

nd
ed

. O
ff

ic
er

s 
in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
tie

d 
in

to
 1

14
 b

us
 

ro
ut

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
E

xc
es

s 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 F

in
al

 A
cc

ou
nt

. 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 102



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
P

T
/7

6/
11

9
N

or
th

w
oo

d
La

nd
 a

t 6
4 

D
uc

ks
 H

ill
 R

oa
d 

N
or

th
w

oo
d/

 2
69

00
L/

99
/1

07
7

35
,2

53
.5

6
35

,2
53

.5
6

28
,1

19
.1

5
25

,2
26

.2
3

2,
89

2.
92

7,
13

4.
41

0.
00

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
sp

ee
d 

ca
m

er
a,

 a
nt

i-s
ki

d 
su

rf
ac

e 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
ro

ad
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

in
 D

uc
ks

 H
ill

 R
oa

d.
 S

pe
ed

 c
am

er
a 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

in
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 a

s 
th

e 
ac

ci
de

nt
 r

at
e 

in
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 T
fL

. D
ee

d 
of

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

d.
si

te
 in

cl
ud

ed
ed

 in
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

ct
iv

at
ed

 s
ig

n 
(V

A
S

) 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 O

ff
ic

er
s 

lo
ok

in
g 

in
to

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f '
D

riv
er

 F
ee

db
ac

k 
S

ig
n'

.  
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

du
e 

S
pr

in
g 

20
07

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

. 
Q

uo
te

s 
be

in
g 

so
ug

ht
 w

ith
 th

e 
vi

ew
 to

 p
os

si
bl

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f 
si

gn
s.

 In
te

re
st

 a
cc

ru
ed

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s.

 U
til

iti
es

 w
or

ks
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 N

ov
 0

8.
 S

ch
em

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 fo

r 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
pr

il/
M

ay
 2

01
0.

S
pe

nd
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

nt
i s

ki
d 

an
d 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 w

or
k.

 V
A

S
 s

ig
n

s 
in

st
al

le
d

, s
ch

em
e 

co
m

p
le

te
, 

aw
ai

ti
n

g
 in

vo
ic

es
.

P
T

/1
12

/2
05

A
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

7,
50

2.
15

7,
50

2.
15

55
0.

00
55

0.
00

0.
00

6,
95

2.
15

0.
00

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 c

yc
le

 
ne

tw
or

k 
w

ith
in

 a
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 1
50

0m
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

. F
un

ds
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

(2
6/

10
/2

01
0)

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 c

yc
le

 s
he

lte
r 

as
 p

ar
t o

f E
as

tc
ot

e 
S

ta
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

P
T

/1
17

/2
31

B
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 W
es

t R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 

P
ar

k)
, H

ig
h 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
.  

  
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 c

yc
le

 r
ou

te
 

89
/n

et
w

or
k 

93
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 L
on

do
n 

C
yc

le
 N

et
w

or
k.

 F
un

ds
 to

 
be

 s
pe

nt
 w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

N
ov

 2
01

5)
.

P
T

/1
20

/2
41

A
R

ui
sl

ip
 

28
 &

 2
8a

 K
in

gs
en

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

57
40

/A
P

P
/2

00
8/

12
14

2,
50

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

of
 a

 T
A

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
tr

af
fic

 im
pa

ct
 o

f f
la

tte
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
 K

in
gs

en
d.

 
F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

A
pr

il 
20

16
).

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 
&

 R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

 S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
11

2,
68

0.
80

11
2,

68
0.

80
28

,6
69

.1
5

25
,7

76
.2

3
2,

89
2.

92
84

,0
11

.6
5

30
,0

00
.0

0

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 
&

 R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

 T
O

T
A

L
31

6,
11

8.
52

31
6,

11
8.

52
12

0,
12

4.
84

11
5,

50
9.

92
6,

23
1.

32
19

5,
99

3.
68

30
,0

00
.0

0

   
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

C
U

L
T

U
R

E
, S

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 L

E
IS

U
R

E

C
S

L/
6/

18
9A

R
ui

sl
ip

30
 K

in
gs

 E
nd

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
46

29
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

21
65

7,
67

4.
48

7,
67

4.
48

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
67

4.
48

0.
00

T
ow

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

. E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 M
an

or
 

F
ar

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
. S

ub
je

ct
 to

 fo
rm

al
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 fu

nd
in

g.

C
S

L/
7/

19
5A

E
as

tc
ot

e
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

. 1
06

22
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
24

94
9,

57
8.

00
9,

57
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
9,

57
8.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
f f

un
ds

. C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

llo
ca

te
d

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

a 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

o
f 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 a

t 
H

ig
h

g
ro

ve
 P

o
o

l. 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

b
er

 a
p

p
ro

va
l r

ec
ei

ve
d

 1
/0

9/
20

11
.

C
S

L/
9/

19
9A

R
ui

sl
ip

41
, K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
27

92
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
34

51
9,

33
8.

43
9,

33
8.

43
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
9,

33
8.

43
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 M

an
or

 
F

ar
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

. S
ub

je
ct

 to
 fo

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g.

C
S

L/
10

/2
00

B
M

an
or

F
or

m
er

 R
ui

sl
ip

 M
an

or
 L

ib
ra

ry
, V

ic
to

ria
 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 1

45
39

/A
P

P
/2

00
8/

21
02

5,
20

0.
00

5,
20

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
20

0.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 n

ea
ry

 b
y 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 R

ui
sl

ip
 M

an
or

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
nd

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

en
tr

e.
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 fo
rm

al
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

fu
nd

in
g.

 C
S

L/
11

/2
05

B
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

.  
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

27
7,

13
1.

54
27

7,
13

1.
54

16
1,

98
8.

37
14

3,
67

6.
06

11
3,

48
4.

57
11

5,
14

3.
17

0.
00

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f l

ei
su

re
, 

yo
ut

h 
an

d/
or

 c
ul

tu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 E
as

co
te

 a
nd

 E
as

t R
ui

sl
ip

 
w

ar
d 

bo
un

da
ry

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

. £
26

5k
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 a
llo

ca
te

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
H

ig
h

g
ro

ve
 p

o
o

l i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e.
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
b

er
 

ap
p

ro
va

l r
ec

ei
ve

d
 1

/0
9/

20
11

. 

C
S

L/
12

/2
15

A
R

ui
sl

ip
5 

- 
11

, R
es

er
vo

ir 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

  
61

13
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

26
0

13
,3

38
.0

0
13

,3
38

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

13
,3

38
.0

0
13

,3
38

.0
0

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y.
 N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
 o

n 
sp

en
d.

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 
to

w
ar

d
s 

th
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

a 
n

ew
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 t
h

e 
fo

rm
er

 R
A

F
 R

u
is

lip
, L

im
e 

G
ro

ve
. S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 f
o

rm
al

 
al

lo
ca

ti
o

n
.

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 103



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
C

S
L/

15
/2

31
D

R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 R
A

F
 R

ui
sl

ip
 (

Ic
ke

nh
am

 P
ar

k)
, 

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

   
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

26
9,

75
0.

00
26

9,
75

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

26
9,

75
0.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 th
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

le
is

ur
e,

 e
ld

er
ly

, y
ou

th
 a

nd
/o

r 
cu

ltu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

iti
hn

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
. F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
15

. F
u

n
d

s 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

as
s 

T
h

ea
tr

e,
 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
n

 e
lig

ib
le

 s
ch

em
e 

an
d

 f
o

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
ti

o
n

.

C
S

L/
17

/2
38

A
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
, 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

31
,6

45
.2

5
31

,6
45

.2
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
,6

45
.2

5
31

,6
45

.2
5

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

sc
he

m
es

 o
r 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
. F

ur
th

er
 

£1
6,

13
5.

84
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 5
0%

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n.
 F

u
n

d
s 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
a 

n
ew

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

fa
ci

lit
y 

at
 t

h
e 

fo
rm

er
 R

A
F

 R
u

is
lip

, L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

. S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 f

o
rm

al
 a

llo
ca

ti
o

n
.

C
S

L/
18

/2
38

B
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
, 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

3,
26

8.
46

3,
26

8.
46

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
26

8.
46

3,
26

8.
46

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 li
br

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 
lib

ra
ry

 b
oo

ks
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
. 

C
S

L/
19

/2
37

A
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

19
73

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
14

42

24
,1

30
.1

4
24

,1
30

.1
4

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

24
,1

30
.1

4
24

,1
30

.1
4

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. F
un

ds
 to

 
be

 s
pe

nt
 b

y 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
16

. F
u

n
d

s 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

th
e 

p
ro

vs
io

n
 o

f 
a 

n
ew

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

fa
ci

lit
y 

at
 t

h
e 

fo
rm

er
 R

A
F

 
R

u
is

lip
, L

im
e 

G
ro

ve
. S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 f
o

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
ti

o
n

.

C
S

L/
20

/2
39

A
E

as
tc

ot
e

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 H

ou
se

, E
as

tc
ot

e 
R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
, 1

06
22

/A
P

P
/2

00
6/

22
94

 
&

10
62

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
25

04

22
,3

50
.0

0
22

,3
50

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

22
,3

50
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

le
is

ur
e,

 e
ld

er
ly

, y
ou

th
 a

nd
/o

r 
cu

ltu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
. F

u
n

d
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
H

ig
h

g
ro

ve
 P

o
o

l i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e,
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
b

er
 

ap
p

ro
va

l r
ec

ei
ve

d
 1

/0
9/

20
11

 .

C
S

L/
22

/2
41

B
R

ui
sl

ip
28

 &
 2

9a
 K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
57

40
/A

P
P

/2
00

8/
12

14
3,

25
0.

00
3,

25
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

25
0.

00
3,

25
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t 

w
ith

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
A

pr
il 

20
16

).

C
S

L/
23

/2
43

A
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 T
al

ly
 H

o 
P

.H
, W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 8

41
8/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

91
3&

91
4

14
,3

00
.0

0
14

,3
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
,3

00
.0

0
14

,3
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
.

C
U

L
T

U
R

E
, S

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 

L
E

IS
U

R
E

 S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
69

0,
95

4.
30

69
0,

95
4.

30
16

1,
98

8.
37

14
3,

67
6.

06
11

3,
48

4.
57

52
8,

96
5.

93
89

,9
31

.8
5

   
 P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

'S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
Y

L/
66

/1
44

N
or

th
w

oo
d

68
 D

uc
ks

 H
ill

 R
oa

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
90

0/
A

P
P

/2
00

5/
10

87
18

3,
04

4.
65

18
3,

04
4.

65
99

,8
19

.5
7

99
,8

19
.5

7
0.

00
83

,2
25

.0
8

0.
00

T
ow

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 

pl
ac

es
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s.

 £
16

,4
00

 s
pe

nt
 o

n 
R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l. 

£7
5,

85
2.

85
 s

pe
nt

 to
w

ar
ds

 R
ui

sl
ip

 H
ig

h 
S

ch
oo

l c
os

ts
. E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
fo

r 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l e
xp

an
si

on
s 

in
 

no
rt

h 
R

ui
sl

ip
/N

or
th

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
s.

 F
ur

th
er

 £
1,

42
3 

sp
en

t t
ow

ar
ds

 
R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l. 

£5
,0

00
 s

pe
nt

 to
w

ar
ds

 S
ac

re
d 

H
ea

rt
 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l m

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n.

E
Y

L/
87

/1
43

B
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

D
ai

ry
 F

ar
m

, B
re

ak
sp

ea
r 

R
d,

 H
ar

ef
ie

ld
   

27
31

4/
A

P
P

/2
00

5/
84

4
10

3,
12

2.
52

10
3,

12
2.

52
74

,9
35

.5
2

74
,9

35
.5

2
0.

00
28

,1
87

.0
0

28
,1

87
.0

0
F

or
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l p
la

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. F

un
ds

 
no

t s
pe

nt
 b

y 
25

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
4 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

pa
id

. E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

fo
r 

pr
im

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l e

xp
an

si
on

s 
in

 n
or

th
 R

ui
sl

ip
/N

or
th

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
s.

 
F

un
ds

 s
pe

nt
 to

w
ar

ds
 S

ac
re

d 
H

ea
rt

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l 

m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n.
 F

ur
th

er
  £

28
,1

87
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l p

la
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
 o

n 
sp

en
d.

E
Y

L/
10

2/
19

6
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

19
, V

er
no

n 
D

riv
e,

 H
ar

ef
ie

ld
.  

57
49

8/
A

P
P

/2
00

8/
30

31
73

9.
00

73
9.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
73

9.
00

73
9.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ur
se

ry
 s

ch
oo

l p
la

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
10

3/
19

7A
R

ui
sl

ip
 M

an
or

W
in

dm
ill

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

, P
em

br
ok

e 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
 1

19
24

/A
P

P
/2

63
2

68
,6

89
.0

0
68

,6
89

.0
0

34
,9

80
.7

9
34

,9
80

.7
9

0.
00

33
,7

08
.2

1
33

,7
08

.2
1

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y.
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 

(F
eb

 2
01

4)
. £

34
,9

80
.7

9 
sp

en
t t

ow
ar

ds
 R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l.

E
Y

L/
10

5/
19

9B
R

ui
sl

ip
41

, K
in

gs
en

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

27
92

/A
P

P
/2

00
6/

34
51

37
,4

59
.2

0
37

,4
59

.2
0

37
,4

19
.2

0
37

,4
19

.2
0

0.
00

40
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

pl
ac

es
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
 o

n 
sp

en
d.

 F
un

ds
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
or

m
 o

f e
nt

ry
 a

nd
 s

ix
th

 
fo

rm
 c

en
tr

e 
at

 R
ui

sl
ip

 H
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

. (
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
de

ci
si

on
 

21
/1

0/
20

10
).

 £
37

,4
19

.2
0 

sp
en

t t
ow

ar
ds

 R
ui

sl
ip

 H
ig

h 
S

ch
oo

l. 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 104



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
E

Y
L/

10
8/

20
2

Ic
ke

nh
am

17
9,

 S
w

ak
el

ey
s 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
. 

52
29

3/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
23

60
8,

03
7.

00
8,

03
7.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
8,

03
7.

00
8,

03
7.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

it 
on

 s
pe

nd
.

E
Y

L/
11

0/
20

5C
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

3,
73

4,
76

7.
17

1,
83

0,
55

1.
09

97
3,

33
9.

50
38

6,
72

8.
57

62
6,

49
4.

46
2,

76
1,

42
7.

67
2,

72
9,

55
3.

09
F

irs
t a

nd
 s

ec
on

d 
in

st
al

m
en

ts
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l p

la
ce

s 
in

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 n

ur
se

ry
, p

rim
ar

y 
or

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 th

e 
N

or
th

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
re

a.
 

N
ur

se
ry

 (
£4

21
,0

26
.7

6)
, p

rim
ar

y 
(£

75
0,

52
5.

95
) 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
(£

65
8,

99
8.

39
).

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 7

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f 

th
e 

fir
st

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

16
).

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

(£
65

8,
99

8)
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
fo

rm
 o

f e
nt

ry
 a

nd
 s

ix
th

 fo
rm

 c
en

tr
e 

at
 R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

sc
ho

ol
. 

(C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

de
ci

si
on

 2
1/

10
/2

01
0)

. £
34

2,
00

0 
fr

om
 th

e 
N

ur
se

ry
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 D

ea
ns

fie
ld

 E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 
C

en
tr

e.
 (

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

de
ci

si
on

 2
8/

10
/2

01
0)

. 
T

h
ir

d
 a

n
d

 
fi

n
al

 in
st

al
m

en
t 

re
ce

iv
ed

 t
h

is
 q

u
ar

te
r 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

p
u

rp
o

se
. N

u
rs

er
y 

(£
43

7,
00

0)
, P

ri
m

ar
y 

(£
77

9,
00

0)
 a

n
d

 
se

co
n

d
ar

y 
(£

68
4,

00
0)

. S
p

en
d

 t
h

is
 q

u
ar

te
r 

to
w

ar
d

s 
R

u
is

lip
 

H
ig

h
 &

 D
ea

n
sf

ie
ld

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
  

E
Y

L/
11

2/
20

8
N

or
th

w
oo

d
11

0,
 G

re
en

 L
an

e,
 N

or
th

w
oo

d 
   

46
54

3/
A

P
P

/2
00

5/
26

97
4,

08
5.

75
4,

08
5.

75
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

08
5.

75
4,

08
5.

75
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
11

3/
21

1
Ic

ke
nh

am
1a

, W
oo

ds
to

ck
 D

riv
e,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

.  
65

75
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
0

8,
95

3.
00

8,
95

3.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8,
95

3.
00

8,
95

3.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

if 
th

e 
si

te
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
11

5/
21

5B
R

ui
sl

ip
5 

to
 1

1 
R

es
er

vo
ir 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
.  

   
  

61
13

4/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
26

0
22

,0
87

.1
3

22
,0

87
.1

3
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
22

,0
87

.1
3

22
,0

87
.1

3
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 o
n 

sp
en

d.

E
Y

L/
11

7/
21

3
N

or
th

w
oo

d
1,

 O
ak

hu
rs

t, 
 N

or
th

ga
te

, N
or

th
w

oo
d.

 
30

77
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
36

4,
44

1.
00

4,
44

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
44

1.
00

4,
44

1.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
an

d 
nu

rs
er

y 
pl

ac
es

 w
ith

in
 a

 3
 

m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
12

0/
21

7A
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

34
 H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

H
ar

ef
ie

ld
.  

   
 

25
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

23
91

7,
19

3.
00

7,
19

3.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
19

3.
00

7,
19

3.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it 

on
 s

pe
nd

.

E
Y

L/
12

1/
22

1
R

ui
sl

ip
 M

an
or

2,
 W

in
dm

ill
 H

ill
, R

ui
sl

ip
. 

35
59

5/
A

P
P

/2
00

8/
29

51
6,

43
8.

00
6,

43
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
6,

43
8.

00
6,

43
8.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
si

on
 o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 n

ur
se

ry
 a

nd
 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 p

la
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

3/
23

3
Ic

ke
nh

am
6,

 W
ar

re
n 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
   

65
99

0/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
93

4
15

,4
92

.0
0

15
,4

92
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
15

,4
92

.0
0

15
,4

92
.0

0
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

nu
rs

er
y,

 p
rim

ar
y 

&
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ch

oo
l c

hi
ld

 
yi

el
d 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it 

on
 s

pe
nd

.

E
Y

L/
13

4/
23

4
R

ui
sl

ip
12

5a
, H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

R
ui

sl
ip

.  
 

20
61

/A
P

P
/2

00
9/

21
75

5,
05

4.
00

5,
05

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
05

4.
00

5,
05

4.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
iti

hn
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
an

d/
or

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ch
oo

l c
hi

ld
 y

ie
ld

 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

5/
23

5
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

32
5,

 V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
  

63
60

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
22

88
12

,8
96

.0
0

12
,8

96
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
12

,8
96

.0
0

12
,8

96
.0

0
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

ch
ild

 y
ie

ld
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

6/
23

6
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

C
as

a 
D

e 
B

oa
 V

is
ta

, B
el

fr
y 

A
ve

nu
e,

 
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

, 6
46

13
/A

P
P

/2
00

9/
21

80
16

,2
16

.0
0

16
,2

16
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
16

,2
16

.0
0

16
,2

16
.0

0
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

dd
iti

on
al

/im
pr

ov
ed

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

iti
hn

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
nu

rs
er

y,
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ch
ild

 y
ie

ld
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

7/
23

7B
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

19
73

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
14

42

42
6,

34
6.

97
42

6,
34

6.
97

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

42
6,

34
6.

97
42

6,
34

6.
97

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

rim
ar

y 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pl
ac

es
 to

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 P

rim
ar

y 
A

re
a 

3 
. F

un
ds

 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

16
.

E
Y

L/
13

8/
23

8C
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

51
2,

74
2.

69
51

2,
74

2.
69

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

51
2,

74
2.

69
51

2,
74

2.
69

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 n
ur

se
ry

, p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

S
ee

 le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 
sp

lit
).

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
. F

ur
th

er
 

£2
61

,4
46

.3
5 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 105



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
E

Y
L/

13
9/

23
9B

E
as

tc
ot

e
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

. 1
06

22
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
22

94
 &

 
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

25
04

64
,9

20
.0

0
64

,9
20

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

64
,9

20
.0

0
64

,9
20

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

r 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
14

3/
24

1C
R

ui
sl

ip
28

 &
 2

8a
 K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
57

40
/A

P
P

/2
00

8/
12

14
6,

06
3.

75
6,

06
3.

75
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
6,

06
3.

75
6,

06
3.

75
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ch

ild
 y

ie
ld

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t .
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
16

.

E
Y

L/
14

5/
24

3B
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 T
al

ly
 H

o 
P

.H
, W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 8

41
8/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

91
3&

91
4

75
,9

89
.0

0
75

,9
89

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

75
,9

89
.0

0
75

,9
89

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

re
ce

ip
t (

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
.

E
Y

L
/1

47
/ 2

51
S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
L

an
d

 b
et

w
ee

n
 1

0 
&

 1
6 

M
an

o
r 

G
ar

d
en

s,
 R

u
is

lip
.  

   
   

   
63

73
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
8/

19
63

10
,7

69
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
10

,7
69

.0
0

10
,7

69
.0

0
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
d

 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 w
it

h
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

o
f 

th
e 

si
te

 t
o

 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

e 
ch

ild
 y

ie
d

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

o
rm

 t
h

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.
 N

o
 

ti
m

e 
lim

it
s.

E
Y

L
/1

52
/2

55
S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
L

an
d

 b
et

w
ee

n
 1

1 
B

ra
ck

en
b

ri
d

g
e 

D
ri

ve
 &

 4
8 

W
h

it
eb

u
tt

s 
R

o
ad

, R
u

is
lip

.  
   

   
   

56
80

5/
A

P
P

/2
01

1/
43

6

66
,0

38
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
66

,0
38

.0
0

66
,0

38
.0

0
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o

 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 in
 t

h
e 

vi
ci

n
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
si

te
 a

ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 N
o

 t
im

e 
lim

it
s 

fo
r 

sp
en

d
.

E
Y

L
/1

53
/2

56
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

F
o

rm
er

 g
ar

ag
es

 s
it

e,
 r

ea
r 

o
f 

34
-4

4 
S

u
lli

va
n

 C
re

sc
en

t,
 H

ar
ef

ie
ld

.  
   

60
65

3/
A

P
P

/2
01

1/
90

7

46
,3

47
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
46

,3
47

.0
0

46
,3

47
.0

0
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o

 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 in
 t

h
e 

vi
ci

n
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
si

te
 a

ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 N
o

 t
im

e 
lim

it
s 

fo
r 

sp
en

d
.

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

, Y
O

U
T

H
 A

N
D

 
L

E
IS

U
R

E
 S

U
B

 -
 T

O
T

A
L

5,
44

7,
93

0.
83

3,
42

0,
56

0.
75

1,
22

0,
49

4.
58

63
3,

88
3.

65
62

6,
49

4.
46

4,
22

7,
43

6.
25

4,
11

2,
29

6.
59

   
  P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 &
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

 P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

: 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
, P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

A
F

E
T

Y

P
P

R
/5

7/
23

8D
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

20
,6

79
.2

1
20

,6
79

.2
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
,6

79
.2

1
20

,6
79

.2
1

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
iti

at
iv

es
  w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 7

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

).

P
P

R
/5

8/
23

9C
 

E
as

tc
ot

e
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

. 1
06

22
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
22

94
 &

 
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

25
04

9,
66

7.
50

9,
66

7.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

9,
66

7.
50

9,
66

7.
50

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 w

or
k 

pl
ac

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

or
 w

iti
hn

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

.

P
P

R
/6

2/
23

1C
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 W
es

t R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 

P
ar

k)
, H

ig
h 

R
oa

d 
, I

ck
en

ha
m

. 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

75
,0

00
.0

0
75

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

75
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 3
 C

C
T

V
 c

am
er

as
 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 in

fr
as

tu
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
N

ov
 

20
15

).
F

un
ds

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

fr
om

 P
T

/1
18

/2
31

C
.

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
, 

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

S
  &

 
R

E
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

  S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L

10
5,

34
6.

71
10

5,
34

6.
71

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
5,

34
6.

71
30

,3
46

.7
1

  P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

: 
F

IN
A

N
C

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 &

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
/4

6/
17

6B
N

or
th

w
oo

d
F

or
m

er
 T

ru
e 

Lo
ve

rs
' K

no
t P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

, R
ic

km
an

sw
or

th
 R

oa
d,

 
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
 2

77
17

/A
P

P
/2

00
7/

14
40

21
,1

95
.0

0
21

,1
95

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

21
,1

95
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t "
T

he
 G

ra
ve

l P
its

" 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

ot
he

r 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s.

 A
re

a 
of

fic
er

 is
 d

ra
w

in
g 

up
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 w

or
ks

 to
 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
at

 th
is

 s
ite

. F
un

ds
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 s
ch

em
e 

of
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t T
he

 G
ra

ve
l P

its
.(

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

9/
20

10
).

P
ag

e 
5 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 106



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
E

/4
7/

17
7B

M
an

or
41

-5
5,

 W
in

dm
ill

 H
ill

, R
ui

sl
ip

 p
la

nn
in

g 
re

f.4
82

83
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
23

53
38

,2
58

.3
9

38
,2

58
.3

9
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
38

,2
58

.3
9

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

la
nd

.  
T

hi
s 

su
m

 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
£8

k 
fo

r 
bi

ns
 a

nd
 b

en
ch

es
 a

nd
 £

30
k 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n'

s 
pl

ay
 s

pa
ce

.  
F

un
ds

 n
ot

 s
pe

nt
 w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 

(2
4 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
) 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed
. O

ff
ic

er
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
dr

aw
in

g 
up

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 w
or

ks
 fo

r 
W

ar
re

nd
er

 P
ar

k.
 F

un
ds

 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
 s

ch
em

e 
of

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t W

ar
re

nd
er

 
P

ar
k 

(C
ab

in
rt

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

9/
20

10
).

 

E
/4

8/
18

1A
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
B

ur
y 

W
ha

rf
, B

ur
y 

S
tr

ee
t R

ui
sl

ip
.  

P
la

nn
in

g 
re

f. 
19

03
3/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

32
69

2,
03

0.
70

2,
03

0.
70

1,
31

5.
31

1,
31

5.
31

0.
00

71
5.

39
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
an

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ne

ar
by

 p
lo

t o
f l

an
d 

kn
ow

 a
s 

M
ur

ph
y'

s 
fie

ld
, m

or
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
de

sc
rib

ed
 a

s 
P

ub
lic

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 to
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ite

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 D

uc
ks

 H
ill

 R
oa

d.
  

In
te

re
st

 a
cc

ru
ed

 m
us

t b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pu
rp

os
e.

  F
un

ds
 

no
t s

pe
nt

 p
rio

r 
to

 8
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed
.P

ro
je

ct
 

co
m

pl
et

e,
 a

w
ai

tin
g 

in
vo

ic
es

. S
pe

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

cc
ou

nt
, 

co
st

s 
to

 b
e 

jo
ur

na
le

d 
to

 s
ho

w
 fo

r 
M

ar
ch

 q
ua

rt
er

. J
ou

rn
al

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.

E
/5

0/
18

0B
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
H

ill
s

16
,W

at
fo

rd
 R

d 
an

d 
36

, B
ro

ok
en

d 
D

riv
e,

 N
or

th
w

oo
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 r
ef

. 
62

53
5/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

27
26

20
,2

53
.0

0
20

,2
53

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
20

,0
00

.0
0

25
3.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 lo
ca

l o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 F
irt

hw
oo

d 
P

ar
k 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

ot
he

r 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

of
 

H
ill

in
gd

on
.  

N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

. O
ff

ic
er

s 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

F
rit

hw
oo

d 
P

ar
k.

 F
un

ds
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

 a
t F

rit
hw

oo
d 

P
ar

k.
 (

C
ab

in
rt

 
M

em
be

r 
D

ec
is

io
n 

3/
9/

20
10

).
  S

ch
em

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 A

p
ri

l 2
01

1.

E
/5

6/
20

0C
M

an
or

F
or

m
er

 R
ui

sl
ip

 M
an

or
 L

ib
ra

ry
, V

ic
to

ria
 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 1

45
39

/A
P

P
/2

00
8/

21
02

5,
65

2.
00

5,
65

2.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
65

2.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 n

ea
rb

y 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 fo
r 

sp
en

d.
 F

un
ds

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t B

es
si

ng
by

 P
ar

k 
C

om
pl

ex
. (

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

6/
20

10
).

E
/5

7/
20

5D
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

11
8,

80
3.

95
11

8,
80

3.
95

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
8,

80
3.

95
11

8,
80

3.
95

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

ou
td

oo
r 

sp
or

ts
 a

nd
 /o

r 
pi

tc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

00
0m

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 

th
e 

la
nd

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.

E
/5

8/
20

5E
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

28
,2

75
.5

0
28

,2
75

.5
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
,2

75
.5

0
0.

00
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
H

ig
h 

G
ro

ve
 N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
 a

nd
 u

pg
ra

de
 th

e 
pa

th
 n

et
w

or
k.

 W
or

ks
 a

re
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

in
 

th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 D
ee

d
 o

f 
va

ri
at

io
n

 f
u

n
d

s 
ar

e 
n

o
w

 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
b

y 
S

ep
t 

20
12

.

E
/6

0/
21

5C
R

ui
sl

ip
5 

- 
11

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
   

   
61

13
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

26
0

28
,9

94
.7

6
28

,9
94

.7
6

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
,9

94
.7

6
28

,9
94

.7
6

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e/
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

es
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y.

 N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 o
n 

sp
en

d.

E
/6

1/
21

7B
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

34
  H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

H
ar

ef
ie

ld
.  

   
 

25
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

23
91

7,
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 r

ec
re

at
io

n/
op

en
 

sp
ac

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it

E
/6

2/
23

1E
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 p

ar
k)

, 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
.  

 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

14
6,

87
9.

75
14

6,
87

9.
75

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
6,

87
9.

75
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 a
 c

om
m

ut
ed

 s
um

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
of

 th
e 

pl
ay

in
g 

fie
ld

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 1
0 

ye
ar

s.
 S

pe
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
s 

st
ip

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

le
ga

l 
ag

re
em

en
t .

E
/6

3/
23

1F
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 p

ar
k)

, 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
.  

 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

w
or

ks
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
at

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

H
ill

in
gd

on
 T

ra
il 

w
hi

ch
 li

es
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 

(N
ov

em
be

r 
20

15
).

E
/6

4/
23

8E
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
.  

61
57

/A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

 
60

,1
25

.9
7

60
,1

25
.9

7
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
60

,1
25

.9
7

60
,1

25
.9

7
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 

th
e 

pr
ov

si
on

 o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 la

nd
. F

irs
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 b

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

.F
ur

th
er

 £
30

,6
58

.1
0 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
 o

f o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

E
/6

5/
23

7C
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
co

te
 R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
19

73
1/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

14
42

80
,4

31
.3

1
80

,4
31

.3
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

80
,4

31
.3

1
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
of

f s
ite

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f f
or

m
al

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

16
.

E
/6

6/
23

9D
E

as
co

te
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
co

te
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
.  

10
62

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
22

94
 &

 
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

25
04

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
na

tu
re

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

 a
t H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 W
oo

ds
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
/6

8/
24

1D
R

ui
sl

ip
28

 &
 2

8a
 K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
57

40
/A

P
P

/2
00

8/
12

14
8,

47
8.

00
8,

47
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
8,

47
8.

00
8,

47
8.

00
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
iti

hn
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
re

ce
ip

t (
A

pr
il 

20
16

)

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 107



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
E

/7
0/

24
3C

S
ou

th
 R

ui
sl

ip
F

m
r 

T
al

ly
 H

o 
P

H
, W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 8

41
8/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

91
3&

91
4

28
,9

67
.0

0
28

,9
67

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
,9

67
.0

0
28

,9
67

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
.

E
/7

1/
25

0
S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
L

an
d

 a
d

ja
ce

n
t 

to
 D

o
w

n
e 

B
ar

n
s 

F
ar

m
, W

es
t 

E
n

d
 R

o
ad

, W
es

t 
E

n
d

 
R

o
ad

, N
o

rt
h

o
lt

.  
   

   
  

22
92

/A
P

P
/2

00
6/

24
75

15
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
15

,0
00

.0
0

15
,0

00
.0

0
F

u
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 in

st
al

m
en

ts
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
w

it
h

 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o

f 
T

en
 A

cr
es

 W
o

o
d

 N
at

u
re

 R
es

er
ve

 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
, s

ta
ff

in
g

, t
re

e 
&

 r
iv

er
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 a
n

d
 

vo
lu

n
te

er
s'

 t
o

o
ls

 &
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t.

 F
u

n
d

s 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
w

it
h

in
 1

1 
ye

ar
s 

o
f 

re
ce

ip
t 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

02
1)

. 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 &
 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  S
U

B
 -

T
O

T
A

L

65
0,

34
5.

33
63

5,
34

5.
33

21
,3

15
.3

1
1,

31
5.

31
20

,0
00

.0
0

62
9,

03
0.

02
29

7,
36

9.
68

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

: 
S

O
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
/9

/1
84

C
   

   
 *

55
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
31

-4
6,

 P
em

br
ok

e 
R

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
 

59
81

6/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
28

96
21

,6
75

.1
0

21
,6

75
.1

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
21

,6
75

.1
0

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 
m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 n

ot
 s

pe
nt

 b
y 

01
/0

7/
20

15
 

m
us

t b
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r.

H
/1

1/
19

5B
   

 *
57

R
ui

sl
ip

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 H

ou
se

, E
as

co
te

 R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

.  
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

24
94

3,
15

6.
00

3,
15

6.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
15

6.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 lo
ca

l h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

H
/1

2/
19

7B
   

 *
58

R
ui

sl
ip

W
in

dm
ill

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

, P
em

br
ok

e 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
11

92
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

26
32

11
,4

40
.0

0
11

,4
40

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
,4

40
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
U

xb
rid

ge
 a

re
a.

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
F

eb
 

20
14

).
 

H
/1

5/
20

5F
   

 *
65

E
as

tc
ot

e
R

A
F

 E
as

tc
ot

e,
 L

im
e 

G
ro

ve
, R

ui
sl

ip
. 

10
18

9/
A

P
P

/2
00

4/
17

81
18

4,
65

3.
23

18
4,

65
3.

23
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
18

4,
65

3.
23

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
ca

re
 fa

ci
lit

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
as

tc
ot

e 
an

d 
E

as
t R

ui
sl

ip
 w

ar
d 

bo
un

da
ry

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.

H
/1

9/
23

1G
   

*7
1

R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 R
A

F
 R

ui
sl

ip
 (

Ic
ke

nh
am

 P
ar

k)
, 

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

.  
 

38
40

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

7/
10

72

19
3,

30
5.

00
19

3,
30

5.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

19
3,

30
5.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 7

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

. (
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

).

H
/2

0/
23

8F
 *

72
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
 F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

31
,4

41
.9

9
31

,4
41

.9
9

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
,4

41
.9

9
0.

00
£1

5,
40

9 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

s 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 h
ea

lth
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

he
al

th
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

se
e 

le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ta

ils
).

 F
irs

t i
ns

ta
lm

en
t t

o 
be

 s
pe

nt
 b

y 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

. £
16

,0
32

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
 h

ea
lth

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n.
 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8.

H
/2

1/
23

7D
 *

73
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
.  

19
73

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
14

42
 

22
,4

55
.8

8
22

,4
55

.8
8

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

22
,4

55
.8

8
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 p

rim
ar

y 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
U

xb
rid

ge
 a

re
a.

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

16
.

H
/2

2/
23

9E
 *

74
E

as
tc

ot
e

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 H

ou
se

, E
as

co
te

 R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

.  
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

24
94

 &
 

10
62

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
25

04

7,
36

3.
00

7,
36

3.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
36

3.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 h
ea

lth
 fa

ci
iti

es
 in

 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

se
e 

le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 fu

rt
he

r 
de

ta
ils

).
 N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

H
/2

4/
18

4A
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
31

-4
6 

P
em

br
ok

e 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

 
59

81
6/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

28
96

49
,6

01
.5

3
49

,6
01

.5
3

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

49
,6

01
.5

3
0.

00
F

un
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
di

ni
ng

 c
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

N
or

th
w

oo
d 

an
d 

R
ui

sl
ip

 e
ld

er
ly

 p
er

so
ns

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n.

 F
un

ds
 n

ot
  

sp
en

t b
y 

1/
07

/2
01

5 
to

 b
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

. F
un

ds
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 H

ea
lth

 &
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

or
tfo

lio
 fr

om
 C

S
L/

5/
18

4A
.

S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

52
5,

09
1.

73
52

5,
09

1.
73

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

52
5,

09
1.

73
0.

00

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
06

  S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
7,

53
2,

34
9.

70
5,

48
9,

97
9.

62
1,

43
2,

46
7.

41
80

4,
65

1.
25

76
2,

87
1.

95
6,

09
9,

88
2.

29
4,

55
9,

94
4.

83
   

   
   

   
   

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 A
L

L
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

7,
73

5,
78

7.
42

5,
69

3,
41

7.
34

1,
52

3,
92

3.
10

89
4,

38
4.

94
76

6,
21

0.
35

6,
21

1,
86

4.
32

4,
55

9,
94

4.
83

� �
�

��
��

�

��
��
	


�

�


��
��
���

��
��
��
�

�
��
��

��
��

��	
��
��

��
���

��
�
��
��

�

��
��

���
��
���

��




��
��
��
��
��


�
�

��
��

�
��

��

��
��
���
��

��
��
��
��




��
�

�


��
��

���
���


�
�
��

�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��
�

��

��
���
��

���
��
��

��
��
��
���

��




��
��
��

 �

�


�
��

��
��
�


��
��
��
!


	�
��

���
��

��
���
��
���

��
��
��

��
��

�"
�


���
�#�

���
��

��
��

P
ag

e 
7 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 108



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
0 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1)

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/6
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
09

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

6/
11

T
o

 3
0/

09
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11
A

S
 A

T
 3

0/
9/

11

$%
&'
�(
�)
%*

+,
-.
&%

*�
/0

��

�

��

	

��
��
��
��
�#
���

���
��

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
���

�
��

�#�
�

��
��

�
��

���

�

��

��

��
$,
%'
�(
�%

-1
)&
2

+*
./
//

�/
/
��
���

�	
��
��

��
�

��

�
��
��
��

	

��
��
�


��
�� 

��
��

��
���
��
���
��

��
��
��


 
��
��
��

�3�
��
	�

��

��
���
��
��

��
�4
�

$&
0'
(�

%-
1)
2,

+*
./
//

�/
/
��
���

�	
��
��

��
�

��

�
��
��
��

	

��
��
�


��
�� 

��
��

��
���
��
���
��

��
��
��


 
��
��
��

�3�
��
	�

��

��
���
��
��

��
�4
�

$*
*'
�5
)0
)6
1&

!
+%

6.
2-

*�
6/

��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
�


��
�


�
��
�


�
���
��
��
��
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$*
-'
56

6)
60

*�
+,

.6
*2

�/
/
��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
�


���
�


�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$*
1'
56

%)
60

-�
+6

6.
&&

/�
//

��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
�


���
�


�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$2
%'
(�

)%
-1

)-
-)
60

-
+%

,.
//

/�
//

��
��
�

��
��


�
���
 �
��
���
��

��
��

�

��

��
��
��

���
��


�
���

��
��
���

��
�
��
��

�
$2
*'
�5
6*

)%
/*

7
+6

1&
.2
*,

�%
,
��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
�


���
�


�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$2
2'
�(
�%

-1
)-
%

+6
1.
//

/�
//

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

�

��

�
��


�
���
 �
��

��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

���
��


�
���

��
��
��
��
��

$-
6'
5)
60

)%
,6

8
+6

0,
.,
/*

�/
/
��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

�5
�


���
�!

�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$-
%'
5)
%/

)%
,1

7
+,

6.
&&

6�
00

��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

�5
�


���
�!

�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$-
,�
5)
%6

)%
,-

9
+%

%.
&*

*�
11

��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

�5
�


���
�!

�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$-
&�
5%

%)
%,

0�
+-

.,
2,

�/
/
��
��

��
�


��
�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

�5
�


���
�!

�
��
��

��
�

��

���
���

��
	�

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

�5
���
��
��

��
�(
!�

���
��
��

��
�

$-
2'
(�

)-
1)
%,

18
+*

./
//

�/
/
��
���

�	
��
��

��
�

��

�
��
��
��

	

��
��
�


��
�� 

��
��

��
���
��
���
��

��
��
��


 
��
��
��

�3�
��
	�

��

��
���
��
��

��
�4
�

+*
21

.0
6*

�%
0

$�9
��

��
��

���
��

��
��
��
!�

��

�
���
��
��


	
��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��
��
� 
�3�
��

�
��
+*

21
.0
6*

�%
04

:�

�

�
��
���

��
��

���
���


�
��

��
��
���

��
��
�


��
��

�

���
���

��




��
��
��

��
���

��
��

�
��
��

��
���

���
��
��
��
�	
�


���
��





�
��

��
�

P
ag

e 
8 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
0t

h 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



E
T
L

D
rain

Pond

Pond

JACKETS
LANE

Pat
h (
um
)

Path (um)

W
ar
d
Bd
y

CR

CP

´

November
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land at Willow Farm
Jackets Lane
Harefield

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,000

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

57685/APP/2011/1450

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Villanova

Elmhurst

Catlins
11

12

Braeside

Eastfield

Apple Yard

1

HI
G
H
RO
AD
EA
ST
CO
TE

Brendon

RU
SH
MO
OR

CL
OS
E

Westcott

56.4m

PIKE
'S EN

D

St Catherine's

1

16

2

Brookside

The Cottage

45.4m

Farm

Ashover

Fairway

The Old

The Moorings

Shooting Box

Harewood

15

The Anchorage

13

2

Oakwood

11

Inglewood

51.5m

Tresco

Linden
Cottage

Butts Mead

L
A
N
E

Willows

2

9

Ramin

Quantocks

Sirocco

Litcombe

Ivanhoe

Dungail

Orinis

LB

The Ramblers

Ingleby

15

11

Rose

1a

Purple

50

8

Br

16

´

October
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Oakwood
Catlins Lane

Pinner

67139/APP/2011/2005

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283 Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



10

The

16

14
8

M
O
R
F
O
R
D

14
4

Manor

12
6

13

11

1

PO

Post

C
L
O
S
E

12
4

Post

El Sub Sta

12
2

EASTCOTE

Post

12
0

14
6

4

GA
RD
EN
S

28

25

4

16

4

7

14
2

109

5

15
4

38

AY

CRE
SCE

NT

18

1

15
6 15
8

(PH)

15
0

CR

CF

o C
ons

t &
War

d B
dy

FW

FW

CW 16
0

167

17
4

127

18
4

3

TC
B

LB

1

16
4

TCB

16
2

115

133

155

2

51.2m

129
131

125
143

184
a

135
El Sub Sta

18
6

Post

17
2

113

Bank

TCB

Shelter

117

181

´

December
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

The Hallmarks
146 Field End Road

Eastcote

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

3016/APP/2010/2159

Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



L

L

E

E

C

L

C

L

L
C

C

L

C

L

C

L

R

C

L

R

L

E

L

E

C

L

L

L

L

L

L
A

A

LB

14

Bla
ck
Ho
rse

Pa
rad
e

1to5

Tennis Club

O
ld
B
arn

Shops

4

G
arage

AZALEA

7

19

45.6m

6
to
10

Eastcote Lawn

3b
3a

W
A
LK

20

FB

(PH)

13

23

The Black Horse

21

to

The
old

Barn
H
ouse

Shelter

1

43.9m

2

12

1

19

K
A
D
U
N
A
C
LO
SE

El Sub Sta

82

PC

EASTCOTE VILL

he
Rosery

Old Forge

22

43.6m

77

48.2m

KADUNA
CLOSE

17 14

1 to 12
Georgian Lodge

Peace Vale

TCBHIG
H
RO
AD
EA
ST
CO
TE

3c

24

20

1

Tennis Courts

2

1

FIELD

´

December
2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2010

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land at junction of
Field End Road / Eastcote Road

Ruislip

59310/APP/2010/2005

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

THE SITE

Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



127

93

BR
OA
DW

OO
D A

VE
NU
E

K
IN
G
S
C
O
L
LE
G
E
R
O
A
D

41.5m

Pavilion

125

Eastcote Hockey

TCB

41.5m El Sub Sta

139

and Badminton Club

95

107

LB

88

82

121

41.8m

89

Kings College Pavilion

92
92a ´

December
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Highways land at roundabout
junction off Park Avenue and
Kings College Road, Ruislip

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

61954/APP/2011/2925

The Site

Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



4

130

Court

15
8

8

10

2

7

PH

170

TCB

Hous

10

3

4

64.0m

15

64.9m

116

MP
13.5

159

9

142

118

13

19

27

El

9

14
6

3

5

164

ATHENA PLACE

2

Court

11

SL

162

23

to

132a

NORTHWOOD HILLS

136

51
15

Works

Vincent

12

39

to

C
H
E
S
TN
U
T
AV
E
N
U
E

65.8m

18

6

Zettle

SL

6

27

172

12 8

2

SL

63.9m

17

5

7

4

James

178

37

126

8

132

LB

13

1

M
A
N
O
R
C
O
TT
A
G
E
S

MANSWORTH ROAD

S
A
V
E
N
U
E

Sub Sta

1

1
5W

A
T
K
IN
S
C
L
O
S
E

7 6
&

CR

Ward Bdy

CR

C
F

FW

C
F

CW

FW

C
W

Und

FW

´

December
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Footway adjacent to Autocentre
Northwood, Pinner Road

Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2011 Ordnance Survey
100019283

67084/APP/2011/2897

The Site

Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting - 6 December 2011
	6 Land at Willow Farm, Jackets Lane, Harefield - 57685/APP/2011/1450
	7 Oakwood, Catlins Lane, Pinner - 67139/APP/2011/2005
	8 The Hallmarks, 146 Field End Road, Eastcote - 3016/APP/2010/2159
	9 Land at Junction of Field End Road, High Road, Pinner - 59310/APP/2010/2005
	10 Highways Land at Roundabout, Junction off Park Avenue and Kings College Road, Ruislip - 61954/APP/2011/2925
	11 Footway Adjacent to Autocentre Northwood, Pinner Road, Northwood - 67084/APP/2011/2897
	12 S106 Quarterly Monitoring Report - up to 30 September 2011
	Plans for North Planning Committee

